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The Board is pleased to announce the annual results of the
Group for the Year.

During the Year, economies are still facing challenges both
globally and in Hong Kong. As the COVID-19 pandemic
continued to be a global threat in the financial year of 2021,
the macro environment is not optimistic. In face of the
complicated external environment, the Group adjusted its
direction for principal businesses with reasonable operation
layout and by riding the wave of global development trend
of life sciences, and actively exploring new development
opportunities.

During the Year, the name of the Company has been
changed from “Hao Tian Development Group Limited” to
“Aceso Life Science Group Limited”. During the pandemic,
life science sector experienced rapid growth driven by a
surge in funding and a post-pandemic sense of urgency and
market opportunity. In July 2020, the Group formed a joint
venture with Co-High Investment Management Limited to
participate in development, manufacture, sale and
distribution of therapeutics and diagnostic assets in the
Greater China and South East Asia. During the Year, the
Group has been seeking to build and develop network in
bioscience and to identify potential products, expertise and
technologies.
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DIRECTOR’S STATEMENT
ESHRESE

The Group actively explores investment opportunities in
order to diversify its business and expand its asset portfolio.
During the Year, a subsidiary under the Group entered into a
sale and purchase agreement for its investment in a
comprehensive urban development project to acquire a 22%
equity interest in a company incorporated in Cambodia (the
“"Project Company”). Under the sub-decree 122/2019
granted by the Council of Ministers in Cambodia, the
Council of Ministers approved the Project Company, with
sole and exclusive rights, to establish a special economic
zone (the “Special Economic Zone") with a size of 17,252,519
square meters at Koh Kong Province, Cambodia. The Special
Economic Zone would be for residential, industrial and
commercial development purposes and such development
will be freehold properties. Meanwhile, the Group has
invested in the acquisition of a comprehensive property
development project with an area of 267,500 square meters
(or 2,879,343 square feet) at Port Dickson, Negeri Sembilan,
Malaysia for residential and commercial building purposes.
The Board believes that the acquisition is beneficial to the
Group since the target property has development potential
and is in line with its business strategy, so the addition of the
target property will enhance its investment portfolio of
property development projects in the “One Belt, One Road”
regions.
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For the existing construction machinery business, due to the
relatively stable undertaking of government infrastructure
projects, the Group managed to record an increase in the
sales of construction machinery and spare parts and stable
rental income generated from construction machinery during
the Year. The demand for commercial leasing of 55 Mark
Lane, which is situated at a prominent position in the City of
London, is expected to remain stable, despite interruption
of the pandemic. For the financial services business, we shall
continue our business expansion with a cautious and positive
attitude. The Group has allocated resources to further
develop the asset management business by offering
mortgaged-back fixed return fund, growth fund and other
investment solutions in the middle of financial markets surge
driven by massive monetary stimulus. The Group remains
confident in the development and prospects of the licensed
financial business market in Hong Kong and shall continue to
focus on developing the financial business by leveraging
various licenses and its rich management experience.

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to express my
sincere gratitude to all the Shareholders for their full support,
and appreciate the directors, the management and the staff
for their valuable contributions to the Group, which shall
strive to streamline its existing businesses and to explore
new business opportunities in order to create returns for
Shareholders.

Dr. Zhiliang Ou
Executive Director
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE D

The Board is pleased to present the Shareholders the annual
report of the Group for the year ended on 31 March 2021.

CHANGE OF COMPANY NAME

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at the extraordinary
general meeting held on 18 September 2020, the name of
the Company has changed from “Hao Tian Development
Group Limited” to “Aceso Life Science Group Limited”. The
Registrar of Companies in the Cayman Islands has issued a
certificate of incorporation on change of name (the “Change
of Company Name”) on 21 September 2020.

To reflect the Change of Company Name, the stock short
name of shares of the Company trading on the Stock
Exchange was changed from “HAO TIAN DEV" to "ACESO
LIFE SCI” in English and from "2 X & R &£ E" to "15 #
A& a5 B} 5" in Chinese with effect from 29 October 2020. The
website address of the Company has been also changed
from www.haotianhk.com to www.acesogrouphk.com.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW
Impact of COVID-19

Facing with the unprecedented challenge of the COVID-19
pandemic during the Year, the Group has adjusted its
corporate management direction by exploring new
development opportunities. During the Year, on top of the
existing businesses, the Group has explored business
opportunities in life science and property development
fields.

Though operations of the construction industry in Hong
Kong have been affected as a consequence of COVID-19,
due to the relatively stable undertaking of government
infrastructure projects, the Group managed to record an
increase in the sales of construction machinery and spare
parts as well as stable rental income generated from
construction machinery during the Year. The occupancy rate
for the rental machineries was approximately 80%. Although
there were some occasional lockdowns at construction sites,
this did not affect our rental income charged on our
customers.

For our investment property in the UK, 55 Mark Lane, the
Group managed to lease out all upper levels of the property
which are for office use.

To manage the impact of COVID-19, the Group maintained
its operation and put in place precautionary and risk
mitigation measures, including suitably deploying remote
work arrangements, periodic deep cleaning and sanitisation
for both our warehouse and offices, provision of facemasks
or other personal protection equipment for all employees,
body temperature measurement for all personnel at
workplaces, and proper record keeping of work schedule
and contact history for tracing.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE D

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Life Science Business

In July 2020, the Group formed a joint venture with Co-High
Investment Management Limited (“Co-High”), namely Aceso
Life Science Holding Limited (“ALS Holding”), to undertake
the business of development, manufacture, sales and
distribution of therapeutic and diagnostic assets in the
Greater China and South East Asia. ALS Holding is owned by
the Group and Co-High as to 51% and 49%, respectively.

In July 2020, ALS Holding formed a joint venture, namely
Aceso-Promethera Asia Company Limited (“Aceso-
Promethera Asia”), with Promethera Biosciences S.A./N.V.
(“Promethera Biosciences”), a Belgium-based regenerative
medicine technology company that develops and
commercialises cell-based therapies for the treatment of
patients with acute and chronic liver diseases in humans. The
Group has also subscribed for the convertible bonds issued
by Promethera Biosciences in the principal amount of Euro 5
million.

In order to cope with the development of the Group's entry
into the life science field, the Company appointed Dr. Wang
Yu (“Dr. Wang") and Dr. Li Yao (“Dr. Li”) as non-executive
Directors on 18 August 2020. Dr. Wang and Dr. Li are experts
in the health and biotechnology research and financial
industries respectively. At the same time, the Group is
building a team of life science executives with significant
bioscience asset development experience in China and
South East Asia to cope with the business development.

10 Annual Report £ %5 2020/21
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Life Science Business (Continued)

In September 2020, Aceso-Promethera Asia, Promethera
Biosciences and ITOCHU Corporation entered into a
collaboration agreement pursuant to which, among others,
Aceso-Promethera Asia and ITOCHU Corporation will
discuss business opportunities regarding the products for
the treatment of liver diseases.

As the pandemic progressed, it has been calling for novel
strategies and technologies and more flexible approach
adopted by regulators about clinical trial design and the
speed of trials. It is expected to accelerate the development
of bioscience and health care industry. The Group will
continue to form strategic alliance to leverage the
experience, expertise and capacities of partners and
potential investment targets.

Property development Business
Cambodia investment

In January 2021, the Group, through a subsidiary of HTICI,
acquired 22% equity interests in a project company, CESIZ
(Cambodia) Co., Ltd (“CESIZ"), which is incorporated in
Cambodia. HTICI is a listed company in Hong Kong with
stock code 01341.HK. The project company is principally
engaged in investment in urban complex development
project. Under the sub-decree 122/2019 (the “Sub-decree”)
on the establishment of CESIZ Special Economic Zone
granted by the Council of Ministers in Cambodia to CESIZ,
the Council of Ministers approved CESIZ to establish a
special economic zone with a size of 17,252,519 square
meters at Koh Kong Province, Cambodia. Under the Sub-
Decree, CESIZ shall have the sole and exclusive right to
develop the Special Economic Zone with all the necessary
land use rights, including those for residential, industrial and
commercial development purpose. The principal asset of
CESIZ is a land for development (the “Project Land 1”).

BEENWE D

£ERE(F)
ERNBERE(E)

RZZZZFFNA ' Aceso-Promethera Asia *
Promethera Biosciences Bl (i B =M A 2
MHEATZEEWE Bt P B1 - Aceso-
Promethera Asia R FERBEEEHRA SR
BEffmsEmAEKE -

HRNRERE M EZEEE MBI R
AR ET BB R PR AR SRS N Rl DA S
T2 TTE o TREAR MR A B R HARIBTT R B
R - AEBBEBAGREAIE - UAFBEIE
BHEABNRERRZER  FXRAMBME
5 o

MEBRER
REERE

RZBEZ—F— 0 AEBERASREBER
®E KB AR YEIEBEEB A ACESZ
(Cambodia) Co., Ltd ([ CESIZ ) 22% 7 P #E - 3%
H B AR ERIBEFMAL - RREBFERK
BREBBLMARR  BRHAKE01341.HK - IHE
NRAEERERMGEEAFABEERE - BIER
i & I K 18 F € (the Council of Ministers) [A]
CESIZE M 2 BRI CESIZE B RHR 2z — &
ER122/2019 ([ Z A= ) - BRIBESHE
CESZR R BEBRAEEY —EAEBE A
17,252,519 F KBS B R - RIBZAES -
CESIZHEEME—RBREMRELEFR I
E—VUNETHERAE  BERPEEEEFE T
ENEEBRRBE -CESZZETEBEARRE
A ([TBE 1)) ©

Annual Report 3 2020/21 11



Aceso Life Science Group Limited o {Z# 4 il HEBHR A A

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE D

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Property development Business (Continued)
Cambodia investment (Continued)

The consideration for the acquisition was HK$1,125 million
which was settled by (i) HK$125 million by the allotment and
issue of consideration shares of HTICI; (i) HK$850 million by
the issue of consideration notes by HTICI; and (i) HK$150
million by the issue of consideration convertible bonds by
HTICI. The consideration convertible bonds were fully
converted into the ordinary shares of HTICI on 26 February
2021,

CESIZ is engaged in investment in urban complex
development project on the Project Land 1, including the
construction of clean energy industrial parks along with
designated areas for residential properties. The location of
the Special Economic Zone enjoys geographical advantage.
The Special Economic Zone is located in the middle of the
144-kilometre major national highway No. 4 in Cambodia
and port terminals, connecting the highway to the port, with
the deep-water harbor under planning. The Special
Economic Zone is also in close proximity to the Phnom Penh-
Sihanoukville Expressway, which is currently under
construction. The Special Economic Zone has the benefit of
the convenient domestic road transport hub in Phnom Penh,
Cambodia that will reduce the transportation costs of
corporate products and labour costs. The development in
the Special Economic Zone will be freehold properties which
allow enterprises, commercial and residential investors to
invest in the area to have a long-term secure investment
plan.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Property development Business (Continued)
Cambodia investment (Continued)

The acquisition allows the Group to invest and gain exposure
in urban complex development project in a premium
location in Cambodia and strengthen the Group's
comprehensive investment portfolio. Cambodia is a member
of the Association of Southeast Asian Nations (“ASEAN")
and is one of the most promising developing countries in
the ASEAN region. Cambodia is a member of the World
Trade Organization ("WTQO") as a developing country, and
investments in the country can enjoy the WTO preferential
tariff for imports and exports from and to its membership
countries, while other countries like the United States (the
"U.S.") and Japan, also offer Cambodia preferential tariff
and quota-free incentives. According to the World Bank,
Cambodia’s gross domestic product (“GDP”) has continued
to grow at an average rate of over 7% over the past decade,
ranking first in ASEAN countries in terms of economic
growth. Cambodia’s GDP reached US$27 billion and GDP
per capita reached US$1,643 in 2019, making it one of the
fastest growing economies in the world and one of the
emerging countries of investment hotspot in Southeast Asia.
The stable political environment and dynamic labour force in
Cambodia, together with the preferential tax policies and
freedom of capital flows, have successfully attracted foreign
investors. In addition, Cambodia has established a long-term
friendly relationship with China and provides strong support
to China in ASEAN. The Chinese government’s “One Belt,
One Road” development strategy has brought significant
investment from Chinese enterprises, creating huge
potential for Cambodia’s business development. The

|u

bilateral “China-Cambodia Free Trade Agreement” signed
between China and Cambodia will bring more tangible
benefits and development opportunities to both countries.
As an emerging developing economy in which basic
infrastructure within the country needs to be fully developed,
all industries in Cambodia have enormous room for

development.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE D

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Property development Business (Continued)
Cambodia investment (Continued)

Given the promising long-term economic development of
Cambodia and prospects of the urban complex
development project, there is potential for attractive capital
appreciation for this investment over the long term.

Having considered the above reasons, the Group considers
that the acquisition serves as a good opportunity to diversify
its business and to invest in the Project Land 1 with a view to
realising the land value and enhancing shareholder value in
the long run.

Malaysia investment

In February 2021, the Group, through a subsidiary of HTICI,
acquired 100% equity interests in a project company, Dasar
Prisma Sdn. Bhd. (“Dasar”) with a total consideration of
HK$370 million. The consideration was satisfied by the issue
of promissory notes by HTICI. Dasar is incorporated in
Malaysia and holds a residential and commercial mixed
property development project located at Port Dickson,
Negeri Sembilan, Malaysia comprising 267,500 square
meters (or 2,879,343 square feet) (the “Project Land 2"). The
Project Land 2 is held from the government for a lease term
of 99 years expiring on 8 February 2097 for residential and
commercial building uses.

Port Dickson is a popular resort destination at Negeri
Sembilan, Malaysia and about 80 kilometers from Kuala
Lumpur. Based on the available statistics published by the
Valuation and Property Services Department of Malaysia, the
overall house price index of Negeri Sembilan has increased
from approximately 150 in 2015 to approximately 192 in 2019
with a compound annual growth rate of approximately
5.05%. The Group considers that there would be an upward
potential for the property market in Negeri Sembilan.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Property development Business (Continued)
Malaysia investment (Continued)

The potential of investing in Malaysia can be further
supported by the rising GDP in Malaysia. According to the
statistics published by the Department of Statistics Malaysia,
the nominal GDP of Malaysia has increased by over 28%
from approximately RM1,176,941 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$2,283,266 million) in 2015 to RM1,510,693
million (equivalent to approximately HK$2,930,744 million) in
2019 with a compound annual growth rate of approximately
5.12%. The Group considers that there would be a vibrant
economic growth and future prospects in Malaysia. The
addition of the Project Land 2 will enhance the Group’s
investment portfolio of property development projects along
the "One Belt, One Road” regions.

Existing Business
Money lending business

The main services of this segment include money lending in
respect of property mortgaged loans and personal loans to
customers in Hong Kong. As at 31 March 2021, the
outstanding loan receivables of the money lending business
of the Group (net of allowance for expected credit losses)
was approximately HK$605 million (31 March 2020:
approximately HK$787 million).

Securities investment business

The Group had various securities in its investment portfolio
such as listed equity securities, unlisted equity securities,
unlisted funds, unlisted debts, etc. A fair value loss of
approximately HK$157 million was recorded during the Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE D

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Existing Business (Continued)
Leasing business

During the Year, the rental income derived from 55 Mark
Lane contributed revenue of approximately HK$69 million
(2020: approximately HK$64 million) and the fair value gain
on investment property was approximately HK$10 million
(2020: approximately HK$140 million).

Construction machinery business

During the Year, the sales of construction machinery and
spare parts and rental income generated from construction
machinery were approximately HK$41 million (2020: HK$29
million) and approximately HK$100 million (2020: HK$100
million) respectively. The increase in revenue was mainly
attributable to the increase in the revenue from trading of
used construction machinery, due to the increased demand
for foundation equipment such as RCD machines and
oscillators.

Commodities, futures and securities brokerage business

During the Year, the revenue from the provision of asset
management, securities brokerage, commodities, futures
and other financial service was approximately HK$11 million
(2020: approximately HK$19 million). The decrease was
mainly attributable to the decrease in the brokerage service
provided.
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Aceso Life Science Group Limited o

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of any
dividend for the Year (2020: Nil).

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group had incurred a loss of approximately HK$348
million for the Year (2020: approximately HK$278 million).
Such loss was mainly attributable to: (i) the recognition of
allowance on expected credit losses on financial assets,
particularly from corporate note receivables from Imperial
Pacific International Holdings Limited (“Imperial Pacific”) of
approximately HK$156 million (2020: approximately HK$107
million) and loan receivables of approximately HK$43 million
(2020: approximately HK$92 million), as a result of default; (i)
the recognition of share-based payment of approximately
HK$49 million (2020: approximately HK$2 million), which was
mainly arising from the grant of share options to Co-High in
July 2020; (i) the net fair value losses in financial assets and
liabilities through profit or loss, which was mainly attributable
to the fair value loss of approximately HK$133 million (2020:
approximately HK$61 million) on the equity investment in
Imperial Pacific; and (iv) the under-provision of deferred tax
in prior years on capital gain tax for the investment
properties in the UK of approximately HK$34 million (2020:
Nil); while offsetting the share of results of associates of
approximately HK$196 million (2020: approximately HK$10
million), mainly as a result of the bargain purchase from the
acquisition of a Cambodia project.

Revenue

During the Year, revenue was approximately HK$346 million
(2020: approximately HK$296 million), representing an
increase of approximately 17%. The increase was mainly
attributable to increase in revenue from money lending
business and rental and sales of construction machinery
business.
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¥ MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWE D

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued) M ERE (&)
Fair value losses on financial assets at fair value through UAREHEBEHRLTABERZEREEZ
profit or loss, net AHEFEFRE

The details of the Group's securities investments and the fair RAFE » AEEZHFHLEREERHAF
value losses recognised for the Year are set out as follows: BEERFBEHINWT

Percentage of

Number of Percentage of ~ Number of ~Percentage of total assets of
sharesheld shareholdings  sharesheld shareholdings ~ Fairvalue  Fairvalue  Fairvalue  the Group
at31March  at31March at31March at31March at31March  at31March (losses)/gains at 31 March
2020 2020 2021 2021 2020 2021 for the Year 2021
RZB=-F

W-2-%F ROBoRE O RCRC-F RCEC-F O RCRCRFE O MCES-F 0 KRz A=A
=B=t-B =ZB=t-B =ZB=t-B Z=ZA=t-B Z=ZA=t+-A Z=A=t-A ATE (hRREEE
FERABE <ERENL FMERGHE ZRREAL  0TE 2RTE (BE)/WE AEZEMM

Notes note!)  HKS'million ~ HKS'milion ~ HKS'million
i (gL BEAT BEER BERT
Classified as financial assets at ABANATEHERHA

fair value through profit or loss HABEZEREE
Name/(Stock Code) 28/ (RBRE)

China Shandong Hi-Speed Financial ~ HEIIEZ 24 BEAAR

Group Limited (412) DA 26,064,000 0.11% 12,000 0.00% 10 - - -
Camival Group International Holdings  ZF BB 2R ERAE(9%)

Limited (99¢) 90,610,000 0.38% 90,610,000 9.56% 1 8 7 0.13%
Imperial Pacific Intemational Holdings  BEAF#EBERAER

Limited (1076) NF(1076) 2 4,062,000,000 280%  4,062,000,000 280% 174 il (133) 067%
Far East Holdings International Limited 2 ZREEAR AT (36)

(36) 4,983,000 0.46% 4,983,000 0.46% 1 1 - 0.02%
Beijing Properties (Holdings) Limited 3t R 5% (1) R 2 5)025)

(925) 8,140,000 0.12% 8,140,000 0.12% 1 1 - 0.02%
CA Cultural Technology Group Limited #E Uit it EBARAT

(1566) (1566) 3 35,890,000 390% - - 108 - (13) -
Haitong Intemational Securities Group S B &4 & BARAF (665)

Limited (665) 4 - - 2,962,000 0.05% - 7 € 0.11%
China Evergrande Group (3333) hEEAEE ) - - - - - - 8 -
Riverwood Multi-Growth Fund Riverwood Multi-Growth Fund 5 NATER  NAMER  NARER  NATER - 4% R 740%
Atlantis China Fund Atlantis China Fund b NATER  NATER  NAMER  NATER 3 3% 5 0.58%
Riverwood Umbrella Fund Riverwood Umbrella Fund NATER  NATER  NAMER  NATER 19 19 - 0.31%
Unlisted debt instrument FITERTE NATER  NATER  NAMEE  NATER 12 15 M 0.24%
Financial derivatives SRTETR NAMER  NADER  NARER  NATER 17 - (17 -
Convertible note receivable ENTERER NATER  NATER  NATEE  NATER - 4 @) 0.06%
Futures e NANER  NAMER  NARNER  NATER - - 16 -

34 588 (157) 9.54%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWE D

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued) B ERE (E)

Fair value losses on financial assets at fair value through UATEFEEHBLTABERZEREEZ
profit or loss, net (Continued) AFEBHERHEE)

Notes: B 5 -

The percentage of shareholdings is calculated with reference to the
monthly return of equity issuer on movements in securities for the
month ended 31 March 2021 of the issuers publicly available on the
website of the Stock Exchange.

Imperial Pacific and its subsidiaries (collectively called “Imperial
Group”) were principally engaged in the gaming and resort business,
including the development of an integrated resort on the Island of
Saipan, Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana Islands.

Pursuant to Imperial Group's annual report for the year ended 31
December 2020, Imperial Group recorded revenue of approximately
HK$27 million and total comprehensive loss of approximately
HK$2,855 million. As at 31 December 2020, Imperial Group recorded
net current liabilities and net liabilities of approximately HK$9,370
million and HK$2,733 million respectively.

CA Cultural Technology Group Limited (“CA Cultural”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively “CA Cultural Group”) were principally
engaged in the trading of animation derivative products,
establishment and operation of indoor theme parks and multimedia
animation entertainment.

Pursuant to CA Cultural Group's annual report for the year ended 31
March 2020, CA Cultural Group recorded revenue of approximately
HK$392 million and total comprehensive income of approximately
HK$75 million.

The Group disposed approximately 48 million shares of CA Cultural
during the Year.

Haitong International Securities Group Limited (“Haitong”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively “Haitong Group”) were principally engaged
in wealth management, corporate finance, asset management,
institutional clients and investment.

Pursuant to Haitong Group’s annual report for the year ended 31
December 2020, Haitong Group recorded revenue of approximately
HK$8,330 million and total comprehensive income of approximately
HK$1,820 million.

The Group acquired approximately 8 million shares and disposed
approximately of 5 million shares of Haitong during the Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE D

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Fair value losses on financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, net (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

5. Riverwood Multi-Growth Fund (the “Riverwood Fund”) mainly invests
in listed equities of companies located in the Greater China Region
(which includes Mainland China, Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan) or
deriving income and/or assets from the Greater China Region. The
Riverwood Fund may invest in Exchange-Traded Funds (ETFs), U.S.
Treasury securities and derivative products.

6. Atlantis China Fund (the “Atlantis Fund”) may invest in a wide range
of listed securities issued by listed companies established in or whose
principal place of business is located in the PRC and Hong Kong,
including but not limited to listed equities, preferred stocks,
convertible securities, notes and other financial products. The Atlantis
Fund may hold ancillary liquid assets, denominated principally in
Hong Kong Dollars, Renminbi and United States Dollars, including
cash deposits and money market instruments.

Impairment losses on property, plant and equipment

During the Year, the Group recognised impairment losses of
approximately HK$70 million on certain corporate assets
included in the property, plant and equipment, as a result of
the loss recognised in respective cash-generating units.

Allowance for expected credit losses on financial assets

During the Year, the Group recognised allowance for
expected credit losses on financial assets of approximately
HK$284 million (2020: approximately HK$271 million). The
increase in the amount was mainly attributable to: (i) the full
allowance provided for Imperial Pacific included in corporate
loan receivables; and (ii) the increase in default in loan
receivables. The note from Imperial Pacific was default in
April 2021. According to its 2020 annual report, Imperial
Pacific recorded net current liabilities and net liabilities. The
Group has engaged an independent professional valuer for
assessing the allowance for expected credit losses on
financial assets.

20

Annual Report F % 2020/21

Bt #EI R (48)
UAFEFEBEARBLTARR SMEEZ
DEBRFEE)

fiEE - (48)

5. Riverwood Multi-Growth Fund ([ Riverwood Fund])
FERERPESE (BEPEAM - FF  BMR
B8) QAR AR FE sk 1 K A EE [ R BV A
% /8B E ° Riverwood Fund A BEIR BN Z Z R E
BEES  ZBRBEREHFRITEER -

6. Atlantis China Fund ([ Atlantis Fund ) 7] §£3% & R 7
FRREBK LS HE T BEFEMIM AP EEEED
LEHRARBETHSELTES  BEETRRLETR
FBERKR TBREES EBRREMERER-
Atlantis Fund ATRERF B EBLAE T - AR RETET
ERNBPRBEE  ETERERSTFERAREEMHET
H o

ME - BERRBZREBR

RAFE  REBERFAME  BEEREBZ
ETRAEERRBEERN70GERET R
RS HERR e EE B EREE -

TREECRMEESERE

RAFEE  AEERRAEREECEREES
BREN84EBET(ZE_FF : Y2718
BT  c BEASBEENcEERATY : ()3LE
FEREFFHRT AR AT ER 2 2R E
K (i) FE Y E FRHE R IR IEIN o PRI ZE K ¥
EBER T —FORAEN - BRE_Z=ZF
FERE  BEATLFESERDBEFERE
BT AEEEZEBYEXMEMTGE
BMEEEHEEBERE -



Aceso Life Science Group Limited o {Z#4 £ mEH R EB AR QA

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWE D

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued) M ERE (&)
Administrative expenses THEAX

During the Year, administrative expenses were RAFE THREXOAEI1S5688ET(ZT=
approximately HK$155 million (2020: approximately HK$187  Z4F : #4187 B BB L) * MK 17% - TEARF
million), representing a decrease of approximately 17%. EEAZTHHXET HI6EABET(ZZ
Among the administrative expenses incurred during the —Z4F : #)18F&F L) BITE MIFRSMHE
Year, approximately HK$16 million (2020: approximately B : MESGASL139B5EE L(ZE_ZF :
HK$18 million) was related to depreciation and non-cash in  169BE&BL) T BEHE TR AKGIAEBT(—
nature; while the remaining expenses of approximately ZT-_ZTF :8758EL) G - R LT
HK$139 million (2020: HK$169 million) were mainly related to  EFSRA I EEHRB R EHEIE K A2 -
staff costs of approximately HK$63 million (2020: HK$87

million). The decrease in cash nature administrative expenses

was mainly attributable to the effective implementation in

cost-saving plans.

Share-based payment expenses LRGN REAX

During the Year, share-based payment expenses of AFEEBRURGERANRALZLNOEES
approximately HK$49 million were recognised. Included in  JT ° sF AG A EEE L LS HERAE
the amount of approximately HK$39 million represented EHEMEK AL ERAPRERERELSE
approximately 609 million share options at HK$0.25 each  F9% - i - SHERDEAB MM EEED
granted to Co-High in relation to the formation of a joint A &% BAE025B LM M E & H 46095
venture between the Group and Co-High to undertake the EBHERE - ERECEERBI BN -Z
business of development, manufacture, sales and Z—=FtAEm - Fegr 2z AROEXNFHAX
distribution of therapeutic and diagnostic assets in the EETEE N{EEMERKG ZE) K€ K5
Greater China and South East Asia. The share options were B °

fully vested and will expire in July 2023. The remaining share-

based payment expenses were related to the share awards

and emolument shares to certain directors and employees.

Finance costs & B A
During the Year, the finance costs were approximately ZAFE @ BERANAB17TEEET(ZE=F

HK$187 million (2020: approximately HK$183 million), & : £9183E & L) » N4 2% °
representing an increase of approximately 2%.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE D

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Taxation

During the Year, the net income tax expense was
approximately HK$25 million (2020: approximately HK$11
million). The increase in the amount was mainly attributable
to the under-provision of the deferred tax of approximately
HK$34 million on capital gain tax in relation to the
investment properties in the UK, with effect to the new rules
on 1 April 2019. The new rules apply to gains in value post 1
April 2019 with applicable tax rate of 19%.

Share of results of associates

During the Year, the share of results of associates mainly
represented the share of results arising from the excess of
net fair value of identifiable assets over costs of investments
for newly acquired associates of approximately HK$215
million and the post-acquisition loss of approximately HK$19
million.

Percentage of  Percentage of

Bt #EI R (48)
BiE

RAFE - IEHAFENA2BEETL(Z
TZEF - HNNBEEAT) c EESEEMNE
EHAFHRIN - ENA—B4EW &
B RBEREYFEERNIEER R BRI IE
BEIE OAMBEET FAMNBEARC
T-NFNA—BEZEERS  BRBEER
19% °

DIEBE QN TRRE

RAFE  DIEBERREBEEERD BT
WHBE S AR AT E R EE AL FEBHIEEK
R2ZEH4215E BB TTIARIKEEEEL 19
BEBTELEZEE -

Percentage of
total assets of

shareholdings  shareholdings Fair value Fair value Fair value the Group
at 31 March at 31 March at 31 March at 31 March (loss)/gain at 31 March
2020 2021 2020 2021 for the Year 2021
R-B=-§
R-BZEE RZBZ-§ R-BZEE RZBZ-§ KEEZ =R=t-H
ZA=t-8 ZA=t-H ZB=t-H =A=1-H AV HAKEEE
ZERBAL ZERBA AT ZAYE (B8)/ Wi BEzEM
Notes HK$'million HK$'million HK$'million
PizE AEAT EEY AERT
Classified as financial assets 2 EAMNAPE &R
at fair value through other ~ H#{Lit A2 E
comprehensive income Kz eRER
Name E1:
Goodwill International Goodwill International a
(Holdings) Limited (Holdings) Limited 7.54% 7.54% 28 8 (20) 0.13%
Co-lead Holdings Limited Co-lead Holdings Limited b 1.44% 1.13% 28 2 4 0.52%
Quan Yu Tai Investment PRERERRAF ¢
Company Limited 15% 15% 29 306 10 4.96%
Oshidori International BEEERERAR d
Holdings Limited - 307% - 120 i 1.95%
352 466 5 7.56%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Share of results of associates (Continued)

Notes:

a. Gooduwill International (Holdings) Limited ("Goodwill Int'l") invested
in a number of property investment projects in Hong Kong and the
PRC. The properties would be sold to market upon completion of
each projects, and investors (including Goodwill Int'l) would receive
dividend.

b. Co-lead Holdings Limited is principally engaged in trading of
securities, provision of finance and holding of investments in financial
services industry.

c. Quan Yu Tai Investment Company Limited holds 90% equity interest
in He Ying Tung Investments Company Limited (“He Ying Tung”). He
Ying Tung, through its various indirect wholly-owned or non-wholly
owned subsidiaries, is principally engaged in property development
in the PRC. He Ying Tung principally has 3 property projects under
development located in the municipalities of Changsha, Chenzhou
and Hengyang of Hunan Province, the PRC, mainly consisting of
large-scale residential complex projects and integrated commercial
complex projects, as well as apartments, offices, shopping arcades,
cinemas and other supporting facilities.

d. Oshidori International Holdings Limited (“Oshidori”) principally
engages in investment holdings, trading and investment in securities,
and the provisions of (i) securities brokerage services, (i) placing and
underwriting services, (iii) corporate finance advisory services, (iv)
money lending services, (v) investment advisory and asset
management services, and (vi) margin financing services.

Pursuant to Oshidori’s annual report for the year ended 31 December
2020, Oshidori recorded revenue of approximately HK$280 million
and total comprehensive income of approximately HK$3,449 million.

The Group held 187,500,000 shares of Oshidori as at 31 March 2021
(31 March 2020: Nil).

Liquidity, Capital Structure and Financial Resources

As at 31 March 2021, the Group's current assets and current
liabilities were approximately HK$2,026 million (31 March
2020: approximately HK$1,634 million) and HK$1,096 million
(31 March 2020: approximately HK$1,049 million)
respectively.

BEENWE D

715%@55(?%)
DB E QAT EE %
Fi5E
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE D

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Liquidity, Capital Structure and Financial Resources
(Continued)

The Group has established a treasury policy with the
objective of lowering cost of funds. Therefore, funding for all
its operations have been centrally reviewed and monitored
at the Group level. To manage the Group's exposure to
fluctuations in interest rates on project, appropriate funding
policies will be applied including the use of bank and other
borrowings, corporate note payables, convertible note
payables and issue of placement shares. The management
will continue its efforts in obtaining the most privileged rates
and favourable terms to the Group for its financing.

The Group monitors its capital structure based on the
gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debts divided by
total capital. Total capital is calculated as “equity” as shown
in the condensed consolidated statement of financial
position plus net debts. The capital structure (including its
gearing ratio) as at 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020 was as
follows:

B ERE(%E)
RBES EXARBRMBERGE)

REEB TR EBBRRE EREESKA
Jﬂ: Kgl%ﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬂ‘k%ﬁﬂ@ﬁﬁfﬂﬁé‘%

— R REE - AEEAEEEE N
+/)§§bJ—LM AEBBRAEENREBCR
BIEERARTREMEE BNOCEERE &
N EERBITRERD - BEEGEE
AAEBNRES HERKERMNE KA FIE
Ko

AEBNEERBLERAREREREEARE
B RLERREBKFERUNERNERAE - &
REBERBRAGR A M BARKP IR [# E?J
MEBFRAE - R T —F=—A=+—
A—Z-_FTE-_A=-1+-"HNEXLERE(E T
HEERBELF)WT

]]

31 March 31 March
2021 2020
—EB-—F ZETF
=A=+—-HB =A=+—H
HK$'million  HK$'million
BEET BEATT

Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 1,426 1,422
Corporate note payables e EFIR
— at amortised cost }E%ﬁ%ﬁiﬁi 652 662
—at FVTPL NHEFEAHEZ(LEHAER 628 -
Convertible note payables J,ZH—HQHXKTF 24 /2
Total borrowings EEwzs 2,730 2,156
Less: cash and cash equivalents B BReERREEED (198) (382)
pledged bank deposits BHEPRITER (5) (5)
Net debts BI%F5E 2,527 1,769
Total equity REmEEE 3,014 2,496
Total capital BR{REE 5,541 4,265
Gearing ratio BERELX 46% 41%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Liquidity, Capital Structure and Financial Resources
(Continued)

As at 31 March 2021, the maturity and currency profile for
the Group's bank and other borrowings, corporate note
payables and convertible note payables are set out as
follows:

BEENWE D

Bt #EI R (48)
RBES EXARBRMBERGE)

RZZFZ—F=ZA=1—H AEERTEH
iEE BNEERBRMENAIRERERZ
HAREKESEIIMT

Within 1 year 2nd year 3-5 years Total
—FR EF =ZERE st
HK$'million HK$'million HK$'million HK$'million
BEBT BEET BEBTT BEBT
GBP HEE 4 - 839 843
Us$ ETT 408 - - 408
HK$ BT 371 458 22 851
Others Hitp - - 628 628
Carrying amount IRMEE 783 458 1,489 2,730
As at 31 March 2021, approximately 95% of the Group’'s K= Z :—¢ A=+—H" $EIZ’J9S%Z
borrowings are secured by (1) leasehold land and building;, E&&J3A(1)AE L MIEF T1FZH
(2) bank deposits; and (3) machinery and motor vehicles. (3) *%H&mﬁﬂf?fﬁﬁ

Except for the borrowings with aggregate amount of
approximately HK$1,344 million which were carried at fixed
interest rates, the remaining borrowings of the Group bore
floating interest rates.

As at 31 March 2021, cash and cash equivalents were
denominated in the following currencies:

BRAEFRR 1,344 B BB TTHE E TR E E M EET
BN REBMHEMEEDRFHN KR -

R-ZFE-_—F=A=t+—H ReFkALFE
MIAT S E’EFHE -

HK$'million

BEBT

RMB AR 32
HK$ BT 116
GBP i 39
us$ ETT 9
Others Hi 2
198
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE D

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities.

Exposure to Fluctuations in Exchange Rates

The Group's revenues and other incomes are denominated
mainly in HK$, US$, GBP and RMB. The Group's purchases
and expenses are mostly denominated in HK$, US$, GBP
and RMB. The Group has certain foreign currency bank
balances and investments in foreign operations such as trade
and interest receivables; other receivables, deposits and
prepayments; bank balances and cash; other payables,
deposits received and accruals and borrowings, which are
exposed to foreign currency exchange risk. The Group
currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy.
However, the management monitors foreign exchange
exposure of the Group from time to time and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the
need arise.

Employee Information

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had a total of approximately
175 employees (31 March 2020: 197 employees) in Hong
Kong and the PRC. The Group maintains a mandatory
provident fund scheme for its employees in Hong Kong and
participates in the state-managed retirement benefit
schemes for its employees in the PRC. The Group has also
adopted a share option scheme and a share award scheme.
The Group's remuneration policies are formulated according
to market practices, experiences, skills and performance of
individual employee and are reviewed every year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWE D

EQUITY FUND RAISING ACTIVITIES RAEEEE

The details of equity fund raising activities during the Year HBEAFERAEEFTEMTERAERRHS

and the actual use of proceeds are as follows: =2y U
Actual use of proceeds
Date of Approximate Intended use of as at the date of
announcement Events net proceeds net proceeds this announcement
REAERHZ
AERE £ BRFERERE FEREFECRTAR FERagERAR
7 September 2020 Placing of a total of 234,296,000 shares of HTICI  HK$66,440,488 The net proceeds of approximately All the proceeds have been
ZZEZTFNAEA  ("HTICI Shares") at the placing price of 66,440,4887%7T HK$66.44 million from the HTICI Placing ~ used as intended.
HK$0.285 per placing HTICI Share by HTICI, a were intended to be used in the following ~ FTE B HIBE KT AE
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company manner: i
(the "HTICI Placing”) RREBRERERESE EHEF
ARFFLEMBARZRERERRERE B 60 MAEETRUTIAAER -
FRECE R REIPR BRI E R 17 0.285 B T ELE
BRLEA 234,296,000 % 2 KB IR 2R 12 & R (i) approximately HK$33.22 million
(I EREBRERRERG]) (ZRERER (representing 50% of the net
RARESRHE]) proceeds) to be used for general

working capital of HTICI; and

() ARREEATRERMEIE
2 50%) BRI R ABIR 2R
REN-REEES R

(ii) approximately HK$33.22 million
(representing 50% of the net
proceeds), to be used to support
the development of the existing
financial business of HTICI,
including securities brokerage,
asset management and securities
investments.

(i) HRREEATRERMEIE
FE 2 50%) SRR s 2R
ERRAHBSREBOER 2
RBEAR  EEEBRESRE -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE D

EQUITY FUND RAISING ACTIVITIES (Continued)

BRAKEER(E)

Actual use of proceeds

Date of Approximate Intended use of as at the date of
announcement Events net proceeds net proceeds this announcement
REAERHZ
NEAH 3 BOFSRERE FERRFECRERR FERaERAR
24 July 2020 Placing of a total of 400,000,000 Shares at the HK$99,500,000 The total proceeds of approximately All the proceeds have been
-3 placing price of HK$0.25 per placing Share by 99,500,000% 7T HK$149.5 million from the Placing and the  used as adjusted.
+tAZ+mA the Company (the “Placing”) Subscription were adjusted to be used in 2 HHB B RLHAZ R
ARAREREERH 025 TNEEERS the following manner: AEA o
# #£400,000,000 17 ([ B & F1H ) REFBNABERLMBMETEN
495 EEATEHE - BN E
Issue of 200,000,000 Shares by way of HK$50,000,000 A
subscription at the subscription price of 50,000,000 7T
HK$0.25 per subscription Share (the (i) approximately HK$46 million to be
“Subscription”) applied for the subscription of the
RERABRH0.25ETNREENRES X convertible bonds to be issued by
#17200,000,000 %5 ([ REEEIE]) Promethera Biosciences;
) #HeBBETEARKE
Promethera Biosciences i T 317
ZAARES
(ii) approximately HK$3 million to be
applied for the working capital
related to bioscience business of
the Group: and
i) AIASBLTRRIEAEEAREL
WHERE EEEE R
(i) approximately HK$101 million to
be applied for repayment of
indebtedness and working capital
of the Group.
(i) A0 AEETEANEEAEE
ZEBLMIELELS -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS PROSPECTS

The past year was full of opportunities and challenges. The
COVID-19 pandemic is affecting the pace of global
economic recovery and adds uncertainties to the financial
market. However, the Group implements prudent business
strategies to establish a diversified business portfolio that
can survive the uncertain market conditions while exploring
high-quality asset investment opportunities to explore the
growth potential of profit and capital value for shareholders
and investors of the Company.

Life Science Business

The global biopharmaceutical market is growing rapidly with
more attention of global capital. Meanwhile, China’s
biotechnology has been developing rapidly, and
breakthroughs have been achieved in many fields such as
stem cells, synthetic biology, neurobiology, nano biology,
and imaging technology. Nowadays, the scale of China's
biotechnology industry has continued to grow, the
innovation system has been continuously improving, and the
research and development capabilities and standards have
been rapidly improving. Biotechnology is one of the most
important innovation technology clusters in the 21st century,
which is ground breaking, disruptive, leading and integrating
with other advanced technologies and will become the core
driver to economic development.

The Group taps into the life science industry by cooperating
with global life science companies and is committed to
enabling global life science assets and intellectual property
rights to be developed, distributed and commercialised in
Greater China and Southeast Asia, so as to meet the huge
medical demand that needs to be filled in Greater China and
Southeast Asia.

The life technology industry has vast development space.
Looking forward, the Group will continue to promote
industrial innovation with professional investment and to
explore new opportunities such as innovative drug patents
on a global scale and bring continuous returns to
shareholders of the Company.

BEENWE D

RBRE

BE—FFTMEBILE - COVID-19RIERE
EHEBEERIK  TNERT ERMHN T
ERE  EASEERRREERE 2R
WEB TR 2 Z T EXBAEE - RFE
REHEERERSE  RARRKRRNMRES
BRWANHLENEBEERES -

EaNBER

ERAYRETSRER - EXB2RER
FIRBEE - SRR - FEAYRMERLRE
EHAR  AREME  HEEME - WKL
Y KERNEZEEHER T RE - 15
PEEYRMTE R RE TR - BIFE K&
R TE - L NFAREPRIZTT - £
RN M RERNaH M ERFz— A
BRM - BEM - 5B - BEMERN
BE - BRAESKEERNZOES S -

AEBFEEZREBHEBRFEGEEFT LT
BITE BOBERESMEEERNBERE
AIARAPESR N REDAE  DHAEE
£ EMmmeRhELR L REEAFEBZ

ERMRTERRE=MER - RERK - K%
ERAEAEXREMBEXAF - £2RE
BAZRAGEENEHEE  RAQBRR
HORFFEREIR o
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE D

BUSINESS PROSPECTS (Continued)

Property Development Business

Located in the Indo-China Peninsula, Cambodia is an
important stop on the ancient Maritime Silk Road and an
important location for China to promote the “One Belt, One
Road” construction in the 21st century. The annual GDP
growth rate of Cambodia has been increasing rapidly and its
economic growth rate has ranked among the top six in the
world. Now Cambodia is also preparing an economic
transformation, with many business opportunities emerging.
Meanwhile, Cambodia has a decent investment environment
and the market is highly liberalised and internationalised,
attracting the attention and injection of global capital. While
taking part in the development potential of the land
development project, the Group is also exploring more
business opportunities to invest in more business sectors in
Cambodia and to share the development dividend of this
high growing emerging market in the future.

At the same time, Malaysia is one of the most popular
countries in Asia. From 2017 to 2018, Malaysia was also
selected as the second most competitive ASEAN in the
world, second only to Singapore. In recent years, Malaysia's
GDP has continued to rise, which proves that Malaysia has
strong investment potential. According to statistics released
by the Department of Statistics Malaysia, Malaysia’s nominal
GDP has grown at a compound annual growth rate of
approximately 5% in recent years. The Group is also
deploying and looking for local high-quality projects,
following the layout along the “One Belt, One Road” region.

Existing Businesses
Looking forward, the Group remains confident in its existing

businesses and will continue to monitor the performance in
order to maximise the returns to its shareholders.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

During the Year, the Group had the following material
acquisitions:

— 100% equity interests in a subsidiary, incorporated in
the BVI, in January 2021. This subsidiary holds 22%
equity interests in an associate, incorporated in the
Cambodia, which owns a land for development in
Cambodia; and

— 100% equity interests in a subsidiary, incorporated in
the BVI, in February 2021. This subsidiary, through its
subsidiaries, owns a land for development in Malaysia.

Saved as disclosed, the Group had not made any material
disposal of subsidiaries and associated companies during
the Year.

BEENWE D

EAREREE

RAFE  AEEGETUTERREEE :

— RIZB-—F-AEXBHEMRESEM

BN 2 BB A B) 2 100% % 4 - 2% BB A
AR A SRR A MK 2 & R 7] 22%
fe#E - ZHELNRERBEEELERA
Ho &

— R F - AEABERREE M

P S22 BT B8 X B) 2 100% R 4 » 22 BT B8
AESKRADEBEMNBAREARERA
i o

RERBEEIN  RAFE  AEETEENH
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENSREEEBEFS

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Xu Haiying, aged 67, was appointed as a non-executive
director of the Company on 1 January 2012 and was re-
designated as an executive Director and became a member
of executive committee (the “Executive Committee”) of the
Company in February 2012. Mr. Xu also acts as a director of
various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Xu is the senior
technical consultant and senior manager of China Jieneng
Huangbao Group Company Limited* (4 Bl &7 € IR (R & B
A IR 2 7]), whose principal business is the development of
energy conservation technologies, clean and new energy,
and energy infrastructure construction. Mr. Xu has substantial
management experience and has been the manager of the
representative offices of Wallem & Company Limited (ZE #k
b5 7% & B B R 2 d]) in Shanghai and Tianjin, PRC and the
chief representative of the Shanghai representative office of
Hong Kong Maritime Company Limited (&8 /8&EGR A7)
and has served other management positions. From May
2017 to February 2021, Mr. Xu served as an executive
director of Fujian Nuogi Co., Ltd. (stock code: 1353, whose
shares were delisted from the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange with effect from 8 February 2021).
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Dr. Zhiliang Ou, J.P. (Australia), aged 52, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company on 11
June 2012 and was re-designated as an executive director of
the Company in August 2012. Dr. Ou is the chairman of
nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”) and a
member of executive committee and remuneration
committee (the “"Remuneration Committee”) of the
Company. He is also a director of various subsidiaries of the
Company. Dr. Ou holds a Doctor of Philosophy degree in
Civil & Resource Engineering from The University of Western
Australia, Australia. He also holds two Bachelor of
Engineering degrees in Engineering Management &
Structural Engineering respectively from Tongji University ([A
EARZ). Dr. Ou has over 30 years of professional engineering
and management experience in oil & gas, mining and
infrastructure industries both in Australia and China. He has
been a senior staff member in the world’s leading energy &
resource firms including Kellogg Brown & Root (formerly
known as KBR Halliburton), WorleyParsons Pty Ltd., as well
as Sedgman Ltd., which is specializing in coal processing and
handling plants. Dr. Ou was an independent non-executive
director of Rey Resources Limited (a company listed on ASX
focusing on exploration and developing energy resources in
Australia). Dr. Ou participated in a number of key energy and
resource projects around the world such as acting as the
Lead Civil and Structural Engineer for BHP Billiton RGP6
Jimblebar project, Rio Tinto iron ore Dove Siding expansion
project; Chevron Wheatstone Domgas LNG Pipeline project,
Yemen LNG Project (in the Republic of Yemen) and Western
Australia Dampier to Bunbury Natural Gas Pipeline (Stage
5B) project, etc. Dr. Ou also has extensive experience and
network in China. He was the general manager of Fujian
Liming Construction Company* (#& 4 2 HEETE N R])
from 1993 to 1997. He was a Guest Professor for Inner Mongolia
University (IS &7 A2) and Inner Mongolia University of Science
& Technology (R & B K22) in China. Currently, Dr. Ou is an
executive director of Hao Tian International Construction
Investment Group Limited (stock code: 1341), which is a non-
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

EENSREEEREFE

HITESE(E)

BEBEL - craroel) 525 RZF—=
FRAT - REZERRRAINBEIENITE
B UR_E-—_F)\ARAETAERRINTE
E-HMETAARAREZER([REEE
2DEE TR ESLFHEES ([FME
BE|)KE - BNEEARAZRMEBAGZ
ERE -MELHBERAMNEEARAZ LI ARESR
BRIREHBELEMN - RIS HFHARBAKR
ENTRESTTIRERSN  MIRETHEE
TR o BUE AR A M 55 A0 B 69 A ik A
RAR  BEMERREIEEIE T EA0F
A FEZEKER - BN EHETRDIRAOREIR KL
BRARIEESAIEE - BFEKellogg Brown &
Root (A4 KBR Halliburton) * WorleyParsons Pty
Ltd. R #E Bk I T A B B A Sedgman Ltd.
I & {E Rey Resources Limited (— &7 B 35 55
R ET - BXHERMNFERERERE R
ERRE)) BB IFNITES - BUIS L2 8%
EHREBENRRELEREER - MG L2 HEBHP
Billiton RGP6 JimblebarIEE - /1% Dove Siding
EETIE » Chevron Wheatstone R B R E & 18
B hPYRIERARIER (ERPIRME) - A
BAMEFAKBEIANERARE B (5BHE
ER)TE B ER M TR R AEE TIRAD - Big
HEELEENEREEG R—NLNL=ZFZ
—NNEFREREERARETIRAFIZE
K2 REEEANFTERERATHREKRE
MERHE BELTREARFFEL2EMNER
AIZRERERREEBAR QT (KRR
1341 —EREER A ER EHAIRR]) Z]AT
Ex-

Annual Report 3 2020/21 33



Aceso Life Science Group Limited o {Z# 4 il HEBHR A A

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERGSHEEEBEFS

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. Fok Chi Tak, aged 45, was appointed as an executive
Director and a member of executive committee of the
Company in September 2013. Mr. Fok is also a director of
various subsidiaries of the Company and has been the Chief
Financial Officer of the Company since December 2010. In
addition to the responsibility to oversee the Group's finance
unit and functions, Mr. Fok also involves in the formulation of
strategic plans for the business development of the Group,
fund raising activities and potential merger and acquisition
activities of the Group. Mr. Fok holds a master degree in
business administration from The University of Hong Kong.
He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Fok is also a fellow
member of The Chartered Governance Institute (formerly
known as The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators) and The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries. Mr. Fok currently serves as an executive director
and the chief executive officer of Hao Tian International
Construction Investment Group Limited (stock code: 1341),
which is listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Li Yao, aged 52, was appointed as a non-executive
Director of the Company in August 2020. He has over 25
years of experience in financial industry. Dr. Li holds a PhD in
Economics from Renmin University of China. He has been
working for International Finance Corporate (“IFC") of World
Bank Group since 1999 and he currently is the Regional Chief
Investment Officer for East Asia and Pacific of IFC. Dr. Li also
serves as an independent director of 21Vianet Group, Inc, a
company listed on NASDAQ, since May 2018. During 2011
to 2015, he was the chief executive Officer of China-ASEAN
Investment Cooperation Fund and the Chairman of the
Investment Committee of its investment manager. From
2015 to 2016, he also acted as the Vice General Manager of
Ping An Trust Co Ltd. (‘F Z{E7E B R &£ 2 7)) overseeing
the private equity business. From June 2019 to January 2020,
Dr. Li served as an independent non-executive director of
China LNG Group Limited (stock code: 931), a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Dr. Wang Yu, aged 64, was appointed as a non-executive
director of the Company in August 2020. He also acts as the
chairman of the Scientific Advisory Committee of Aceso Life
Science Holding Limited, a joint venture of the Company
focusing on bioscience business. Dr. Yu has extensive
connection and possesses decades of experience in the
healthcare space in the PRC. He earned his doctorate
degree in medicine from PUHSC and PhD from Jichi Medical
School of Japan. He is a highly recognized scholar who
previously served as the director of Institute of Hepatology,
Peking University Health Science Center (formerly known as
Beijing Medical University) (“PUHSC") (1t R K28 2 5T
it 9t B FT &), Vice President of PUHSC, deputy director of
China National Center for Biotechnology Development
(CNCBD) (4 B 4 ¥ #% fi 2 & & L &) & 1£) and deputy
director of the Department of Social Development, Ministry
of Science and Technology (formerly known as the
Department of Rural & Social Development, Ministry of
Science and Technology of the PRC) (/1 BI R} 24 fil 2 4+ & 8%
& 7 8l 7] &). Dr. Wang served as director general of the
Chinese Centre for Disease Control and Prevention (# Blj&
7 T8 [ 12 % & o0 = 4F) from June 2004 to August 2017. Dr.
Wang is currently managing director of Chinese Medical
Association (FEZEZEKEE), and committee member
of the Global Commission for the Certification of
Poliomyelitis Eradication, Western Pacific Region, World
Health Organization (i SR ET A4 2 HOH R A BEX B A B A
BEERXEERZLEH)
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EERGSHEEEBEFS

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan, aged 48, was appointed as
an independent non-executive director of the Company in
March 2012. Mr. Chan is the chairman of each of audit
committee and remuneration committee and a member of
nomination committee of the Company. Mr. Chan graduated
from the University of New South Wales, Australia with a
Bachelor of Commerce degree in Accounting and Computer
Information Systems. He is a fellow member of each of Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, Certified
Practising Accountants, Australia and The Hong Kong
Institute of Directors. Mr. Chan has over 20 years of
experience in auditing, accounting, investment and financial
management. Mr. Chan is currently an investment manager
of Sprint Asset Management Limited. Mr. Chan is also an
independent non-executive director of each of China
Dredging Environment Protection Holdings Limited (stock
code: 871), Up Energy Development Group Limited (stock
code: 307), Changhong Jiahua Holdings Limited (stock code:
3991), whose securities are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange. Mr. Chan also acts as an independent non-
executive director of Grand Peace Group Holdings Limited
(stock code: 8108), a company listed on GEM of the Stock
Exchange. Mr. Chan resigned as independent non-executive
director of Life Concepts Holdings Limited (stock code:
8056) and Shenyang Public Utility Holdings Company Limited
(stock code: 747) in December 2018 and September 2020
respectively. Mr. Chan was an independent non-executive
director of Fujian Nuogi Co., Ltd. (stock code: 1353, whose
shares were delisted from the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange with effect from 8 February 2021) from April 2017
to February 2021.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(Continued)

Mr. Lam Kwan Sing, aged 51, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company in
August 2012. Mr. Lam is a member of each of audit
committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee of the Company. Mr. Lam has obtained a
Bachelor of Arts in Accountancy degree from the City
University of Hong Kong. He has more than 22 years of
working experience in the commercial and corporate finance
field. He is currently an executive director and the chief
executive officer of SFund International Holdings Limited
(stock code: 1367) and an independent non-executive
director of Summit Ascent Holdings Limited (stock code:
102), which are both listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. In addition, Mr. Lam is also a director of China
Natural Resources, Inc. (a company listed on NASDAQ) since
2003.

Mr. Lee Chi Hwa Joshua, aged 49, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company in
September 2014. Mr. Lee is a member of audit committee of
the Company. Mr. Lee is a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and a member of Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Lee has
extensive experience in the fields of auditing, accounting
and finance. Mr. Lee currently serves as an independent non-
executive director of Cornerstone Financial Holdings Limited
(stock code: 8112), which is listed on GEM of the Stock
Exchange. He currently serves as an independent non-
executive director of each of Hao Tian International
Construction Investment Group Limited (stock code: 1341)
and Up Energy Development Group Limited (stock code:
307), which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. He was an executive director of Link-Asia
International MedTech Group Limited (formerly known as
Link-Asia International Co. Ltd.) (stock code: 1143) from
November 2015 to December 2019 and an independent
non-executive director of each of China Fortune Investments
(Holding) Limited (stock code: 8116) from May 2007 to March
2021 and Farnova Group Holdings Limited (formerly known
as Code Agriculture (Holdings) Limited) (stock code: 8153)
from December 2007 to May 2021. He was also an
independent non-executive director of Fujian Nuogi Co.,
Ltd. (stock code: 1353, whose shares were delisted from the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange with effect from 8
February 2021) from April 2017 to February 2021.
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EENSREEEBEFS

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Chan Lai Ping was appointed as the company secretary
on 1 February 2019. Ms. Chan is a solicitor qualified to
practise in Hong Kong and a member of The Law Society of
Hong Kong. She is also a consultant of a law firm in Hong
Kong. Ms. Chan has many years of experience in advising on
corporate finance, mergers and acquisitions, corporate
governance, regulatory and compliance matters. Prior to
joining the Company, she was the company secretary and
general counsel of China Shandong Hi-Speed Financial
Group Limited, a company whose shares are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 412). Ms
Chan has a bachelor of laws degree and a postgraduate
certificate in laws from The University of Hong Kong. She
also has a master of corporate finance degree from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Lau Chi Hang, aged 39, joined Hao Tian Finance
Company Limited as vice president on 2 February 2015 and
was appointed as general manager of Hao Tian Credit
Company Limited since 1 October 2017. Mr. Lau graduated
from Benedictine College in USA with a Bachelor Degree in
Commerce. Mr. Lau has more than 10 years of experience in
the banking and financial sector. Before joining the
Company, Mr. Lau has worked in South China Financial
Credits Limited, Australia and New Zealand Banking Group
Limited and BOC Credit Card (International) Limited.

* for identification purpose only
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Aceso Life Science Group Limited o

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining sound and well-

established corporate governance practices and procedures

that are consistent with the Corporate Governance Code (the
“"CG Code") set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The
corporate governance principles of the Company emphasise

on a quality board of directors, sound internal control,

transparency and accountability to all shareholders of the

Company.

The Company has applied the principles and complied with

all relevant code provisions of the CG Code throughout the

Year, save and except Code Provisions A.2.1 and A.5.1:

(i)

The CG Code recognises the importance of the
management of the Board and the day-to-day
management of the business. The Company has not
appointed the chairman and the Board provides
leadership for the Company. Having considered the
business operation of the Group at the material time, it
is believed that the Board, which consists of
experienced professionals, can function effectively as a
whole, while the executive Directors along with other
members of senior management of the Company are
effective in overseeing the day-to-day management of
the Group under the strong corporate governance
structure in place; and

The Nomination Committee was chaired by an
executive Director and comprised of a majority of the
independent non-executive Directors. The Board
believes that an executive Director involved in the daily
operations of the Company may be better positioned
to review the composition of the Board so as to
complement the Group's corporate strategy.
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SEEARE

GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK

i

JERER

The Board is collectively responsible for the long-term EZEeBHERABESAEBERRHKI) @ I
success of the Group and for its leadership, strategic BE%E - KKEHEE - BREE CEEH -

planning, risk management, corporate governance, financial
performance and culture. The Board has established Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination
Committee and Executive Committee to oversee particular
aspects of the Company’s affairs, each with specific terms of R 7] KB

BBRELRUE - EEGERIBREZEE® -
¥FEEe REBZEELMITZEE UE
RARNREBH TR SLZESAABTER
EEE - ETIAEENNBE - BESER
ZFTABuLER] o

reference setting out their authority and duties. The terms of
reference are available on the websites of the Company and

the Stock Exchange.

The Board
Exg

Collectively responsible for promoting long-term success of the Company by providing leadership, strategic
planning and managing risk and supervising corporate governance, financial performance and culture

ERREEEAG  RERBAIREREEIEELX

Audit Committee
EREES

Remuneration Committee

FHEES

N
B /R

Nomination Committee

REZE®

MBRARX - HERBRAERRARMAY

Executive Committee

HTEES

. Reviews risk
management and
internal control systems
mE ERE R RN
)

. Monitors external
auditor's independence
and objectivity and the
effectiveness of the
audit process
ERINEZ A DS
VBB R EZBRE
=EEM

*  Ensures effectiveness of
internal audit
programme and internal
audit function
RN EZ 8 RA
HEZBEEE DB

e Oversees financial
reporting process

ERMBmERERF
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GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK (Continued)

Each committee has authority to obtain external professional
advice and to seek information from employees, and the
Company will provide sufficient resources to the committees
for performance of its duties and responsibilities. Minutes of
the committees meetings are kept by the Company
Secretary and all decisions of the committees are reported
to the Board. To further reinforce independence and
effectiveness, all Audit Committee members are
independent non-executive Directors, and the Nomination
and Remuneration Committees have been structured with a
majority of independent non-executive Directors as
members. Details and reports of the committees are set out
below.

BOARD COMPOSITION AND BOARD PRACTICES

Role and function

The Board has the responsibility of promoting the success of
the Company by formulating its strategic direction and
supervising its operations and affairs in an effective manner.
Each Director has a fiduciary duty and statutory
responsibilities towards the Company.

Each Director is aware of his collective and individual
responsibilities to all Shareholders and that he should give
sufficient time and attention to the affairs of the Company.

With the objective of enhancing shareholder value, the
Board is responsible for the formulation and approval of
overall business strategies and policies of the Group,
management of the business and affairs of the Group, and
monitoring of the performance of the management of the
Group and is charged with presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of the Group’s performance,
position and prospects in its annual and interim results, other
announcements containing inside information and financial
disclosures of the Company required under the Listing Rules
and other applicable rules.
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BOARD COMPOSITION AND BOARD PRACTICES
(Continued)
Role and function (Continued)

Some of the key responsibilities of the Board include:

establishing and maintaining the strategic direction and
objectives of the Group

evaluating significant investment proposals, major
acquisitions or disposals

appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
members of the committees

ensuring the financial statements are prepared to give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group

ensuring that a framework of prudent and effective
controls is in place to enable risks to be assessed and

managed

monitoring major capital transactions or other
significant operational or financial matters

monitoring the performance of management

Daily operations and management of the Group's business

are delegated to the management.

42
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BOARD COMPOSITION AND BOARD PRACTICES

(Continued)
Composition

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises

ESSHRRESEER(E)

AR

three executive Directors, two non-executive Directors and BIEHTEER BB TIEHTESE

three independent non-executive Directors.

Membership of Board Committee(s)
EEZEEZHKE

RAFHAY EXQRE=-LRTEE M

Executive Directors:
HITES

Mr. Xu Haiying
FTEELAE

Dr. Zhiliang Ou, J.P. (Australia)
B ESe L - A Fa )

Mr. Fok Chi Tak
EEEisE

Non-executive Directors:
FHITES :

Dr. Wang Yu

FFIET

Dr. Li Yao
TREL

Independent Non-executive Directors:
B EHITES :

Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan
REALESELE

Mr. Lam Kwan Sing
ME B E

Mr. Lee Chi Hwa Joshua
TEELE

Member of the Executive Committee
WITEZEEKE

Chairman of the Nomination Committee
RELESXE

Member of the Remuneration Committee
FMEZEgKE

Member of the Executive Committee
WITZEEKE

Member of the Executive Committee

HITREEKE

Chairman of the Audit Committee
EZEEEXE

Member of the Nomination Committee
REELEEEKE

Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
FNEZEEER

Member of the Audit Committee
BEZEZEEKE
Member of the Nomination Committee
RELZEEKE
Member of the Remuneration Committee
YMEZEEKE
Member of the Audit Committee
BEZLZEENE
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TRERBME

BOARD COMPOSITION AND BOARD PRACTICES
(Continued)
Composition (Continued)

Their biographical details of the Directors are set out on
pages 32 to 37 of this annual report.

The three independent non-executive Directors, which
represented more than one-third of the entire Board, bring a
wide range of business and financial experience to the
Board, which contributes to the effective direction of the
Group and the development of the Group's strategies and
policies and promotes checks and balances of the
management process to safeguard Shareholders’ interest.
The Board reviews regularly the Board’s composition and
considers that the composition of the Board is well balanced
with each Director having sound knowledge, experience and
expertise relevant to the business operations and
development of the Group. The Board is also satisfied that
all independent non-executive Directors meet the guidelines
set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and are independent
pursuant to the requirements of the guidelines and the
Company complied with the requirements under Rule 3.10(1)
and Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules throughout the Year.

A list of Directors and their respective role and function has
been published on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange, and is also disclosed in relevant corporate
communications issued by the Company pursuant to the
Listing Rules.
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BOARD COMPOSITION AND BOARD PRACTICES
(Continued)
Appointment and re-election of Directors

Formal procedures were adopted by the Board for
governing the appointment, re-election and removal of
Directors in accordance with the Articles.

Except for Mr. Fok Chi Tak, each Director has entered into a
service contract or a letter of appointment with the Company
for a term of three years. All Directors are subject to the
retirement by rotation at least once every three years under
the Articles. Pursuant to the Articles, at each annual general
meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being shall
retire by rotation and retiring Directors are eligible for re-
election in accordance with the Articles.

The Company may by ordinary resolution elect any person
to be a Director either to fill a casual vacancy on the Board,
or as an addition to the existing Board. The Board may from
time to time appoint a Director either to fill a casual vacancy
or as an addition to the Board. Any Director so appointed by
the Board shall hold office only until the next following
annual general meeting and shall then be eligible for
re-election.

If a Shareholder wishes to propose a person for election as a
Director at a general meeting of the Company, a
Shareholder may serve the Company a written notice and
follow the designated procedures for nomination of
Directors under the Articles, which are available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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BOARD COMPOSITION AND BOARD PRACTICES EESARREEEER(B)
(Continued)

Director’s commitment EE AW
The Board meets at least four times a year at quarterly BEZE@HFEVEFTERITNACH  TRE
intervals and holds additional meetings as and when the ERAEEREINEITEE  UEANEH

Board thinks appropriate to discuss matters relating to the ~ANEBKRE - £54E - KB - BAREARKR
Group's strategies, business operations, performance, &EHHEZEH °
governance and material investments.

Attendance record of the Directors and committee members ZEZEREZE@KBERNAEE 2 BELHEH M
for the Year are set out as follows: T

Attendance/Number of meetings
HESBRY BTEERY
Executive Audit  Nomination Remuneration General
Board Committee  Committee =~ Committee = Committee meeting

Exg¢ YTZRE€ HHZEREE REZEE FHzEe RRAE

Total number of meetings HEBERY 21 5 3 2 5 5
Executive Directors: HITES:

Mr. Xu Haiying EERAE 21/21 55 NATER NATER NATES 5/5
Dr. Zhiliang Ou BEsEL 21/21 55 N/ATGER 2/2 5/5 5/5
Mr. Fok Chi Tak ELmEs 21/21 55 NATER  NATER NATER 5/5
Non-executive Directors: EHITES :

Dr. Wang Yu (Note 1) FFRELT (1) 810 N/ATNER NANER NATER NATNER 5/5
Dr. Li Yao (Note 2) L (M2) 1010 NATER NATER NATER NATER 5/5

Independent Non-executive ~ BV FHITES :

Directors:
Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan ~ [REAZ L4 2121 N/ATNER 33 2/2 5/5 5/5
Mr. Lam Kwan Sing MEMEE 2021 N/ATER 33 22 4/5 5/5
Mr. Lee Chi Hwa Joshua FRERL 1621 N/ATER 33 NATER  NATER 5/5
Notes: gL
1. Dr. Wang Yu was appointed as a non-executive Director with effect 1. EFEIRZERFNTES R _ZFN\A
from 18 August 2020. TANBER -

2. Dr. Li Yao was appointed as a non-executive Director with effect from 2. FRETRZERFHDTES  R_T=_FFNA
18 August 2020. TNB &R »
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BOARD COMPOSITION AND BOARD PRACTICES
(Continued)
Director’'s commitment (Continued)

The Board reviews the performance of the Directors regularly
to ensure the Directors have adequately and effectively
performed their roles and devoted sufficient time to the
Company's affairs. The Board was satisfied that the Directors
had a strong commitment to the Company and positively
contributed to the Board through their participation in the
Company's affairs and the Board's discussions and decisions,
as reflected in their high attendance record on the Board
and its committee meetings during the Year.

Board process

All Directors have full access to relevant information both at
the meetings and at regular intervals. Notice of not less than
14 days was given to Directors for the regular Board
meetings. The Company Secretary assists the Board in
preparing the meeting agenda and, during which, the
Directors are consulted for matters to be included in the
agenda for all regular meetings of the Board. It has been the
practice of the Board and accepted by all members of the
Board that relevant information of Board meetings will be
sent to all Directors three days (or other reasonable period)
prior to the meetings.

Board meetings involve active participation, either in person
or through other electronic means of communication, by all
of the Directors present. Board minutes are prepared and
kept by the Company Secretary recording in sufficient details
the matters considered and decisions reached by the Board
or Committees, including any concerns raised or dissenting
views voiced by any Director. All draft and final minutes of
Board meetings and meetings of committees are sent to
Directors or Board committees members as appropriate for
comments, approval and records. Board records are
available for inspection by any Director upon request.

TRERBME

ESSHRRESEER(E)
EE A& ()

EFEEHRNESRE  NEREFERD
BRETERE  YRARHKHEREANRT
- BFEEMBZEFTHNRARRIEHR
% BRERAFERTZIEFERETZRE
EEHRERSHEE  EURBREERG2HE
ARBFEHREFEZAMIRE - XHESF
SFHLEEER

ExgER

EEFEHIRER LR ERNGE2HERE
B ARBEINBTEFEEHSZNEL TH
FRASESZELEMSREBA - RRWEDR

DEFSRESHAE  MEWHRE  HAAE
EXeTHed aEMER T EERES

ZER - BASREREEHE=AAKEMEE
FRAZEEFTTEEFTTRHEBEEN - It
REZGED  WREEZSEZEKEEMN -

ERESFERGHFELEMBEFBAIER
BLREESRH EFTLRACHEHAR AW
EREMRET  URDFABLBEFTELERE
EMERFELMESRE  BREMESRE
HeBIEBEAREZ AR FEEES
eRLZBERRCHERALEREE DA
TRTEELEZZEENEBREENE #H
TRtk e EF G RERETMNESE
o

Annual Report 3 2020/21 47



Aceso Life Science Group Limited o {Z# 4 il HEBHR A A

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TRERBME

BOARD COMPOSITION AND BOARD PRACTICES
(Continued)
Board process (Continued)

Matters on transactions where Directors are considered
having a conflict of interest or material interests would not
be dealt with by way of written resolutions and a separate
Board meeting shall be held where independent non-
executive Directors who have no material interests should be
present at such meeting. Directors having a conflict of
interest or material interests in a transaction shall, before the
meeting of the Board, declare his interest(s) therein in
accordance with the Articles, and shall abstain from voting
on the resolution(s) and shall not be counted in the quorum
present at such Board meeting. Such declaration of interests
will be duly noted in the minutes of the relevant Board
meeting.

The Company Secretary shall provide professional advice on
governance matters to the Directors. Members of the
management have been reminded that they have an
obligation to supply the Board and the Board committees
with adequate information on a timely basis to enable each
of them to make informed decisions. All Directors are
entitled to have access to board papers, minutes and related
materials. The Board and each Director have separate and
independent access to the Group’s senior management. In
addition, the Directors are able, upon reasonable request, to
seek independent professional advice under appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expense. The Board may
resolve to provide appropriate independent professional
advice to the Directors to assist the relevant Directors to
discharge their duties.

With the support of the Company Secretary, the executive
Directors seek to ensure that all Directors are properly
briefed on issues arising at Board meetings and receive
adequate and reliable information in a timely manner.
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BOARD COMPOSITION AND BOARD PRACTICES
(Continued)

Induction, information and ongoing professional
development

Each newly-appointed Director is provided with a package
of orientation materials setting out the required duties and
responsibilities of directors under the Listing Rules and other
relevant statutory requirements of Hong Kong and received
an induction training with external legal adviser on director’s
duties and obligations and meeting with management for an
overview of the Group. The Directors are kept informed from
time to time on the latest development of any changes to
the regulatory requirements and the status of compliance of
applicable rules and regulations by the Company as well as
business development and operation plans of the Company.

In compliance with code provision A.6.5, the Company has
arranged for, and provided fund for, the Directors and the
Company Secretary of the Company to participate in
continuous professional development organized in the form
of in-house training, seminars or other appropriate courses
to keep them refreshed of their knowledge, skill and
understanding on the Group and its business or to update
their skills and knowledge on the latest development or
changes in the relevant statutes, the Listing Rules and
corporate governance practices.

All Directors are required to provide the Company with their
training records on an annual basis. For the Year, all
Directors have participated in various training and
continuous professional development activities and/or were
given speech or training materials at external seminars/
training sessions.

Liability insurance for the Directors

Appropriate insurance cover on directors’ and officers’
liabilities has been arranged and is in force to protect the
Directors and officers of the Group from their risk exposure
arising from the businesses of the Group and potential
personal liabilities.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy. A
summary of such board diversity policy, the measurable
objectives set for implementing such board diversity policy,
and the progress made towards achieving those objectives
are disclosed as below.

Summary of the board diversity policy

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced
development, the Company sees increasing diversity at the
Board level as an essential element in supporting the
attainment of its strategic objectives and its sustainable
development. In designing the Board’s composition, the
Board diversity has been considered from a number of
aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, skills
and knowledge. All Board member's appointments will be
based on merit, and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board.

Measurable Objectives

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of
diversified perspectives, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of services. The
ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution
that the selected candidates will bring to the Board. The
Board’'s composition will be disclosed in the corporate
governance report annually in accordance with the Listing
Rules.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY (Continued)

Monitoring

The Nomination Committee is responsible for monitoring
implementation of the board diversity policy.

Diversity of the Board

The existing Board members are of different backgrounds,
qualifications and experiences, including extensive
experiences in resources, auditing, accounting, investment,
corporate finance, project development and management.
In view of the present size and complexities of the operations
and the nature of the risks and challenges the Group faces,
the Nomination Committee considers the Company has
achieved a right balance of skills, experience, knowledge
and diversity among the present Board members.

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Executive Committee was set up in June 2010. The
Executive Committee operates as a general management
committee under the direct authority of the Board to
enhance the efficiency for business decisions. In accordance
with its terms of reference, the Executive Committee
monitors the execution of the Company'’s strategic plans and
operations of all business units of the Group and discusses
and makes decisions on matters relating to the management
and day-to-day operations of the Group.

During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, the
Executive Committee is comprised of all existing executive
Directors, namely Mr. Xu Haiying, Dr. Zhiliang Ou and Mr.
Fok Chi Tak.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Audit Committee in May 2006.
The primary duties of the Audit Committee are (a) making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment and
removal of the external auditor; (b) reviewing the financial
statements and material advice in respect of financial
reporting; and (c) overseeing the internal control procedures
of the Company. Meetings shall be held at least twice a year.

This annual report has been reviewed by the Audit
Committee.

During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, the
Audit Committee is comprised of three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan
(chairman of the committee), Mr. Lam Kwan Sing and Mr.
Lee Chi Hwa Joshua.

The work performed by the Audit Committee during the
Year is summarised as follows:

(@) reviewed the audited financial statements of the Group
for the Previous Year and unaudited interim financial
statements of the Group for the six months ended 30
September 2020 and the related results announcements;

(b) reviewed the independence of the external auditor and
engagement of external auditor for annual audit;

(o) reviewed the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group and the compliance with
relevant accounting standards, the Listing Rules and
other statutory requirements;

(d) reviewed the effectiveness of internal control and risk
management systems; and

(e) recommended on the appointment, remuneration and
terms of engagement of the new external auditor.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

During the Year, no issues brought to the attention of the
management and the Board were of significant importance
to require disclosure in this annual report.

The Company has adopted a set of internal guidelines on
whistle-blowing in 2013. Arrangement has been put in place
by which employees can report any concerns, including
misconduct, impropriety or fraud in financial reporting
matters and accounting practices, in confidence and without
fear of recrimination for fair and independent investigation
of such matters and for appropriate follow-up action.

In addition, the Company has also adopted a policy that
subject to prior approval by Audit Committee, no employees
or former employees of external auditor can be appointed
as director or senior executive of internal audit or finance
function of the Group, within 12 months preceding their
employment by the external auditor to enhance
independent reporting by external auditor.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company set up the Nomination Committee in August
2009. The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are
(a) reviewing the structure, size and composition of the
Board and making recommendations to the Board on any
proposed change to the Board; (b) identifying suitably
qualified candidates to become members of the Board; (c)
assessing the independence of independent non-executive
Directors; and (d) making recommendations on
appointment, re-election and removal of Directors and
ensuring a succession plan is in place.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, the
Nomination Committee is comprised of one executive
Director, namely Dr. Zhiliang Ou (chairman of the committee)
and two independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr.
Chan Ming Sun Jonathan and Mr. Lam Kwan Sing.

The work performed by the Nomination Committee during
the Year is summarised as follows:

(@) reviewed and recommended on the structure, size and
composition of the Board including the diversity as well
as the competence, experience, academic background
and qualification of its members;

(b) reviewed and assessed the independence of each
independent non-executive Directors;

(c) considered and recommended the appointment of Dr.
Wang Yu and Dr. Li Yao, the non-executive Directors

appointed during the Year;

(d) recommended on the nomination of Directors for re-
election at the annual general meeting ; and

(e) reviewed the board diversity policy and nomination
policy.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company set up the Remuneration Committee in May
2006. The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee
are (a) evaluating the performance and making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policies
and structure for the remuneration of the Directors and
senior management of the Company; (b) establishing a
formal and transparent procedure for developing a policy on
remuneration; (c) determining specific remuneration
packages for all executive Directors and senior management
in the manner specified in its terms of reference; (d) making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of independent non-executive Directors; (e)
reviewing the appropriateness and relevance of the
remuneration policy; and (f) reviewing and making
recommendations to the Board as to the fairness and
reasonableness of the terms of any Director’s service
agreement, which are subject to the approval of the
Shareholders in general meeting pursuant to the Listing
Rules.

During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, the
Remuneration Committee is comprised of one executive
Director, namely Dr. Zhiliang Ou and two independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan
(chairman of the committee) and Mr. Lam Kwan Sing.

The work performed by the Remuneration Committee during
the Year is summarised as follows:

(@) reviewed and recommended on the remuneration
packages of existing and proposed Directors;

(b) reviewed the terms of service contracts of Dr. Wang Yu
and Dr. Li Yao, the non-executive Directors appointed
during the Year; and

(c) reviewed the appropriateness of the remuneration
policy of the Company.

During the process of consideration, no individual Director
was involved in decisions relating to his own remuneration.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties of the Company including (a) developing
and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance; (b) reviewing and monitoring the
training and continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management; (c) reviewing and
monitoring the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; (d)
developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct
applicable to employees and Directors; and (e) reviewing the
Company's compliance with the CG Code.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Group which give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group on a going
concern basis and in presenting the interim and annual
financial statements, announcements and other financial
disclosures required under the Listing Rules. Members of the
management have provided the Board with monthly updates
and sufficient information for the Board to develop and
maintain a balanced and understandable assessment of the
Company'’s performance, position and prospects.

The Directors ensure the preparation of the financial
statements of the Group is in accordance with the statutory
requirements and the applicable accounting standards. The
Directors also ensure that the publication of the financial
statements of the Group is in a timely manner.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)

Auditor’'s Remuneration

During the Year, the total fee paid/payable in respect of
audit and non-audit services provided by the Group's

external auditors is set out below:

(1) BDO Limited

SRERBE

BEREZ(E)
BB AT

RAEE - AEBEBINSZBE PR EZ B R
IRBIRBEN BN 2 BREREHTINT

(1) BRBUEESE:NEBERAAE

Fee paid/payable
for the year
ended 31 March
2021
BE-Z-—F
=RA=+—H
EFEEER
Ptz & M
HKS$'million
BEAERT

Audit services
Non-audit services

B AR
IR B IRTS

Total

5T
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ACCOUNTARBILITY AND AUDIT (Continued) BEREZ(E)
Auditor’s Remuneration (Continued) ZEEME (8)
(2) ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited (2) HEZEETHNEXFERALT
Fee paid/payable
for the year
ended 31 March
2021
BE-T——F
=ZA=+-—H
LEERES
| TFS 3
HK$'million
BEER
Audit services %R % 3
Non-audit services IERZ B AR TS -
Total =t 3

The statement of the auditor of the Company regarding their N A FZ BB A EE 2 B IE iR 2 AR & T
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements for the — {EH Z BRRE R A FRE 91 = 98 B 2 B ZE
Year is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages  Efi#f% °

91 to 98 of this annual report.
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NOMINATION POLICY

The Nomination Committee may invite nominations of
candidates from Board members for its consideration. The
Nomination Committee may also put forward candidates
who are not nominated by Board members. The factors in
assessing the suitability of a proposed candidate for director
include:

e  business experience relevant and beneficial to the
Company, diversity in all its aspects, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, knowledge, professional experience and
skills;

e character and integrity;
e accomplishments in personal careers;
e  independence;

e willingness to devote adequate time to discharge
duties as a Board member.

and such other perspectives relevant to the Company’s
business. The Nomination Committee shall make
recommendations of candidates for the Board's
consideration and approval.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy. Declaration

and payment of dividends are subject to the discretion of

the Board. The Board would consider, inter alia, the

following factors before declaring or recommending
dividend to the Shareholders:

(a)

(9)

the Company’s actual and expected financial
performance;

retained earnings and distributable reserves of the
Company;

the level of the Company’s debts to equity ratio, return
on equity and the relevant financial covenants;

any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be
imposed by the Company'’s contracting parties;

the Company’s expected working capital requirements
and future expansion plans;

general economic conditions, business cycle of the
Company's business and other internal or external
factors that may have an impact on the business or
financial performance and position of the Company;
and

any other factors that the Board may deem appropriate.

Any payment of dividend is also subject to compliance with

applicable laws and regulations including the laws of the

Cayman Islands and the Articles.

The Board will continually review the dividend policy from

time to time and there can be no assurance that dividends

will be paid in any particular amount for any given period.

60

Annual Report F % 2020/21

IR BB

ARREHRMABREBR - Bk MIRMREES
AREZFEMERTE - REIRHEZE KRR
MEERT EFSHEE(EPEE) TIIEE

(@) ARBZERRATMHRER

b) ARBZREBBN LA IKRFER

(€ ARARZEHE L TKRF - iEmE R
K AR A 75 R e

(d) ARRIETAITT AT BEETIR A BB e e (E 4]
PRl

(e) ARAZMEFEERETREARKARER
g

() BELEMNN  ARB) 2 EHREBIASLE
AT BE 3 AN A B 55 S 5 R 3R MR iE
R E 2 NEB MR R « &

(o) EFSAUERAEE ZERNEMBEAR -

'EE{E_”\]&/%\i/ﬁEjTZ/ E
FEEEAGI RARI

FIERIOER - BF

EXeEE TRy EREEE - EBTR
& R BRI 8 TE B A AR E 2 BRI RS, ©



Aceso Life Science Group Limited o {Z#4 £ mEH R EB AR QA

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

INTERNAL CONTROL, RISK MANAGEMENT AND
THEIR EFFECTIVENESS

The Board has the overall responsibility for overseeing
sound and effective internal controls and risk management
for the Group to safeguard the interests of its shareholders
and the assets of the Group at all times. In this connection,
an internal control and risk management system has been
established to provide reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance against material misstatement or loss and to
manage or mitigate rather than eliminate risks of failure to
achieve the Group’s business objectives.

The Company has in place an integrated framework of
internal control which is consistent with the principles
outlined in the “Internal Control and Risk Management — A
Basic Framework” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants as illustrated below:

Monitoring o
Ex FrERTE B RS E 2 RIR

A BB EAZ AR PTHE 1T A BB A

Information and
Communication KEmAaEATIRETIFEL

B REA

and external parties

PN

TEERBE

NEPEESE - AR EEREKA

EEeACHAREEBEARBAREE AR
IR IR AR - DABE R RIS HLRRCR 2 7
BmAARE 2EE - ARBBLUL R AR
MEREESE  LEE(MEBYH)RETE
HBRBERBHIBRZBER - LEEIORE (M
IEHERR) REEEBAKE XK B IR Z AR -

AATRHE - EEMEBGHEMA GBS

[AEEEEREREIE — EARRE ] R
ZERE NEREIEAER - FEIBMAn T

Ongoing assessment of control systems’ performance

Internal audits performed by internal audit department

Information in sufficient details is provided to the right person timely

Channels of communication across the Group and with customers, suppliers
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Control Activities
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Channels of communication for people to report any suspected improprieties
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Policies and procedures for ensuring management directives are carried out

KAz Fe

Control activities include performance review, segregation of duties,

authorization, physical count, access control, documentation and records, etc.
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INTERNAL CONTROL, RISK MANAGEMENT AND

WEBEE  REREERARKE)

THEIR EFFECTIVENESS (Continued)

Risk Assessment

[ B FT A

Control Environment
ERIRIE

Identification, evaluation and assessment of the key risk factors affecting the
achievement of the Company's objectives are performed regularly

EHRER - FFENMHEREERARR BRI RRREE

Undertake proper actions to manage the risks so identified

REVRETTENAE AT Z B

Channels to communicate the Company’s commitment to integrity and high
ethical standards to the staff are established

RURBEME TEERARBRNEFHE RS BEFRE

Organizational chart and limits of authority are set and communicated to staff

concerned

B I MR B TEERRZIEE MER
®  Reporting lines in accordance with organizational chart and line of authority

are set

R R BIRIEE K A I E E i

The internal audit department is responsible for conducting
independent reviews of the adequacy and effectiveness of
the Group's internal control and risk management system,
reporting regularly the results to the Board through the
Audit Committee and making recommendations to the
relevant department management for necessary actions.

During the Year, the internal audit department had
conducted reviews on the effectiveness of the internal
control system covering all material factors related to
financial, operational, compliance controls, various functions
for risk management and physical and information security.
Internal control reports containing its findings and results
were reported to the Audit Committee during the Audit
Committee meetings and had been delivered to all Directors
for review.

62 Annual Report £ 47 2020/21

AMFZEFIA T B LR AEE 2 AT
Ko JE g i B | 2 2 SRR M S ROR - MBI B
ZEENESSCHREAERLAMEMBEIIE
BERHEZZRAMEEVETH -

RAEE - AEEZXEPT SR ARREIE S Z
R REMBRBME 28 AHRER-
ZERREEDEAREYREALEZEKR
AE- - HAEABERNBERZ AREZEREER
ENZEECR LNBEREZECER YO W
ERESEIARER -



Aceso Life Science Group Limited o {Z#4 £ mEH R EB AR QA

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

INTERNAL CONTROL, RISK MANAGEMENT AND
THEIR EFFECTIVENESS (Continued)

The internal audit department had reported during the Audit
Committee meetings the key findings identified by the
Company's external auditors in respect of the Group's
internal controls and discussed findings and actions or
measures taken in addressing those findings. The Company
considers the internal control systems and risk management
were effective during the Year. No material issues on the
Group's internal control system have been identified by the
Group's internal audit department and the Company’s
external auditors during the Year which required significant
rectification measures.

MODEL CODE FOR DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of the Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code") set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own
code of conduct for Directors’ securities transactions. The
Company has made specific enquiry to all Directors and all
Directors confirmed that they have fully complied with the
Model Code for the Year.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Chan Lai Ping was appointed as a company secretary on
1 February 2019. Ms. Chan is a solicitor qualified to practise
in Hong Kong and a member of The Law Society of Hong
Kong. She is also a consultant of a law firm in Hong Kong.
Ms. Chan has many years of experience in advising on
corporate finance, mergers and acquisitions, corporate
governance, regulatory and compliance matters. Prior to
joining the Company, she was the company secretary and
general counsel of China Shandong Hi-Speed Financial
Group Limited, a company whose shares are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 412). Ms.
Chan has a bachelor of laws degree and a postgraduate
certificate in laws from The University of Hong Kong. She
also has a master of corporate finance degree from The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University.

During the Year, Ms. Chan has received no less than 15
hours of relevant professional training.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board is committed to maintaining high degree of
transparency to ensure that the investors and the
Shareholders receive accurate, comprehensive and timely
information of the Group by publication of announcements,
circulars, interim and annual reports. All shareholders’
communications are also available on the Company’s
website.

The annual general meeting of the Company provides a
useful forum for Shareholders to exchange views with the
Board. All Directors will make an effort to attend and the
external auditor is also available at the annual general
meeting to address Shareholders’ queries. In case of any
extraordinary general meeting to approve a connected
transaction or any other transaction that is subject to
independent Shareholders’ approval, members of the
independent Board committee will also make an effort to
attend to address Shareholders’ queries.

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, all votes of the
Shareholders at general meetings would be taken by poll.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS
Shareholders’ right to convene extraordinary general
meeting

Pursuant to article 58 of the Articles, an extraordinary general
meetings of the Company (the "EGM”) shall be convened
on the requisition of any one or more Shareholder(s) (the
"Requisitionist(s)”) holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company.

The Requisitionist(s) shall have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary of the
Company, to require an EGM to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition,
and the EGM shall be held within two months after the
deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one days of such
deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting,
the Requisitionist(s) may do so in the same manner, and shall
be entitled to reimbursement of all reasonable expenses
incurred by the Requisitionist(s).

Putting enquiries to the Board

To ensure effective communication between the Board and
the Shareholders, the Company has adopted a shareholders’
communication policy (the “Policy”), which is available on
the website of the Company. Under the Policy, information
of the Group shall be communicated to the Shareholders
mainly through annual general meetings, extraordinary
general meetings, financial reports, and its corporate
communications and other corporate publications on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
Shareholders may at any time make a request for the
Company's information to the extent that such information is
publicly available. Any such questions shall be first directed
to the Company Secretary:
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (Continued)
Putting enquiries to the Board (Continued)

By post

Rooms 2501-2509, 25/F

Shui On Centre

6-8 Harbour Road, Wanchai Hong Kong

By email
jovey.chan@acesogrouphk.com

Shareholders may also directly raise questions during the
Shareholders’ meetings.

Putting forward proposals at Shareholders’ meeting

Shareholders shall follow Article 58 of the Articles for
including a resolution at any general meeting. The
requirements and procedures are set out above in the
paragraph headed “Shareholders’ right to convene
extraordinary general meeting”.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company believes that maintaining a high level of
transparency is a key to enhance investor relations. It is
committed to a policy of open and timely disclosure of
corporate information to its shareholders and public
investors. The Company updates the Shareholders on its
latest business developments and financial performance
through its annual and interim reports. The website of the
Company (http://www.acesogrouphk.com) has provided an
effective communication platform to the public and the
Shareholders.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There were no changes in the constitutional documents of
the Company during the Year. An up to date version of the
Articles is available on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange.
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The directors of the Company present their annual report
and the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. As at the
date of this annual report, its subsidiaries are principally
engaged in (i) money lending; (ii) securities investment; (iii)
provision of commodities and securities brokerage and other
financial services; (iv) asset management; (v) property leasing;
(vi) rental and trading of construction machinery; and (vii)
bioscience. The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set
out in note 18 to the consolidated financial statements for
the Year.

BUSINESS REVIEW
A review of the Group'’s financial and business
performance

A review of the Group's business and the analysis using the
financial key performance indicators are set out on pages 9
to 26 of this annual report under the paragraphs headed
“Business Review” and "Financial Review” in the section
headed “Management, Discussion and Analysis” of this
annual report. For the Year, the Group had incurred a loss
attributable to the owners of the Company of approximately
HK$376 million (2020: loss attributable to the owners of
approximately HK$284 million). The gearing ratio as at 31
March 2021 was approximately 46% (31 March 2020: 41%).
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Environmental, Social and Governance

The Group is committed to operating in compliance with the
applicable environmental laws as well as protecting the
environment by minimising the negative impact of the
Group's existing business activities on the environment.
During the Year, the Group strived to build an environmentally
friendly enterprise with enhancement of energy usage
efficiency, implementation of various emission reduction
measures and improvement in resource usage efficiency.
Details of the environmental policies and performance will
be set out in the Environmental, Social and Governance
Report of the Company which will be available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange on or
before the end of September 2021.

Relationship with Employees, Customers and Suppliers

The Group recognizes the importance of having good
working relationship with its employees. During the Year, the
Group has not experienced any significant problems with its
staff or any significant labour disputes. As at 31 March 2021,
the Group had a total of approximately 175 employees in
Hong Kong and the PRC. The Group's remuneration policies
are formulated according to market practices, experiences,
skills and performance of individual employees and are
reviewed every year. The Group has also adopted a share
option scheme and a share award scheme.

The Group understands the importance of maintaining a
good relationship with its customers and suppliers to its
immediate and long-term business goals. During the Year,
the aggregate revenue and purchases attributable to the
Group'’s five largest customers and suppliers were
approximately 15% and 87% of the Group's total revenue
and purchases respectively. As at 31 March 2021, the
majority of the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers
have a length of relationship with the Group for more than
10 years.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Compliance with laws and regulations with significant
impact

Based on the best knowledge of the Directors, the Group
has complied in all material respect with laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the Group.

Principal risks and Uncertainties

The Group identified and determined the major risks which
may affect the operations results and financial conditions of
the Group through risk management process, which
including the following:

Risk in delay or default of payment in the Group’s money
lending business

As at 31 March 2021, the outstanding loan receivables of the
money lending business of the Group (net of impairment)
was approximately HK$605 million, representing
approximately 10% of the total assets of the Group. Any
delay or default in payment of the loans will have an adverse
impact on the Group's working capital, cash flow and
subsequently the profits of the Group.

To manage such risk, the Group requires borrowers to
provide appropriate security and closely monitors the loan
receivable collection cycle from time to time to ensure full
and timely collection of the outstanding amounts due from
the borrowers. The Group will assess and decide to enforce
the security provided by the borrowers or take legal actions
as appropriate. All exposures are subject to regular review
and assessment for possible impairment.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Principal risks and Uncertainties (Continued)
Compliance risk

The Group operates financial services business through
subsidiaries with appropriate licenses to conduct regulated
activities, insurance agency and money lending. During the
course of providing such financial services, the Group would
be exposed to compliance risk, including the risk of legal
liability, being subject to regulatory proceedings, disciplinary
action, or loss of property or business reputation arising from
violation of laws, regulations and rules due to the operation
and management or practices of the Group or its personnel.
In order to effectively control compliance risk, the Group has
put in place a practicable compliance management system
and provided resources and support to develop lawful and
compliance operations of the Group.

Financial risk

The Group's diversified business is exposed to a variety of
risks, such as market risks, credit risk and liquidity risk.
Further details of the financial risk management objectives
and policies are set out in note 3 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated
statement of comprehensive income for the Year on pages
99 and 100 of this annual report respectively.

No final dividend was recommended by the Directors for the
Year (2020: Nil).
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 March 2021, the Company'’s reserves available for
distribution amounted to approximately HK$2,847 million
(2020: HK$2,981 million).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group are set out in note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements for the Year.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movement of share capital of the Company are set
out in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements for
the Year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Articles and the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands,
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a
pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 278
of this annual report.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities
during the Year.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this
annual report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Xu Haiying
Dr. Zhiliang Ou, J.P. (Australia)
Mr. Fok Chi Tak

Non-Executive Directors

Dr. Wang Yu (appointed on 18 August 2020)
Dr. Li Yao (appointed on 18 August 2020)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Chan Ming Sun, Jonathan
Mr. Lam Kwan Sing
Mr. Lee Chi Hwa Joshua

According to the Articles, Mr. Fok Chi Tak, Mr. Lam Kwan
Sing and Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan shall retire and being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.
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DIRECTORS SERVICE CONTRACTS

Except Mr. Fok Chi Tak, the executive Director, all Directors
has entered into a service contract or a letter of appointment
with the Company for a term of three years, which can be
terminated by not less than three months’ notice in writing
served by either party on the other. No Director proposed
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting
has a service contract with any company in the Group which
is not determinable by the Group within one year without
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has
confirmed their independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Board considers all of the independent
non-executive Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as provided in the paragraph headed “Connected
Transaction” below, no other transaction, arrangement or
contract of significance to which the Company, its ultimate
holding company, any of its fellow subsidiaries or
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time
during the Year.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as provided in the paragraph headed “Connected
Transaction” below, at no time during the year under review
was the Company, its controlling shareholders, holding
companies, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a
party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate,
and neither the Directors nor the chief executive, nor any of
their spouses or children under the age of 18, had any right
to subscribe for the securities of the Company, or had
exercised any such right.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 March 2021, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company in Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO), as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code, were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares and underlying shares

of the Company
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B ROKEBRDPEE ZEDZRKXR

RZZEZ—F=RA=+—H EERAQEE
ETRABRARAKEBE ZE(FERE
HREEERMEXVE) 2k - HERHD RE
BER  BEBERARERES KRG KRGIE 352
BARNRIEFES Mz AR RIREIZR
EFRSITANERABI NIz Em AR
U

RELBDEBERREBRG ZHR

Approximate

Number of percentage of

Name of Director/ Number of underlying Total total issued

chief executive Capacity Nature of interest Shares held Shares held interests  share capital

HE BT

-4 gD FiisaE BB

FETRABHE 51 EEME #E RHEE R BABSH

(Note 1)

(P&E1)

Fok Chi Tak Beneficial owner Personal interest 60,871,152 - 60,871,152 0.88%
EEE EanlAA (EPN-£

Xu Haiying Beneficial owner Personal interest 733,752 - 733,752 0.01%
HeE EnlEBA (BN 3

Zhiliang Ou Beneficial owner Personal interest 733,752 - 733,752 0.01%
B EanlAA (EPN-£

Chan Ming Sun Jonathan Beneficial owner Personal interest 733,752 - 733,752 0.01%
557404 EnlEBA (BN 3

Lam Kwan Sing Beneficial owner Personal interest 733,752 - 733,752 0.01%
WEM EanlAA (EPN-£

Lee Chi Hwa Joshua Beneficial owner Personal interest 733,752 - 733,752 0.01%

FEE

ExlEEA

EARES
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS (Continued)

Long positions in ordinary shares and underlying shares
of the Company (Continued)

Note:

1. The percentage of shareholding is calculated on the basis of
6,931,886,805 Shares in issue as at 31 March 2021.

Other than as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2021, none of
the Directors or chief executives of the Company had any
interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE AWARD

SCHEME

a. Share Option Scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme which

was adopted by the Shareholders at the annual general

meeting of the Company held on 25 September 2015

and remains valid for a period of 10 years commencing
on 25 September 2015 (the “Share Option Scheme”).
The major terms of the Share Option Scheme are set

out below:

(i)

The purpose is to provide incentives to the
participants.

The participants includes any full-time or part-time
employees, executives and officers of the
Company and any of its subsidiaries (including
executive directors, non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors of the
Company and any of its subsidiaries) and business
consultants and legal and other professional
advisors of the Company or its subsidiaries which,
in the opinion of the Board, has or had made
contribution to the Group.

The maximum number of Shares in respect of
which options might be granted under the Share
Option Scheme must not exceed 30% of the
issued share capital of the Company from time to
time. The number of Shares issued and to be
issued in respect of which options granted and
may be granted to any individual in any 12-month
period is not permitted to exceed 1% of the
Shares in issue at any point in time, without prior
approval from the Company’s shareholders.
Options granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive Director in excess of
0.1% of the Company's share capital or with a
value in excess of HK$5 million must be approved
in advance by the Company’s shareholders.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE AWARD
SCHEME (Continued)

a.

78

Share Option Scheme (Continued)

(iv)

(vi)

In relation to each grantee of the options granted
under the Share Option Scheme, the right of the
grantee to exercise the option shall be in
accordance with the terms of the Share Option
Scheme and the period to be notified by the
Board to each grantee which shall not exceed 10
years from the date upon which the options is
deemed to be granted and accepted.

The exercise price of an option will be determined
by the Board and will not be less than the highest
of: (1) the closing price of the Share on the date of
grant; (2) the average closing price of the Share for
the five business days immediately preceding the
date of grant; and (3) the nominal value of the
Share.

A consideration of HK$1 is payable on acceptance
of the offer of grant of options.

Share Award Scheme

The Company has adopted a share award scheme (the
“Share Award Scheme”) on 27 September 2013 and the
scheme shall be valid and effective for a term of ten

years commencing from 27 September 2013. The major

terms of the Share Award Scheme are set out below:

(i)

The purpose is to recognise the contributions by
certain employees of the Group and to give
incentives to retain employees and to attract
suitable talents for the continual operation and
future development and expansion of the Group.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE AWARD
SCHEME (Continued)
b. Share Award Scheme (Continued)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

The participants include any individual being a
director (including executive director, non-
executive director and independent non-executive
director), employee, officer, agent or consultant of
the Company or any of its subsidiaries or any other
person as determined by the Board who the Board
considers, in its absolute discretion, have
contributed or will contribute to the Group.

The aggregate value of the Shares which may be
issued to any individual at any one time shall not
exceed HK$5 million as at the date of such award
granted under the Share Award Scheme. The
number of Shares to satisfy the awards granted
shall be allotted and issued by the Board by
obtaining a separate Shareholders’ approval at a
general meeting of the Company or utilising the
general mandate granted by the Shareholders at a
general meeting of the Company from time to
time.

In relation to each grantee of the awards granted
under the Share Award Scheme, the awards shall
vest in a period to be determined by the Directors
where the period must be at least six months, save
for awards granted to employees of the Group.

The number of shares to be granted will be
determined by the Board by reference to: (1)
monthly salary of eligible employee; (2) the
average closing price of the share for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of
grant; and (3) duration of employment of eligible
employee.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE AWARD
SCHEME (Continued)
c. Schemes adopted by HTICI

HTICI, the non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company and whose shares are listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1341), has adopted a share
option scheme and a share award scheme on 23
October 2015 and 24 April 2021 respectively. For details
of the schemes adopted by HTICI, please refer to the
2020/21 annual report published by HTICI.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Details of the equity-linked agreements entered into during
the Year or subsisted at the end of the Year are set out
below:

Convertible Notes

On 5 March 2020, Hao Tian Media & Culture Company
Limited (“Hao Tian Media & Culture”, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company), as purchaser and the Company
entered into a sale and purchase agreement with China
Animation Holding (BVI) Limited (“China Animation (BVI)", a
wholly-owned subsidiary of CA Cultural Technology Group
Limited) as vendor, pursuant to which Hao Tian Media &
Culture acquired from China Animation (BVI) 50% of the
issued shares of Success View Global Limited (“Success
View") for a consideration of HK$100,000,000 which was
satisfied by the Company issuing the zero coupon
convertible notes in the principal amount of HK$100,000,000
due 2023 (the “"Convertible Notes”) to China Animation (BVI)
upon completion of the acquisition on 26 March 2020. A
maximum of 400,000,000 Shares will be allotted and issued
to China Animation (BVI) if the conversion rights attached to
the Convertible Notes are exercised in full at the conversion
price of HK$0.25 per conversion share. As of the date of this
annual report, the outstanding principle amount of the
Convertible Notes is HK$30,000,000 and a total of
120,000,000 new Shares shall be allotted and issued upon
full exercise of the conversion rights attached thereto. For
details, please refer to the announcements of the Company
dated 5 March 2020 and 26 March 2020 and note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements.

80  Annual Report %47 2020/21

BRETTEIR RGO EBTE (F)
c. ERREBEBRRERMZTE

RAREEZEMBRARIZREBREKIRE
(KRGO AR R AT L - BRGRSE - 1341)
ENRR_FE—AFT+AZ+T=AR=Z
Z—FMOA =+ B RAIERER S &R
DERENETEl - BEAR KB EZRINE RN
ZETEIFE - 2R RRERERRE T
B BT/~ —FFRo

JIR R 84 175 =%

RAFRE R RNAFE A REFE 2 B
Wi IREIT

B RE

R-ZE-ZEF=ARH 2XREEMLAERA
al([RREREUE] RARZ2ENBAR -
ERBR)RANGHEEHEEEH(RBEK
S)BERAG(EZERS(RBEXS)] #E
MAERHEEBBR AR ZE2ENB AR © 1A
BRI BEEWE - Bt - R REEUERE
EYE(ABREZS) WEISRIKBER QA
(M8V& 1) B 31T 2 50% + .1 100,000,000
BITERARAIRN-_E_EF=A-+ 8%
R ERREEYE(RBREXS)BITAEE
#100,000,000 8 TR S =FRHHrTE
BARRER ([T HRRRE ] B o fMrel Ak
BT R RER S RES R A B 0.25758
TLEEITR - A& % G B K& #1T7 400,000,000
B TEESHE(RBREXS) - HEAFR
HHL - TR R I% 2 RIR AN 4 %84 30,000,000
BT 2EITEEM S 2 K i e A Al 3
%174 $£120,000,000 A% ¥ A% 10 - B AAFFIBERES
BMARRIMTERARA-S_EF=ARARAK
TECEF A+ RNBZREURERETE
HRARMIFESS -



EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS (Continued)
Options

(i)

Call options granted to Vandi

In July 2016, the Company, Hao Tian Management
(Hong Kong) Limited ("HTM"), a subsidiary of the
Company, and Vandi Investments Limited (“Vandi"), as
the investor, entered into a call option deed, pursuant
to which the Company grants Vandi an option (the
"Vandi Call Option(s)”) to, require the Company to allot
and issue new Shares (the “Vandi Option Share(s)”) to
Vandi at the price of HK$0.8 per Vandi Option Share.
The subscription money for the Vandi Option Shares
may be satisfied by way of, inter alia, transferring to the
Company relevant number of shares in HTM. Following
the issue of bonus shares by the Company in 2017, the
option price of the Vandi Call Options was adjusted to
HK$0.69 per Vandi Option Share and the number of
Vandi Option Shares falling to be issued upon exercise
of the Vandi Call Options have been adjusted to
454,930,000. As of the date of this annual report, none
of the subscription rights attaching to the Vandi Call
Options has been exercised by Vandi. For more details,
please refer to the announcements of the Company
dated 22 May 2016, 31 May 2016, 14 July 2016, 21 July
2016 and 25 July 2017 and the circular of the Company
dated 28 June 2016.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS (Continued)
Options (Continued)

(ii)

Share options granted to Co-High

In the year 2020, the Group has been actively seeking
opportunities to diversify its businesses and to expand
its businesses into bioscience industry. By partnering
with Co-High Investment Management Limited (“Co-
High”), the Group can tap into the bioscience industry.
Apart from forming a joint venture, the Company and
Co-High entered into a conditional option deed (the
"Share Option Deed”) on 9 July 2020 in respect of the
grant of the 609,188,681 options (the “Co-High Share
Option(s)"”) to Co-High for subscription of an aggregate
of 609,188,681 new Shares (the “Co-High Option
Share(s)”) at the initial exercise price of HK$0.25 per
Co-High Option Share (subject to adjustments) during
the period commencing from the date of the Share
Option Deed and ending on the third anniversary of
that date. The Share Option Deed, the grant of Co-
High Share Options and the issue of the Co-High
Option Shares were approved by the Shareholders at
an extraordinary general meeting held on 3 September
2020 and the other conditions precedent were also
fulfilled. As of the date of this annual report, none of
the subscription rights attaching to the Co-High Share
Options has been exercised by Co-High. For more
details, please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated 5 June 2020 and 3 September 2020,
the circular of the Company dated 14 August 2020.

Share Option Scheme and Share Award Scheme

The Company has adopted a share option scheme on 25

September 2015 and a share award scheme on 27

September 2013, respectively. Particulars of the schemes are

set

out in the section headed “Share Option Scheme and

Share Award Scheme”.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION

Subscription of new Shares

On 24 July 2020, the Company entered into the subscription
agreement with Team Success Venture Holdings Limited (the
“Subscriber”), pursuant to which the Subscriber subscribed
for and the Company allotted and issued 200,000,000 new
Shares at the price of HK$0.25 for each new Share (the
“Subscription”). The Shares were allotted and issued
pursuant to the specific mandate granted by independent
Shareholders on 18 September 2020.

The Subscriber is wholly-owned by Ms. Li Shao Yu, a
controlling shareholder of the Company, who together with
her associates, holds 3,215,627,115 Shares, representing
approximately 52.79% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the date of the subscription agreement.
Hence, the Subscriber is a connected person of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, and the
Subscription constitutes a connected transaction for the
Company. For details, please refer to the announcements of
the Company dated 24 July 2020, 18 September 2020 and
5 October 2020 and the circular of the Company dated
1 September 2020 respectively.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The significant related party transactions entered into by the
Group during the Year set out in note 44 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 March 2021, so far as is known to the Directors or
chief executives of the Company, the following persons
(other than a Director or chief executives of the Company)
had interests or short positions of 5% or more in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company which were recorded
in the register of substantial shareholders maintained under
Section 336 of the SFO or had otherwise notified to the
Company:

FERRRERARGREBRODTES
ZHERRAR

R-ZE-_—F=A=1+—H REFHLLQF
EE2ITBABMRA A NAL(EFHARAE
ZITHABRRIN RARE Rt 548 B8 B fn A
BHESHIIA L EIRE - BEAERIRE
ERBENRIEES R EIRDIFEB6GERERF
BEZTERRECMAXCAITMEAAT]

Approximate
Number of Number of percentage of
ordinary Shares underlying Total total issued
Name of Shareholder held Shares held  Capacity interests  share capital
HERT
FEEER Frifs 1 RE2E
RERE/ 8 A ROBE 56 R BHEDH
(Note 1)
(1)
Li Shao Yu ("Ms. Li") (Note 2) 3,364,748,773 - Interest of controlled 3,504,283,115 50.55%
20F(( L) (HF2) corporations
S VNI B
139,534,342 - Beneficial owner
EREAA
Asia Link Capital Investment 3,087,510,773 - Beneficial owner 3,087,510,773 44 54%
Holdings Limited (" Asia Link") EREAA
(Note 2)
THEEERARAR ([RH])
(M&E2)
Huang Shiying (Note 3) 800,000,000 - Interest of controlled 800,000,000 11.54%
% (e 3) corporations

g NGl 3
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND FERRRAQATRGREBRG T HESE
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING ZREBRKRRE (&)
SHARES OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Approximate

Number of Number of percentage of

ordinary Shares underlying Total total issued

Name of Shareholder held Shares held  Capacity interests  share capital

HERT

FEEER e RE2E

BRREEE,/ 48 B RG®E 56 At BABEDL

(Note 1)

(M)

Huang Tao (Note 3) 800,000,000 - Interest of controlled 800,000,000 11.54%
ELIGER)) corporations

SEHARER

Century Golden Resources 800,000,000 - Beneficial owner 800,000,000 11.54%
Investment Co., Ltd. ERBEA

("Century Golden") (Note 3)
Century Golden Resources

Investment Co., Ltd.
([ Century Golden]) (Fi3E3)

China Construction Bank - 454,930,000 Interest of controlled 454,930,000 6.56%
Corporation corporation
("China Construction Bank”) REHIARIER
(Note 4)

PERFRERGERAT
(TR BB (H3E4)

Haitong Securities Co., Limited - 1,948,333,333  Security interest 1,948,333,333 28.11%
("HSCL") (Note 5) FEREL

BREFROHBRAFA(GRESR])
(PzE5)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND FERRRAQATRGREBRG T HESE
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING ZREBRKRRE (&)
SHARES OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Approximate

Number of Number of percentage of
ordinary Shares underlying Total total issued
Name of Shareholder held Shares held  Capacity interests  share capital
FERT
g ER iigs2iil RABE
BRR#EE/ 28 8B ROZE 56 @t BHAES
(Note 1)
(P31
Co-High Investment Management - 609,188,681  Beneficial owner 609,188,681 8.79%
Limited (“Co-High") (Note 6) EalEA
NeEEERBRAR(NR])
(MizE6)
Atlantis Capital Group 139,278,000 - Beneficial owner 748,466,681 10.80%
Holdings Limited EREAA
("Atlantis Capital Group”)
(Notes?) - 609,188,681 Interest of controlled
FEEAEEERERAR corporation
(IEEAEE])(H7) Pt UNGIE: £
Liu Yang (Note 8) 139,278,000 - Beneficial owner 748,466,681 10.80%
25 (f3E8) ¥ 7PN
- 609,188,681  Interest of controlled
corporation
REH D Al
Dong Zimeng (Note 9) 5,004,000 - Beneficial owner 614,192,681 8.86%
E18 (M) BERBAA

- 609,188,681  Interest of controlled
corporation
SR VNI Fio
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Notes:

1.

The percentage of shareholding is calculated on the basis of
6,931,886,805 Shares in issue as at 31 March 2021.

These 3,087,510,773 Shares are held directly by Asia Link, which is
beneficially wholly-owned by Ms. Li.

Each of Mr. Huang Shiying and Mr. Huang Tao was deemed to be
interested in 800,000,000 Shares held by Century Golden pursuant to
the SFO by virtue of his controlling interest in Century Golden.

China Construction Bank, through Vandi Investment Limited, which is
its indirect wholly-owned subsidiary, held the call option to require
the Company to issue 454,930,000 Shares (adjusted as result of bonus
issue of the Company as set out in the announcement dated 25 July
2017). Central Huijin Investment Limited held 57.11% of the issued
shares in China Construction Bank.

HSCL, through Haitong International Holdings Limited, which is its
directly wholly-owned subsidiary, held 64.4% of the issued shares in
Haitong International Securities Group Limited, which in turn held
100% of the issued shares in Haitong International Financial Products
(Singapore) Pte. Ltd (“HIFP Singapore”). HIFP Singapore held the
security interest in those 1,948,333,333 Shares.

Co-High has entered into a share option deed with the Company for
the grant of 609,188,681 options to subscribe for 609,188,681 new
Shares at the exercise price of HK$0.25 each.

Atlantis Capital Group owns 60% of the total issued share capital in
Co-High and wholly owns Atlantis Investment Management Limited
("Atlantis Investment”). Therefore, Atlantis Capital Group was
deemed or taken to be interested in the interest in the 609,188,681
Shares held by Co-High and in the 139,278,000 Shares held by
Atlantis Investment by virtue of Part XV of the SFO.

Atlantis Capital Group is accustomed to act in accordance with the
director, Ms. Liu Yang, so Ms. Liu Yang was deemed or taken to be
interested in the interest in the 748,466,681 Shares that Atlantis
Capital Group is interested in by virtue of Part XV of the SFO.

Mr. Dong Zimeng owns 40% of the total issued share capital in Co-
High and was deemed or taken to be interested in the interest in the
609,188,681 Shares held by Co-High by virtue of Part XV of the SFO.

Aceso Life Science Group Limited o =854 @ EHEEEFR A A)

REPORT OF DIRECTORS
ESEHRE

FERRRAQADRORAEBARDHHES
ZEERAR (B)

GEE

1. ERADIBRER ST —F=A=+—HD2 %7
2 6,931,886,805 Bk fi 1 2 EAERTE -

2. % %3,087,510,773 It R R Bk BB 5B - SR Y
MERT2EBEDES °

3. R P B 5% 5T A e EE ST A 19 B Century Golden #
BiERER  REEFRPERD - RESEHERA
# Century Golden FfT £ 800,000,000 % I% 1 # # 5 1

e

4. FEERBTEBEREREKN B QA Vandi
Investment Limited# & ® £ Kk &K 2 7 3 17
454,930,000 B (EE R A-_Z—tF £t A
ZHRBZRAEMFEARRRETARBEITMAE) 2
RIBHE - PRESWEAERBEEATFERBIER
RITE BTN Z57.11% °

5. BREFRBEEE2ENBARESBREBZERER
ARFHEEREREFEEAERATEEHTRNZ
64.4% MEBBEKRESEBEARAAAFAE
Haitong International Financial Products (Singapore)
Pte. Ltd ([HIFP Singapore]) & & B #1715 ° HIFP
Singapore i 1,948,333,333 AR A& 1 H #E A & (R #E % o

6. e B AR AR 37 B AR 2245 3% ) 609,188,681 17
BEARHE - DUREAR0.258 T 2 1T# B 7REE 609,188,681
FRFTARD o

7. E2EAEERENSCBITHRALIE L 60% T2
BREEHEREERARAR([FRRE]) - At -
RIEFESLBPEEGEXVE  O2EANEEREA
s E YRR A = AT 609,188,681 B AR 17 K2 1A PH 2 1%
& FT#% 139,278,000 A% i 10 R B #E %5 o

8. 2EAEEENRBEERRLZETZHSTE &K
BEESMEEEEXVE - BlRLZEWE B
EERTEZE AR E BB 2 748,466,681 AR 19
PHEA R o

9. EFAERENEERTTIRAERE 2 40% @ HIRE

BHEREEIEFEXVE  BEABLBEERNS
FIT#%5 609,188,681 IR0 AR B 5 HE2S ©
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Other than as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2021, the
Company has not been notified by any persons (other than
Directors or chief executives of the Company) who have
interests or short positions in any shares or underlying shares
of the Company, which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be
kept under Section 336 of the SFO.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the Year.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation
available to the Shareholders by reason of their holding of
the Shares.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is
recommended by the Remuneration Committee and
determined by the Board on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are recommended by the
Remuneration Committee and determined by the Board
having regard to the Company's operating results, individual
performance and comparable market standards.

The Company has adopted the Share Option Scheme and

the Share Award Scheme as incentives to the Directors and
eligible employees.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, the aggregate revenue and purchases
attributable to the Group's five largest customers and
suppliers were approximately 15% and 87% of the Group's
total revenue and purchases respectively and the revenue
and purchase attributable to the Group's largest customer
and supplier were approximately 5% and 60% of the Group's
total revenue and purchases respectively.

At no time during the Year did a Director, an associate of a
Director or a shareholder of the Company (which to the
knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
Company's share capital) have an interest in any of the
Group's five largest customers or suppliers.

DIRECTORS’ INDEMNITY

According to the Articles, the Directors for the time being of
the Company shall be indemnified and secured harmless out
of the assets and profits of the Company from and against
all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses
which they or any of them, shall or may incur or sustain by
reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about
the execution of their duty in their respective offices.

The Company has taken out appropriate insurance cover in
respect of legal action against the Directors during the Year.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group did not make any donations to
charitable and non-profit-making organisations.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and to the best knowledge of the Directors, during
the Year, at least 25% of the Company’s issued Shares were
held by the public as required under Rule 8.08 of the Listing
Rules.

AUDITORS

Following the resignation of BDO Limited as the auditor of
the Company on 29 January 2021, ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA
Limited ("ZHONGHUI ANDA") was appointed as the auditor
of the Company on the same day to fill in the vacancy.

Save as disclosed above, there were no other changes in
auditors of the Company during the past three years.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
Year were audited by ZHONGHUI ANDA, whose term of
office will retire at the close of the forthcoming annual
general meeting. A resolution for the re-appointment of
ZHONGHUI ANDA as the auditor of the Company will be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Fok Chi Tak
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 25 June 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

;L

ZHONGHUI

To the Shareholders of Aceso Life Science Group Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Aceso Life Science Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “"Group”) set out
on pages 99 to 277, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2021, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 March 2021, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “"HKICPA") and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

B AR

HIEH LR EEETR A AR
(REIEHBFMALLA R F])
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FZA=ZT - ANEAMBEIORR AR EZA
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ROZHRNGARATRER  UWREAMH
WERME - BRETESABREE -

BFIRR ZFFAMBHRROREBTBGRT
fag((HEGAMAE ) BHN(EBME
HEEANDN([FEREREEL D EEMT S
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18 % B E R

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
"Code"),
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

and we have fulfilled our other ethical

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the
matters described below to be the key audit matters to be
communicated in our report.

92 Annual Report £ 47 2020/21

RRNER

B REBEBFESAMAGEMNCEEET
ERD([BBFALEA ] ETE - BAIEZF
FR T AN EEEEARSE X2 FT
REMBHRRAENEE] Mo IEE—FE
oo RIBEB GRS HMENCERXGHED
BIESTRD (TSR - BB ERE A
EETTAPHEMERERTET  HMHE
& RPMESNEBREERREENS
BPWERIEHER

BREEEH

RETFEISRERMANERHE - Ry
ARG AN BRRNBARA/BEENFIR - &
LEHEERMBABRBEAMHEHRERMLA
ERREITRIEN - AT S8 E L FHEMR
BEBNER - HPEEEATEER/ANAR
AR B EF R o



Aceso Life Science Group Limited o {Z#4 £ mEH R EB AR QA

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Investments in associates
Refer to Note 19 to the consolidated financial statements

The Group tested the amount of investments in associates
for impairment. This impairment test is significant to our
audit because the balance of investments in associates of
HK$1,341,000,000 as at 31 March 2021 is material to the
consolidated financial statements. In addition, the Group's
impairment test involves application of judgement and is
based on assumptions and estimates.

Our audit procedures included, among others:
—  Evaluating the Group's impairment assessment;
— Assessing the financial information of the associates;

— Assessing the competence, independence and integrity
of the external valuer engaged by client and our own
engaged valuer;

—  Obtaining the external valuation reports and meeting
with the external valuer, with the assistance of our own
engaged valuer, to discuss and challenge the valuation
process, methodologies used and market evidence to
support significant judgments and assumptions applied
in the valuation model;

— Checking key assumptions and input data in the
valuation model to supporting evidence; and

—  Checking arithmetical accuracy of the valuation model.
We consider that the Group’s impairment test for

investments in associates is supported by the available
evidence.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Loan receivables

Refer to Note 23 to the consolidated financial statements
The Group tested the amount of loan receivables for
impairment. This impairment test is significant to our audit
because the balance of loan receivables of HK$605,000,000
as at 31 March 2021 is material to the consolidated financial
statements. In addition, the Group’s impairment test involves
application of judgement and is based on estimates.

Our audit procedures included, among others:

— Assessing the Group's procedures on granting credit
limits and credit periods to debtors;

— Assessing the Group's relationship and transaction
history with the debtors;

— Evaluating the Group's impairment assessment and
expected credit loss assessment;

— Assessing ageing of the debts;

— Assessing creditworthiness of the debtors;

—  Checking subsequent settlements from the debtors;
— Assessing the value of the collateral for the debts; and

— Assessing the disclosure of the Group's exposure to
credit risk in the consolidated financial statements.

We consider that the Group's impairment test for loan
receivables is supported by the available evidence.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)
Investment properties
Refer to Note 16 to the consolidated financial statements

The Group measured its investment properties at fair value
with the changes in fair value recognised in the consolidated
profit or loss. This fair value measurement is significant to
our audit because the balance of investment properties of
HK$1,603,000,000 as at 31 March 2021 and the fair value gain
of HK$10,000,000 for the year then ended are material to the
consolidated financial statements. In addition, the Group's
fair value measurement involves application of judgement
and is based on assumptions and estimates.

Our audit procedures included, among others:

— Assessing the competence, independence and integrity
of the external valuer engaged by client and our own
engaged valuer;

— Obtaining the external valuation reports and meeting
with the external valuer, with the assistance of our own
engaged valuer, to discuss and challenge the valuation
process, methodologies used and market evidence to
support significant judgments and assumptions applied
in the valuation model;

— Checking key assumptions and input data in the
valuation model to supporting evidence;

—  Checking arithmetical accuracy of the valuation model;
and

— Assessing the disclosure of the fair value measurement
in the consolidated financial statements.

We consider that the Group's fair value measurement of the
investment properties is supported by the available
evidence.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Refer to Note 36 to the consolidated financial statements

The Group measured its financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss at fair value with the changes in fair
value recognised in the consolidated profit or loss. This fair
value measurement is significant to our audit because the
balance of financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss of HK$741,000,000 as at 31 March 2021 and the fair value
gain of HK$46,000,000 for the year then ended are material
to the consolidated financial statements. In addition, the
Group's fair value measurement involves application of
judgement and is based on assumptions and estimates.

Our audit procedures included, among others:

— Assessing the competence, independence and integrity
of the external valuer engaged by client and our own
engaged valuer;

— Obtaining the external valuation reports and meeting
with the external valuer, with the assistance of our own
engaged valuer, to discuss and challenge the valuation
process, methodologies used and market evidence to
support significant judgments and assumptions applied
in the valuation model;

— Checking key assumptions and input data in the
valuation model to supporting evidence;

—  Checking arithmetical accuracy of the valuation model;
and

— Assessing the disclosure of the fair value measurement
in the consolidated financial statements.

We consider that the Group's fair value measurement of the

financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss is
supported by the available evidence.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all the information in the
Company's annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon. The other information is expected to be made
available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we will not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these consolidated financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements is located at the
HKICPA's website at:

http://www.hkicpa.org.hk/en/standards-and-regulations/
standards/auditing-assurance/auditre/

This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Li Shun Fai

Audit Engagement Director
Practising Certificate Number P05498

Hong Kong, 25 June 2021
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Aceso Life Science Group Limited o {Z#4 £ mEH R EB AR QA

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
mERER

For the year ended 31 March 2021 HE =T = —F=A=+—HIFE

2021 2020
—E--f —B¥HF
Notes HK$'million HK$'million
BisE BEAT BEBT
Revenue WA 5 346 296
Cost of revenue WA 9 (133) (129)
Gross profit EA 213 167
Other income Haug A 6 52 90
Fair value (losses)/gains: NFE(ER), W (101) 147
— investment properties —REWME 10 140
— financial assets at fair value — UAFEFEBEE LA
through profit or loss (“FVTPL") Tﬁ%\ ([AATEEAERE
ﬂ:qu)\TE s EMEE (157) )
— financial liabilities at FVTPL ANFEFEEEEFA
Téiﬁ?’izfﬁﬁﬁ‘lﬁh 46 14
Other (loss)/gains, net Hit (E518),/ Wzt F 58 7 (2) 6
Administrative expenses TR X 9 (155) (187)
Impairment losses: REEE (382) (357)
— property, plant and equipment — ¥ - BERRE 14 (70) -
— intangible assets —®BVEE 17 (28) (86)
— financial assets — S REE (BHEEES)

(expected credit losses) (284) (271)
Share-based payment expenses J//(Hxﬁ}ﬂ/itﬁ 2 45 (49) ()
Share of results of associates DEBE N RIES 19 196 10
Share of results of joint ventures DA B RS 20 92 42
Finance costs BEKAR 10 (187) (183)
Loss before taxation BriRIEE (323) (267)
Income tax expense TS~ 11 (25) (1
Loss for the year FREE (348) (278)
(Loss)/profit for the year EIHER(ER),&H

attributable to:

Equity holders of the Company ARAESEEA (376) (284)

Non-controlling interests IFER B & 28 6
(348) (278)

Loss per share attributable to the RAREREE ARG

equity holders of the Company SER

Basic (HK$ cents) EARGB) 13 (5.73) (4.92)

Diluted (HK$ cents) 5 (BL) 13 (6.33) (4.92)
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Aceso Life Science Group Limited o {Z# 4 il HEBHR A A

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

mEZmEWER

For the year ended 31 March 2021 HE =T = —F=A=+—HIFE

2021 2020
—E-—F T TF
HK$'million  HK$'million
BEBT BEAT
Loss for the year FREE (348) (278)
Other comprehensive income/(loss): HitzmEWz(BR) :
Items that will not be reclassified to TE8EHIHEBm s HE
profit or loss
Fair value gain/(loss) on investments UAEEE BHEE (LA AEM
in equity instruments at fair value 2ENKG (AR FEAERR
through other comprehensive Bt AEMEEKE]) 2
income (“"FVTOCI") BamTERE 2 AT EKE
(B518) 5 7)
Items that may be reclassified to Al E P E B 2 HE
profit or loss
Currencies translation differences BHER Z5 95 (44)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for FREMBEEKE(EE)
_theyearnetoftax i S S 1Y 61
Total comprehensive loss for the year FREHEEEHAZE (248) (329)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income EEFEREE (BR)IRREHE -
for the year attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company RNATHERFEE A (279) (335)
Non-controlling interests FEFE R 31 6
(248) (329)

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive  Lili4r

o)

K

ESELE:

income should be read in conjunction with the

accompanying notes.
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Aceso Life Science Group Limited o {Z#4 £ mEH R EB AR QA

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
B B IR R AR

Asat31 March2021 R-ZE-—F=HA=+—H

Annual Report F % 2020/21

2021 2020
=B —-F —ECTREF
Notes HK$'million HK$'million
BsE BEBT BEBIT
ASSETS EE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - HE LR 14 258 368
Right-of-use assets FREEE 15 33 43
Investment properties = 16 1,603 1,432
Intangible assets mpEE 17 156 186
Investments in associates REE QB 2 E 19 1,341 94
Investments in joint ventures MNEBPEIRE 20 114 451
Financial assets at FVTOCI AT EFEBESLETA 21
HthrmbkaszemEE 466 352
Financial assets at FVTPL WA EFTEBESEETA 22
BansoREE - 175
Loan receivables FEWE = 23 89 89
Finance lease receivables BB EEWFIR 24 3 3
Corporate note receivables U EZEE 25 = 144
Deferred tax assets BRI IBE E 26 69 57
Pledged bank deposits EIHIRITER 27 5 5
Other receivables and deposits Hib W RIB M E 31 2 1
Total non-current assets IRBEEHEE 4,139 3,400
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Aceso Life Science Group Limited o {Z# 4 il HEBHR A A

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
NN S B

Asat 31 March2021 R —ZE-—F=HA=+—H

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
Notes HK$'million HK$'million

B 5T BEBTT BEET
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 28 88 89
Properties under development RO 29 370 -
Trade receivables B G EW I 30 135 61
Other receivables, deposits and HibEWE - 5] e & 31
prepayments TR RIR 42 51
Financial assets at FVTPL A EFE BEELET A 22
BEansemEE 588 199
Loan receivables ERE R 23 516 698
Finance lease receivables BhETHE fE U A 24 4 4
Corporate note receivables R (> S =R 25 69 130
Trusted and segregated bank B RBIRITRP 27
accounts 16 20
Cash and cash equivalents HeREEZEEY 27 198 382
Total currentassets =~~~ aB¥E#@ = 202 1634
Total assets EEHE 6,165 5,034
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EEXFEaE
Equity attributable to equity KATREBRFEA
holders of the Company LR
Share capital N 32 69 61
Reserves B 2,313 2,429
2,382 2,490
Non-controlling interests EIS A gr T 632 6
Total equity R 3,014 2,496
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Aceso Life Science Group Limited o {Z#4 £ mEH R EB AR QA

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
B B IR R AR

Asat31 March2021 R -2 - —F=H=+—H

2021 2020
=B —-F —ET_TF
Notes HK$'million HK$'million
iz BEAT BEET
LIABILITIES =L
Non-current liabilities kFREERE
Lease liabilities HEARE 15 18 28
Deferred tax liabilities FEERIEEE 26 90 63
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 33 915 851
Corporate note payables RN EERE 34 380 475
Convertible note payables JER AR R 35 24 72
Financial liabilities at FVTPL AFEEHE BEEZLETA 36
Emse@aE 628 -
Total non-current liabilities FREBEBEE 2,055 1,489
Current liabilities REBERE
Lease liabilities HEAE 15 11 12
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 33 511 571
Corporate note payables N EEE 34 272 187
Financial liabilities at FVTPL WA EFTEBESEET A 36
BnsorBaE 113 171
Trade payables B 5N IE 37 4 18
Other payables, deposits received HiENZIE  2WETE& & 38
and accruals FEETFIB 164 68
Income tax payables FETPTE R 21 22
Total current liabilities RBEEAE 1,096 1,049
Total liabilities EEHEE 3,151 2,538
Total equity and liabilities ERREEHEE 6,165 5,034

The above consolidated statement of financial position
should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

These consolidated financial statements on pages 99 to 277
have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors on
25 June 2021 and were signed on its behalf.

Fok Chi Tak
EEE
Director

EF

AR A B R O 5 L I — BB

=
s °

FOETEZEAVBERREHESSN =
E-—FRNA-+HREEHUAETIZE  THT
PEBNRKREE -

Chan Ming Sun Jonathan
PR 8% 22
Director

EF
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‘Aceso Life Science Group Limited e {5324 fn EHx SR BB R A A

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 March 2021 HE =T = —F=A=+—HIFE

Attributable to the equity holders of the Company

ARFEEIE AR
Share-based  Convertible Non-
Share Share payment note FVTOCI  Translation  Accumulated Other controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve losses reserve Total interests equity
WATE
HEE
AREHA

HRHFA mak  EpRE
BE RGRE  HREE  FEEE  LacRE  ENRE  ZHER EbRR & ehEs BRSE
HKS'million ~ HKS'milion ~ HKS'miion ~ HKS'milion ~ HKS'milion ~ HKS'milion ~ HK§'milion  HK§'milion ~ HK§'milion  HK§'milion  HKS$'million
BEST  BEST  BEST  BEST  BEET  BEET BEET BEBT BEBT AERT AEERD

At1 April 2019 R-F-AEMA-R 3 4333 1 - (218) 5 (1,703 il 2632 193 2,785
(Loss)/profit for the year FR(EE)/E - - - - - - (284 - (284) 6 (279)
Other comprehensive loss L2 EEE - - - - 0 (44 - - (51) - (51)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) 2/ (§#8) A& - - - - U] (] (284) - (339) 6 (329)

Transactions with equity holders ~ BEHEAARS
Lapse of share options BRERR - - U] - - - - - ) - 1)
Issue of emolument shares EAME KRG - 2 - - - - - - 2 - z
Issue of consideration shares in GNP

relation to the acquisition of the REEARERR

non-controlling interest in a subsidiary 8 176 - - - - - (54) 130 (130) -
Changeinthe Group'sownership ~~ AEERBAKBAZ

interest in existing subsidiaries RERESEY - - - - - - - a 4 2 %
Transfer of fairvalue reseveupon ~— HEMNATFEGFEALE(

disposal of financial assets SAEBRERE 88

at VTOCl BEREYLTERR - - - - ® - 8 - - - -
Issue of convertible notes payable  EFERTAKZE - - - 15 - - - - 15 - 15
R S o m___ I O S U [ sy w0
At 31 March 2020 R=B-8F=f=1-H 61 4,531 - 1 233 (39 (1.979) 13 2490 6 249
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Aceso Life Science Group Limited o =854 @ EHEEEFR A A)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GEERBER

For the year ended 31 March 2021 HE =T = —F=A=+—HIFE

Attributable to the equity holders of the Company

FRAREREARE
Share-based ~ Convertible Non-
Share Share payment note FVTOCI  Translation ~ Accumulated Other controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve losses reserve Total interests equity
WATE
iEE
EBA
HRBFS TER  Eb2E
Ra RGEE  (REE  ZERE UszBE  EARE  EHER HURER @i FERER  BR4E
HKS'million ~ HKS'million ~ HK$'milion ~ HK$'millon ~ HK$'millon ~ HK$'millon ~ HK$'millon ~ HKS'millon ~ HKS'millon ~ HKS'millon ~ HK$'million
BE®n  EE®r  BE®n  BE®r  EBE®n  BE®n BE®n BEMn BEMn BEMn BEER
At 1 April 2020 RZ2-25M0A-A 61 4531 - 15 (233) (39) (1.979) 134 2,490 6 2,496
(Loss)/profitfor the year ER(EE)/BF - - - - - - (376) - (376) 2 (348)
Other comprehensive income E2ENE - - - - 2 95 - - 97 3 100
Total comprehensive loss 2EFRAE - - - - 2 95 (376) - (219) 3 (248)
Transactions with equity holders ~ BERREARS
Issue of placement and subscription ~ E478 RABR (R

shares (notes 32(a) and (b)) (H5E320) R (b)) 6 144 - - - - - - 150 - 150
Issue of shares on conversion of SREMTARZERETRA

convertiole note payables (P 32() 2 35)

(notes 32(c) and 35) 2 52 - (8) - - - - 46 - 46
Issue of share option (note 32(d) BTRIRE (K 32d) - - 3 - - - - - 39 = 39
Employee share awards issued by~ MBAFRTZEERIED

a subsidiary (note 45) (Msta5) - - - - - - - - - 10 10
Re-designation of far value of RREEUASHER AT

repurchase consideration BOREBATE

as a result of early principal

redemption - - - (1) = = = = (1) = (1)
Deemed disposal in a subsidiary RfELE-HHELAM

without loss in controlarising from: I ER T & ETER

REFHIE:

— share swap note 18(c)) — B (K 18000) - - - - - - - (24) (24) 133 109

— share placement (note 18(c)(if) — FRARE (F18(0)i) - - - - - - - (1) (1) 68 67

—issue of convertible note payeble  — KEBANIBHELT

and shares by a subsidiary upon FHERTEREER
acquisition of an associate {3 (i 18(c)ii) &
(note 18(c)(iii) and note 41(a)) HEaa) - - - - - - - 9) ) 263 254

— conversion of convertible note — ARERTRREE

payable (notes 18(c)i) and 35) (3£ 181c)6i) R 35) - - - - - - - (28) (28) 19 [
— acquisition of interest in a subsidiary — FIFEERER
from non-controlling shareholders ~ WEEHBAFES - - - = = = = (1) (1) @) @)
— Contribution from anon-controlling  — 3F2REE &
shareholder - - - - - - - - - 4 4
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, LR L R /S R . A L) DR S .
At 31 March 2021 R-8=-%zf=1-A 69 4721 3 6 (231) 5 (2,355) n 2,382 632 3014
The above consolidated statement of changes in equity _biltsRA S B)A fEERBEN ~ s — R0 -
should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Aceso Life Science Group Limited o {Z# 4 il HEBHR A A

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mERTRER

For the year ended 31 March 2021 HE =T = —F=A=+—HIFE

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-THF
Notes HK$'million HK$'million
i BEBERT BEET
Cash flows from operating activities RE XK FIBRERE
Cash generated from/(used in) SRS (FrA)EE
operations 40 190 (355)
Income tax paid EAPEH (11) Q)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from REEERFBIRERA (RE)
operating activities HE 179 ~ (356)
Cash flows from investing activities IREFEFIEBHEERE
Interest received 2 B 11 1
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE - BE L& #E 2
plant and equipment FTiS K18 4 56
Proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary i+ & B A 7 FT 15 708 - 100
Proceeds from disposal of HENUAFEFEBEZ
financial assets at FVTPL TABRZ eRMEEMGHE - 1,432
Collection of consideration receivable % i8 H & [ff & A &g @
from disposal of subsidiaries JEURAE = 50
Consideration paid for HEREEE QT2 REZENRE
investment in associates - (6)
Consideration paid for investment  FIRALMEZREZBEMNRE
in joint ventures = (126)
Consideration paid for acquisition of UZBEEUR 2 ZEFTRHRE
a corporate note receivable - (157)
Acquisition of financial assets at WEA L TEE AR
FVTOCI FARMEEKZ  @#MEE - (320)
Purchase of property, BAME - BENEE
plant and equipment (15) (36)
Net cash inflow from investing RETEFERERNFE
activities - 994
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Aceso Life Science Group Limited o {Z#4 £ mEH R EB AR QA

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
MERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2021 HE =T = —F=A=+—HIFE

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
Notes HK$'million HK$'million
i BEBERT BEBT
Cash flows from financing activities & ZEFFSRERE
Interest paid EATFE (114) (152)
Lease liabilities paid ENHEERE (11) (1)
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITEEMEHIE 14 32
Repayment of bank borrowings BEIETEE (32) (345)
Proceeds from loans from other HE e s s BRTEIE
financial institutions 200 378
Repayment of loans from other EEEMSREEZER
financial institutions (260) (433)
Repayment of a loan from BEMBRAREEZER
a director of a subsidiary - (10)
Repayment of corporate note BiERENDEEZE
payables (380) -
Proceeds from issue of corporate BTN EZEERIE
note payables - 81
Early principal redemption of REEREMNATBREREERE
convertible note payables 35 (10) -
Contribution from non-controlling FEIEN IR EE
shareholder 4 -
Proceeds from issue of placement BT TR E MR >
and subscription shares: Fr{82iIE :
— of the Company e VNG 150 -
— of a subsidiary of the Company ~ — "2 & — &K B A 7 67 -
Net cash used in acquisition of W RE AN SR B 8 A Al 2 FE1E AR
non-controlling interest in R e -
the Group's subsidiaries (3) (62)
Net cash outflow from RMETHMERSREEE
_ financing activities @375) (522
Net (decrease)/increase in cash HERBESEEBYORD),
and cash equivalents BhnFE (196) 116
Cash and cash equivalents REYZHS MRS EEY
at beginning of year 382 267
Effect of foreign exchange [EREe B
rate changes 12 Q)
Cash and cash equivalents RERZEERALEEY
at end of year 198 382

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be

read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Aceso Life Science Group Limited o {Z# 4 il HEBHR A A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HRR M

For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Aceso Life Science Group Limited (formerly known as
Hao Tian Development Group Limited) (the
"Company”) is an exempted limited liability company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands. Its immediate and
ultimate holding company is Asia Link Capital
Investment Holdings Limited, which is incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands (“BVI"), and the ultimate
controlling shareholder is Ms. Li Shao Yu. The address
of its registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY-1111, Cayman
Islands. The principal place of business in Hong Kong is
Rooms 2501-2509, 25/F, Shui On Centre, 6-8 Harbour
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. The ordinary shares of the
Company are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company and
the principal activities of the Group include: (i) money
lending; (ii) securities investment; (iii) provision of
commodities, futures, securities brokerage and financial
services; (iv) asset management; (v) property leasing; (vi)
rental and trading of construction machinery; and (vii)
property development.

These consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong Dollars ("HK$"”) and rounded to the
nearest million (“million”), unless otherwise stated.
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Aceso Life Science Group Limited o =854 @ EHEEEFR A A)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RREE

For the year ended 31 March 2021 HE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the

presentation of these consolidated financial statements

are set out below. These policies have been

consistently applied to all the years presented, unless

otherwise stated. The consolidated financial statements

are for the Group consisting of the Company and its

subsidiaries.

2.1 Basis of preparation
(a) Changes in accounting policy and
disclosures

(i)

New and amended standards,
improvements and interpretation
adopted by the Group

The following new and amendments
to HKFRSs, improvements and
interpretation have been adopted by
the Group for the first time for the
financial year beginning on or after 1
April 2020:
Amendments to Definition of material
HKAS 1 and HKAS 8
Amendments to Definition of a business
HKFRS 3
Amendments to
HKFRS 9, HKAS 39
and HKFRS 7

Interest rate benchmark
reform

Revised conceptual
framework to
financial reporting

The amendments listed above did not
have any impact on the amounts
recognised in prior periods and are not
expected to significantly affect the
current or future periods.

2

TEEHBRUE

2INEEHAMHRRAEA 2 ERER
BEREIIINT - RIESBHRA - BRIZF
BREERERNRAEZINFE - B
BHAEANAKE (RARE LEHE
NEIMERK) ©

21 mEEE
(a) BifBERZBERFKE

() ANEBERP AT RAEE
FIER - BOE R FE

REBER T -ZTFM
A—Bsz&#Hn K
FEEREWNATHETS
VBB S R R H B
3] Bt R

BREIERE 1Y EALTE
REBGHER
F8T T
BAM RS ER
FIT2ET
REMEREER
F9%  BAGH
R
BEMBRE
BAET% 73]
BENBERE
BAER

FHLER

MEEEYE

EIRERT B 1 B R
2R BEMTE A
HI & $ 2 AT SOR SR HE
EREBATE -
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Aceso Life Science Group Limited o {Z# 4 il HEBHR A A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HRR M

For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
(a) Changes in accounting policy and
disclosures (Continued)

(ii)

New and amended standards,
interpretations and revised framework
that have been issued but were not yet
effective

Effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 April 2021

Amendments to COVID-19-related rent
HKFRS 16 concessions
Amendments to Interest Rate Benchmark
HKFRS4, 7,9, and Reform
16 and HKAS 39

Effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 April 2022

Amendments to HKAS 16 Proceeds before intended
use

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the
conceptual framework

Amendments to HKAS 37 Cost of fulfilling a contract

Annual improvements to
HKFRS standards
2018-2020

110 Annual Report ¥ 2020/21

2

TESHBRERBEE)

2.1 wREEE(E)
(a) EBFBEZEBRFEE)

(i)  ERMAEEARERZFTET
RAEEETER - 2 FERAE
1ERTHER

R-E-—FPA—Hsk
Z B FB e ER AR

EEUBELE  COVD-19%E
F$2ET  BRLES
Eaeies  HEmeRE

F45ETH
FIRRE 16T
IREBEHER
EXL A

R-E-_—FPHA—A%
2B Rz 2T HIR AR

BAERE 165 fERERGA

LT LFRHE
ERAMBREEY  HHER
FIT2ET ;31
BEGTHENE R BTANZ
ba KA

BERKREE
—E-\f%
ZEIEFY
FENE



Aceso Life Science Group Limited o =854 @ EHEEEFR A A)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RREE

For the year ended 31 March 2021 HE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 TESHBE#ME(E)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 mEEEE)
(a) Changes in accounting policy and (a) EBFfBRZEERFEEE)
disclosures (Continued)
(i) New and amended standards, (i)  EAEME R EZ ZTET
interpretations and revised framework RASIEETER - i BERAE
that have been issued but were not yet 1EATHESR (48)
effective (Continued)
Effective for accounting periods R_E_=ZFMA—-—A%K
beginning on or after 1 April 2023 Zi1&FR 2 R R A R
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts BEIBTEEL RRAY
E17%
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of liabilities BEGHENZE 1R BABENEA
as current or ZIBF] MERIET
non-current E)
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of BAEGHERNE 1R S UREE
Accounting Policies Z{EF]
Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of EEEHENFESS Stttz
Accounting Estimates ZIEF]
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred tax related to BEeEN REE-RS
Assets and Liabilities F1RRET MEER
arising from a Single A (EHEE
Transaction BN
Amendments to HK-int 5 Amendments in relation BERBEST  BEeHEL
to Amendments to ZIBF] F1RBHT
HKAS 1 bl
Effective for accounting periods REFETEBHs 2ERAG 2
beginning on or after a date to be @ =t HAME AR

determined

HKFRS 10 and Sale or Contribution EAUBREES REFEHE
HKAS 28 of Assets between F10HREE YN
Amendment an Investor and its SHEBFERE AEPEY

Associate or Joint ZIBF] Mz EEE
Venture EIRA

There are no other standards that are 1 4 EL At i R A R FE EA

not yet effective and that would be 0 E B SR SRR S B ]

expected to have a material impact to HAEBERABERER 5iE
the Group in the current or future RE AR KR -

reporting periods and on foreseeable
transactions.

The Group does not intend to early NEEE SR ZELELE
adopt these standards before their B 7 4 H EIRTIR B4R
respective effective dates. AR o
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity

accounting

(a)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including
structured entities) over which the Group has
control. The Group controls an entity where
the Group is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power to direct the
activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which control
is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used
to account for business combinations by the
Group (Note 2.3).

Intercompany transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between
Group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred asset.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and
equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
statement of comprehensive income,
statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of financial position
respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2021 & =T = —

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity

accounting (Continued)
(b) Associates

(c)

Associates are all entities over which the
Group has significant influence but not
control or joint control. This is generally the
case where the group holds between 20%
and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in
associates are accounted for using the equity
method of accounting (see (d) below), after
initially being recognised at cost.

Joint arrangements

Under HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements
investments in joint arrangements are
classified as either joint operations or joint
ventures. The classification depends on the
contractual rights and obligations of each
investor, rather than the legal structure of the
joint arrangement. The Group has joint
ventures only.

Interests in joint ventures are accounted for
using the equity method (see (d) below), after
initially being recognised at cost in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

B ISR R MR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B HRR M

For the year ended 31 March 2021 H{Z =T =

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

—F=A=T—HILFE

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (Continued)
(d) Equity method

Under the equity method of accounting, the
investments are initially recognised at cost
and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group's share of the post-acquisition profits
or losses of the investee in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, and the Group's
share of movements in other comprehensive
income of the investee in consolidated
statement of other comprehensive income.
Dividends received or receivable from
associates and joint ventures are recognised
as a reduction in the carrying amount of the
investment.

Where the Group's share of losses in an
equity-accounted investment equals or
exceeds its interest in the entity, including
any other unsecured long-term receivables,
the Group does not recognise further losses,
unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the
Group and its associates and joint ventures
are eliminated to the extent of the Group's
interest in these entities. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred. Accounting policies of
equity-accounted investees have been
changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted
investments is tested for impairment in
accordance with the policy described in Note
2.11.

114 Annual Report 4 4 2020/21

2

TESHBRERBEE)

22 FEREREZSTTEEZFRANGE)

(d)

i

RIFES A RENBIE
PRANHERR - R R B AR SR
EREREALRKEDHRE
HRzZWEREBLD  ARNEKEE
Ht 2 HWaRED N EE D
EREHRZHMEEKEE
B - EWESEWEE AR ME
LBhEZEEHR/RERTA
(EEEN

EARENHESARKRELZ
BEASFNABRERNZER
Z Wz (B I (E ) A 4R 4 4R
RHERKSIR) - AXKRETE
BRE—TER  FRIFEDK
Hit B AR T HIER IR -

AREREBERARAED

KENZEERZEORRY
o REREBIT AL -
BRIER ZIRHAEREERE
ZER - WMEBE B AR
BREHR 2 BREELE
B - DATELR B SR [ PR AR IR
REM—2-

BFHARKE Z REERIEN
2. 1 FT i B ETTRUBERIE, ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2021 HE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity

TESHBRERBEE)

2.2 HEAEREREZESTEEZFER(E)
accounting (Continued)

(e) FiEHEZZE

(e) Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-
controlling interests that do not result in a
loss of control as transactions with equity
owners of the Group. A change in ownership
interest results in an adjustment between the
carrying amounts of the controlling and non-
controlling interests to reflect their relative
interests in the subsidiary. Any difference
between the amount of the adjustment to
non-controlling interests and any
consideration paid or received is recognised
in a separate reserve within equity
attributable to owners of the Company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or
equity account for an investment because of
a loss of control, joint control or significant
influence, any retained interest in the entity is
remeasured to its fair value with the change
in carrying amount recognised in
consolidated statement of profit or loss. This
fair value becomes the initial carrying amount
for the purposes of subsequently accounting
for the retained interest as an associate, joint
venture or financial asset. In addition, any
amounts previously recognised in the
consolidated statement of other
comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. This may mean that amounts
previously recognised in the consolidated
statement of other comprehensive income
are reclassified to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss or transferred to another
category of the consolidated statement of
changes in equity as specified/permitted by
applicable HKFRSs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B HRR M

For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (Continued)
(e) Changes in ownership interests (Continued)

If the ownership interest in a joint venture or
an associate is reduced but joint control or
significant influence is retained, only a
proportionate share of the amounts
previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss where appropriate.

2.3 Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for all business combinations, regardless
of whether equity instruments or other assets are
acquired. The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:

fair values of the assets transferred

° liabilities incurred to the former owners of
the acquired business

®  equity interests issued by the group
e fair value of any asset or liability resulting
from a contingent consideration

arrangement, and

e fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in
the subsidiary.

116  Annual Report ¥ 2020/21

2

FTESTHEBRE (B)
22 BARERERESHEBEZFRI(E)
(e) FTEEEEREE(E)
MREELERBERRZAT
EEERAFARERE LR
EHESEATE S BIEAR
L B 551 o B A B 4th 2 T UK
mERZEBEHNEETER
(a0@Em) -
2.3 ¥EBE6t
WeEeHEAR AR B EEA G

MAmASNEES TARKEMBE
E - W B AR MEERERR

s MEREEINTE

s FMUEBRBABEAAELEZA

&

o REREEITZE

s FAREBLHELEZEMEE
SREZRFE K&

o MRHBRARZEMFERER
B2 RTE-



Aceso Life Science Group Limited o =854 @ EHEEEFR A A)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e A AR ML

For the year ended 31 March 2021 HE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FTESTHEBRE (B)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Business combinations (Continued)

2.3 EBEH(E)

|dentifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are, with limited exceptions,
measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. The Group recognises any non-
controlling interest in the acquired entity on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate
share of the acquired entity’s net identifiable
assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

The excess of the:
° consideration transferred,

e amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquired entity, and

e  acquisition-date fair value of any previous
equity interest in the acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts
are less than the fair value of the net identifiable
assets of the business acquired, the difference is
recognised directly in profit or loss as a bargain
purchase.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3

2.4

Business combinations (Continued)

Where settlement of any part of cash
consideration is deferred, the amounts payable in
the future are discounted to their present value as
at the date of exchange. The discount rate used is
the entity’s incremental borrowing rate, being the
rate at which a similar borrowing could be
obtained from an independent financier under
comparable terms and conditions. Contingent
consideration is classified either as equity or a
financial liability. Amounts classified as a financial
liability are subsequently remeasured to fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages,
the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date.
Any gains or losses arising from such re-
measurement are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries and associates are
accounted for at cost less impairment. Cost
includes direct attributable costs of investment.
The results of subsidiaries and associates are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving dividends
from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary
in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount
in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwill.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 HE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.5

2.6

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to
the chief operating decision maker. The chief
operating decision-maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of
the operating segments, has been identified as
the Board of Directors of the Company that makes
strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation
(a) Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of
each of the Group's entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates
("the functional currency”). The Company's
functional currency is Hong Kong dollar (HK$)
and the consolidated financial statements are
presented in HK$ which is the Group's
presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the
exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions or valuation where items are re-
measured. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are generally recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. They are deferred
in equity if they relate to qualifying cash flow
hedges and qualifying net investment hedges
or are attributable to part of the net
investment in a foreign operation.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 H{Z =T =

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

—#=A=+—AILEE

2.6 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(b) Transactions and balances (Continued)

Foreign exchange gains and losses that
relate to borrowings are presented in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss,
within “finance costs”. All other foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss
on a net basis within “other gains/(losses),

"

net".

Non-monetary items that are measured at
fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value was determined. Translation
differences on assets and liabilities carried at
fair value are reported as part of the fair value
gain or loss. For example, translation
differences on non-monetary assets and
liabilities such as equities held at fair value
through profit of loss are recognised in
statement of profit or loss as part of the fair
value gain or loss and translation differences
on non-monetary assets such as equities
classified as fair value through other
comprehensive income are recognised in
statement of other comprehensive income.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 HE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (Continued)
2.6 Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(c) Group companies

TESHBRERBEE)

2.6 HNEEBRE (4E)
(c) EEALF

The results and financial position of all the
Group entities (none of which has the
currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that
have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(i)  assets and liabilities for each statement
of financial position presented are
translated at the closing rate at the date
of that statement of financial position;

(i) income and expenses for each
statement of profit or loss and
statement of comprehensive income are
translated at average exchange rates
(unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the rate on
the dates of the transactions); and

(i) all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive
income.

On consolidation, exchange differences
arising from the translation of any net
investment in foreign entities, and of
borrowings and other financial instruments
designated as hedges of such investments,
are recognised in consolidated statement of
other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising
on the acquisition of a foreign entity are
treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
entity and translated at the closing rate.

WrESEER(MERAR
BREEBERRZER) 28
ERBRHRENER - HXE
KRG B RAZIN T A BRE
REINEE -

() BUHBHRRKRMINEEN
BEEZMBINRE A
ZWmERBE

(i) BRIZXLEEKERA
S Ko A 32 32 S 15 R
BE(BRIFLFERY
FERZHHRTERZR
AARESEOR EHE
AT WA R BIZR
SAHZEXRBE) &

(i) FIBAMES ZERE
R E b 2 W U R
2
REGEERER  BREBINERE
KRB FBBUARIEEAZS
BEZEHIBE ZEERH A
SR TEEESZIENZENEER
HHMEERERER -

RS E BT EL 258
RAFERES R IR
2 RERBFEAE  LHEKT
Rk -

121

Annual Report F % 2020/21




Aceso Life Science Group Limited o {Z# 4 il HEBHR A A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HRR M

For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.6 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(d) Disposal of foreign operation and partial

disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that
is, a disposal of the Group's entire interest in
a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of control over a subsidiary that includes
a foreign operation, a disposal involving loss
of joint control over a joint venture that
includes a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of significant influence over an
associate that includes a foreign operation),
all of the currency translation differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the owners of the
company are reclassified to consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not
result in the Group losing control over a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
the proportionate share of accumulated
currency translation differences is re-
attributed to non-controlling interests and
are not recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. For all other
partial disposals (that is, reductions in the
Group's ownership interest in associates or
joint ventures that do not result in the Group
losing significant influence or joint control),
the proportionate share of the accumulated
exchange difference is reclassified to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

122  Annual Report 42§ 2020/21

2

TESHBRERBEE)

2.6 SHEBEGE)
(d) HEEBIEBRELHE

REEBINEB (BT EARE
BN gINETS 2 2 A s - X
HEPRREH B EBINER
ZHBRR 2 EHIE - HEW
MREHBEBINERz2AE
EEZHAFEGE  HHES
RREHBEBINER 2B E
RAZBRZEN)E - KT
BB ANEIEABZEBRER
BEZMEERZREN DA

. =N/
ERABEERK -

T #B o hE T & EHAKE KL
EHBREINERZHE AR
2R - AR08 BE
ERBE TR ENRBENIE
EhER MIAERGEEER
REER - BB EMEY L E
(BRI D AR E R E AR A
LehRCMAERES NS
BYAREBREEARE NN
HKREZEHIE)ME - mELHIoE
R EREZREH D BERE
HBank ©



Aceso Life Science Group Limited o =854 @ EHEEEFR A A)
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 HE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FTESTHEBRE (B)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.7 Property, plant and equipment 27 Y% BERREE

Property, plant and equipment (other than art
works) is stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses,
if any. Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.
Cost may also include transfers from equity of any
gains or losses on qualifying cash flow hedges of
foreign currency purchases of property, plant and
equipment. Art works are stated at historical costs
less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of any
component accounted for as a separate asset is
derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to the statement of
profit or loss during the financial period in which
they are incurred.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.7 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate their cost, net of their residual values, over
their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Leasehold land and buildings Over the lease terms

Leasehold improvements 10% to 20%

Furniture, fixtures and 20% to 25%
office equipment

Motor vehicles 10% to 25%

Machinery 10%

Yacht 5%

The leasehold land and building of the Group are
held under medium-term lease in Hong Kong and
amortised over the term of lease of 30 years.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end
of each financial year end.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount.
These are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RREE

For the year ended 31 March 2021 HE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FTESTHEBRE (B)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.8 Investment properties

28 REWF

Investment properties are properties held to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation, or both, rather
than for use in the production or supply of goods
or services or for administrative purposes; or for
sale in the ordinary course of business. Such
properties are measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at
fair value, which reflects, among other things,
rental income from current leases and other
assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the investment properties under
current market conditions.

A gain or loss arising from a change in the fair
value of investment properties are recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the
period in which it arises.

Investment properties are derecognised on
disposal or when the investment properties are
permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposal.
Gains or losses arising from the retirement or
disposal of the investment properties are
determined as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
assets and are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss in the period of the retirement or
disposal.

BREMERSRDOE L ERIEE
EMERAMBEZNE MR
AREESHEEmARBFXAR
THRE®: KEBEXRBBRETH
& REMENBERAN(BERS
XA ETE - FIRTERIR - REWE
BAFEIE  AREATERR(E
TEE)EMEEZHEWARTS
SEEEEMMRANREEMEE
BRER 2 AR -

BEMEDT ERBHEL T W
S RN B A IR R A RS R

=7
e

REMENHERAEREYEK
AELEMAEHEETEH AR
REHEN SRR LR - BEEXH
EREMEMELZ WEHEIRR
HEMBSRIAFREEEREE
M Z@EE  YREEXHEH
B Bt R R o

Annual Report 22§ 202021 125




Aceso Life Science Group Limited o {Z# 4 il HEBHR A A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HRR M

For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.9 Intangible assets

(i)

(i)

Goodwill

Goodwill is measured as described in note
2.3. Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries
is included in intangible assets. Goodwill is
not amortised but it is test for impairment
annually, or more frequently if events of
changes in circumstances indicate that it
might be impaired, and is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. Gains and
losses on disposal of an entity include the
carrying amount of goodwill relating to the
entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating
units for the purpose of impairment testing.
The allocation is made to those cash-
generating units or groups of cash-
generating units that are expected to benefit
from the business combination in which the
goodwill arose. The units or groups of units
are identified at the lowest level at which
goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes, being the operating
segments (note 2.6).

Customer list

Customer list acquired in a business
combination are recognised at fair value at
the acquisition date. They have a finite useful
life and are subsequently carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses. Amortisation is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate their
expected life of 5 years.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 HE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (Continued)
2.9 Intangible assets (Continued)

TESHBRERBEE)

p? (43
29 EREE(E)

(iii) Brand name

Brand name acquired in a business
combination are recognised at fair value at
the acquisition date. They have an indefinite
useful life and are subsequently carried at
cost less impairment losses.

(iv) Securities brokerage licenses

Securities brokerage licenses acquired in a
business combination are recognised at fair
value at the acquisition date. They have an
indefinite useful life and are subsequently
carried at cost less impairment losses.

2.10 Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an
indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation
and are tested annually for impairment, or more
frequently if events on changes in circumstances
indicate that they might be impaired. Other assets
are tested for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the
asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash inflows (cash-generating units). Non-financial
assets other than goodwill that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of
the impairment at each reporting period.

(i) iEEE

REEEHPESZREETE
RWB ARz A ERR - B
BERERAIEAFY  HRZ
XA BB E B 1R 51 B

(iv) BHELNERE

REXAHPESZEFEL
MRIZWERA R A EE
R HABERAFEMRFH -
HIBER AR ERRYIR -

210 FEMEERE

EBERMEAFHIHERER
BEBAHH YWASFETRE
A HEBLEEHRBEREHRK
RRE AT BE IR (B A AR T TR ©
HMEEAREZHABTREHR
B R T 18 R) RE A MR [ B HE 1T ORUE
AR - BEBBRREERTEBD
HAWEeR e RER - Ao
CRREEDTER D KA RE
REEzESE - BAHEREMNS
BERNBELHNAERECREE
EEM) ZHERHGEE - BREE
Sh - HEURE L IFE BB ER SR
FHIR AR R E R R 2 AT BRI

127

Annual Report F % 2020/21




Aceso Life Science Group Limited o {Z# 4 il HEBHR A A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B HRR M

For the year ended 31 March 2021 & =F = —

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

FZRA=+—HLHEE

2.11 Investments and other financial assets

(a) Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the

following measurement categories:

(i)  those to be measured subsequently at
fair value (either through other
comprehensive income (“OCI") or
through profit or loss), and

(i)  those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s
business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual terms of the cash
flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and
losses will either be recorded in the
statement of profit or loss or statement of
comprehensive income. For investments in
equity instruments that are not held for
trading, this will depend on whether the
Group has made an irrevocable election at
the time of initial recognition to account for
the equity investment at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“"FVOCI").

The Group reclassifies debt investments
when and only when its business model for
managing those assets changes.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 HE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.11 Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
(b) Recognition and derecognition

(c)

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on trade-date, the date
on which the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the financial assets have expired
or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and

rewards of ownership.
Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case
of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVPL"), transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition of
the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at FVPL are expensed
in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives
are considered in their entirety when
determining whether their cash flows are
solely payment of principal and interest.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.11 Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Measurement (Continued)
Debt instruments

(c)

Subsequent measurement of debt

instruments depends on the Group's

business model for managing the asset and

the cash flow characteristics of the asset.

There are three measurement categories into
which the Group classifies its debt
instruments:

(i)

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows
where those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest are
measured at amortised cost. Interest
income from these financial assets is
included in finance income using the
effective interest rate method. Any gain
or loss arising on derecognition is
recognised directly in the statement of
profit or loss and presented in other
(losses)/gains together with foreign
exchange differences. Loss allowances
are presented as separate line item in
the statement of profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 HE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.11 Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
(c) Measurement (Continued)
Debt instruments (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

FVOCI: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows and
for selling the financial assets, where the
assets’ cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are
measured at FVOCI. Movements in the
carrying amount are taken through OClI,
except for the recognition of
impairment gains or losses, interest
income and foreign exchange gains and
losses which are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss. When the
financial asset is derecognised, the
cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in OCl is reclassified from
statement of changes in equity to
statement of profit or loss and
recognised in other gains/(losses).
Interest income from these financial
assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate method.
Foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in other gains/(losses) and
impairment expenses are presented as
separate line item in the statement of
profit or loss.

FVPL: Assets that do not meet the
criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are
measured at FVPL. A gain or loss on a
debt investment that is subsequently
measured at FVPL is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss in which it
arises.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.11 Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Measurement (Continued)
Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group's
management has elected to present fair
value gains and losses on equity investments
in OClI, there is no subsequent reclassification
of fair value gains and losses to statement of
profit or loss following the derecognition of
the investment.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at
FVPL are recognised in other gains/(losses) in
the statement of profit or loss as applicable.
Impairment losses (and reversal of
impairment losses) on equity investments
measured at FVOCI are not reported
separately from other changes in fair value.

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking
basis the expected credit losses associated
with its debt instruments carried at amortised
cost and FVOCI. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether
there has been a significant increase in credit
risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the
simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9,
which requires expected lifetime losses to be
recognised from initial recognition of the
receivables.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FTESTHEBRE (B)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.11 Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

21N REREMEMEE (B)

(d) Impairment (Continued)

Loss allowance on other receivables and
deposits from third parties are measured as
either 12-months expected credit losses or
lifetime expected credit losses, depending
on whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition.
If a significant increase in credit risk of a
receivable has occurred since initial
recognition, then loss allowance is measured
as lifetime expected credit losses.

2.12 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the
net amount reported in the statement of financial
position where the Group currently has a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must
not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and
in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of
the company or the counterparty. The Group has
also entered into arrangements that do not meet
the criteria for offsetting but still allow for the
related amounts to be set off in certain
circumstances, such as bankruptcy or the
termination of a contract.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.13 Inventories

(i)

(i)

Spare parts, consumables and others

Spare parts, consumables and others are
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using weighted
average method. Net realizable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business less estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

Art works

Art works are stated at the lower of cost and
net realizable value. Cost is assigned by
specific identification. Net realizable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale. Ultimate timing
of the sale is hard to predict given the unique
nature of each art piece and the cyclicality of
the global art market.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESHBERMEE)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.14 Properties under development

214 BEFYE

Properties under development are stated at the
lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
comprises construction costs, cost of land use
rights, borrowing costs, and professional fees
incurred during the development period. On
completion, the properties are transferred to
completed properties held for sale. Net realizable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to
make the sale. Properties under development are
classified as current assets unless those will not be
realised in one normal operating cycle.

2.15 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from
customers for goods sold or services performed in
the ordinary course of business. If collection of
trade and other receivables is expected in one
year or less, they are classified as current assets. If
not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less provision for impairment.

2.15

R MERKARAIZRFEL
BREDIR - RABEEERA
T E AR - BE KA R %
HHELEZEXEMR - N -
REMFERERELEZETK
ME-AERFELSERERKSB
B2t EERMG R TR AR
EHHIHEM® 2t A - FREF
MEDPBRRBEE  BRIEXFY
X rea—EERKERHANE
i o

B 5 WA K H b R YRR R

BHRBFER/REREEKBRETD
HEEmAERRRBEREEFZ
R - BN —FHUAREEE
55 & WOk IR e Al FE WK IR - RIS
HEDBRRBHEE - TR AIKH
2INRIERBDEE -

B 5 FE WA N ot R MR IR Y8R
BAVEER EREAERENEX
EIRB ARG E - W RE R
e

135

Annual Report F % 2020/21



Aceso Life Science Group Limited o {Z# 4 il HEBHR A A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HRR M

For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.16 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand,
deposits held at call with financial institutions,
other short-term, highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to insignificant risk of
changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank
overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current
liabilities in the statement of financial position.

Bank deposits which are restricted to use are
classified as “restricted cash”. Bank deposits
which are pledged are classified as “pledged bank
deposit”. Restricted cash and pledged bank
deposits are excluded from cash and cash
equivalents in the statement of cash flows.

2.17 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Where any group company purchases the
Company's share (treasury shares), the
consideration paid, including any directly
attributable incremental costs (net of income
taxes) is deducted from equity attributable to the
Company's equity holders until the shares are
cancelled or reissued. Where such ordinary shares
are subsequently reissued, any consideration
received, net of any directly attributable
incremental transaction costs and the related
income tax effects, is included in equity
attributable to the company’s equity holders.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FTESTHEBRE (B)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.18 Trade and other payable 218 EZ BN RIERHEA A

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods
or services that have been acquired in the ordinary
course of business from suppliers. Trade payable
are classified as current liabilities if payment is due
within one year or less (or in the normal operating
cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are
presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially
at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using effective interest method.

2.19 Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any
difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption amount is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss over
the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method. Fees paid on the establishment
of loan facilities are recognised as transaction
costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down.
In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw
down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence
that it is probable that some or all of the facility
will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a
prepayment for liquidity services and amortised
over the period of the facility to which it relates.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.19 Borrowings (Continued)

Convertible loans which entitle the holder to
convert the loans into a fixed number of equity
instruments at a fixed conversion price are
regarded as compound instruments consist of a
liability and an equity component. At the date of
issue, the fair value of the liability component is
estimated using the prevailing market interest rate
for similar non-convertible debt. The fair value of
any derivative features embedded in the
compound instruments is included in the liability
component. The difference between the proceeds
of issue of the convertible loans and the fair values
assigned to the liability component, representing
the embedded option for the holder to convert
the loans into equity of the Group, is included in
equity as capital reserve. The liability component
is carried as a liability at amortised cost using the
effective interest method until extinguished on
conversion or redemption. The derivative
components are measured at fair value with gains
and losses recognised in profit or loss.

If the identifiable consideration received by the
Group appears to be less than the fair value of the
convertible loans issued, the Group measures the
unidentifiable services received (to be received) as
the difference between the fair value of the
convertible loans issued and that of the
identifiable consideration received, and the
difference is recognised in profit or loss.

Transaction costs are apportioned between the
liability and equity components of the convertible
loans based on their relative carrying amounts at
the date of issue. The portion relating to the
equity component is charged directly to equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 HE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FTESTHEBRE (B)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.19 Borrowings (Continued) 219 & (&)

Borrowings are removed from the statement of
financial position when the obligation specified in
the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of a
financial liability that has been extinguished or
transferred to another party and the consideration
paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or
liabilities assumed, is recognised in the statement
of profit or loss as finance costs.

Where the terms of a financial liability are
renegotiated and the entity issues equity
instruments to a creditor to extinguish all or part
of the liability (debt for equity swap), a gain or loss
is recognised in the statement of profit or loss,
which is measured as the difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability and the
fair value of the equity instruments issued.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the end of the reporting period.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.20 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly

attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets, until such time
as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

2.21 Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is
the tax payable on the current period’s taxable
income based on the applicable income tax rate
for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in
deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to
temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated
on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period in the countries where the
Company, its subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation
is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of
amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 HE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (Continued)
2.21 Current and deferred income tax (Continued) 2.21 BNEARIREFR 5% (58)
(b) Deferred income tax (b) EEFTEH

TESHBRERBEE)

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using
the liability method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. However,
deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if
they arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not
accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period and are
expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised
only if it is probable that future taxable
amounts will be available to utilise those
temporary differences and losses.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 H{Z =T =

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.21 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

—F=A=T—HILFE

(b) Deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not
recognised for temporary differences
between the carrying amount and tax bases
of investments in foreign operations where
the Group is able to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to
offset current tax assets and liabilities and
when the deferred tax balances relate to the
same taxation authority. Current tax assets
and tax liabilities are offset where the entity
has a legally enforceable right to offset and
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss, except to the
extent that it relates to items recognised in
the statement of other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. In that case, the
tax is also recognised in the statement of
other comprehensive income or directly in
equity respectively.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 HE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.22 Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including
non-monetary benefits and accumulating sick
leave that are expected to be settled wholly
within 12 months after the end of the period
in which the employees render the related
service are recognised in respect of
employees’ services up to the end of the
reporting period and are measured at the
amounts expected to be paid when the
liabilities are settled. The liabilities are
presented as current employee benefit
obligations in the statement of financial
position.

Post-employment obligations

Employees of the Group in Hong Kong are
required to participate in a defined
contribution scheme as defined in mandatory
provident fund scheme (“MPF Scheme”). The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group under
independently administered funds.
Contributions to the schemes by the
employers and employees are calculated as a
percentage of employees’ basic salaries.
Under the MPF Scheme, each of the
company (the employer) and its employees
make monthly contributions to the scheme at
5% of the employees’ earnings as defined
under the Mandatory Provident Fund
legislation. The monthly contributions of
each of the employer and the employees are
subject to a cap of HK$1,500 and thereafter
contributions are voluntary. The Group has
no further obligations for the actual payment
of post-retirement benefits beyond the
contributions.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.22 Employee benefits (Continued)

(b) Post-employment obligations (Continued)

(c)

Employees of the Group in the PRC are
required to participate in defined
contribution retirement schemes
administered and operated by municipal
governments. The Group's subsidiaries in the
PRC contribute funds to the retirement
scheme to fund the retirement benefits of the
employees which are calculated on certain
percentage of the average employee salary
as agreed by the municipal government.
Such retirement schemes are responsible for
the entire post-retirement benefit obligations
payable to the retired employees. The Group
has no further obligations for the actual
payment of post-retirement benefits beyond
the contributions.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when
employment is terminated by the Group
before the normal retirement date, or when
an employee accepts voluntary redundancy
in exchange for these benefits. The Group
recognises termination benefits at the earlier
of the following dates: (a) when the Group
can no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits; and (b) when the entity recognises
costs for a restructuring that is within the
scope of HKAS 37 and involves the payment
of termination benefits. In the case of an offer
made to encourage voluntary redundancy,
the termination benefits are measured based
on the number of employees expected to
accept the offer. Benefits falling due more
than 12 months after the end of the reporting
period are discounted to present value.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 HE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.23 Share-based payments

(a)

(b)

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions

The Group operates an employee share
scheme. Emolument shares issued to
employees by the Company for no cash
consideration. The fair value of the
emolument shares granted under the
employee share scheme is recognised as an
expense over the relevant service period,
being the year to which the bonus relates
and the vesting period of the shares. The fair
value is measured at the grant date of the
shares and is recognised in equity in the
share-based payment reserve. The number of
shares expected to vest is estimated based
on the non-market vesting conditions. The
estimates are revised at the end of each
reporting period and adjustments are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss
and share-based payment reserve.

Where shares are forfeited due to a failure by
the employee to satisfy the service
conditions, any expenses previously
recognised in relation to such shares are
reversed effective the date of the forfeiture.

Share-based payment transactions among
group entities

The grant by the Company of shares over its
equity instruments to the employees of
subsidiaries in the Group is treated as a
capital contribution. The fair value of
employee services received, measured by
reference to the grant date fair value, is
recognised over the vesting period as an
increase to investment in subsidiaries, with a
corresponding credit to the Company's

equity.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.24 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events, it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation
and the amount has been reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating
losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class
of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow
with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of
management'’s best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the
end of the reporting period. The discount rate
used to determine the present value is a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to
the liability. The increase in the provision due to
the passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 HE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FTESTHEBRE (B)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.25 Revenue recognition

2.25 WA TR

Revenue is recognised when or as the control of
the goods or service is transferred to the
customer. Depending on the terms of the contract
and laws that apply to the contract, control of the
goods and services may be transferred over time
or at a point in time.

Revenue is recognised when a performance
obligation is satisfied by transferring control of the
promised products or services to a customer in an
amount that reflects the consideration expected
to be collected in exchange for those products or
services. The revenue recognition of the Group is
determined through the following five steps:

(i) Identification of the contract, or contracts,
with a customer;

(i) Identification of the performance obligations
in the contract;

(iii) Determination of the transaction price;

(iv) Allocation of the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract;

(v Recognition of revenue when, or as, a
performance obligation is satisfied.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.25 Revenue recognition (Continued)

At contract inception, it is performed that the

assessment and the identification of a
performance obligation for each promise to
transfer to the customer a product or a service (or
bundle of products or services) that is distinct. To
identify the performance obligations, the Group
considers all the products and services promised
in the contract with the customer based on the
Group's customary business practices, published
policies, or specific statements.

The Group recognises revenue when the specific
criteria have been met for each of the Group's
activities, as described below:

(a) Sale of rental machinery, machinery and
spare parts

Revenue arising from the sale of rental
machinery, machinery and spare parts is
recognised at a point in time when customers
obtain control of the machinery and spare
parts after the delivery is accepted. There is
generally one performance obligation.

(b) Repair and maintenance service income

Revenue arising from the provision of repair
and maintenance service is recognised over
time when the Group transfers control of the
services over time, based on the actual
service provided to the end of the reporting
period as a proportion of the total services to
be provided, as the customers receives and
uses the benefits simultaneously. Repair and
maintenance services are generally provided
within one day. There is generally one
performance obligation.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.25 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Transportation service income

Revenue arising from the provision of
transportation service is recognised over time
when the Group transfers control of the
services over time, based on the actual
service provided to the end of the reporting
period as a proportion of the total services to
be provided, as the customers receives and
uses the benefits simultaneously.
Transportation services are generally
provided within one day. There is generally
one performance obligation.

Commission income generated from asset
management, securities brokerage,
commodities, futures and income from
other financial services

Revenue arising from the provision of asset
management, securities brokerage,
commodities, futures and income from other
financial services are recognised at a point
over time when the control of relevant
contract notes or services are transferred to
customers. Control of the promised goods or
services are transferred to the customer on
completion of delivery of the goods or
services. There is generally one performance
obligation.

Financing components

The Group does not expect to have any
contracts where the period between the
transfer of the promised goods or services to
the customer exceeds one year. As a
consequence, the Group does not adjust any
of the transaction prices for the time value of
money.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.25 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(f)

(9)

(h)

Rental income generated from leasing of
investment properties

Revenue from rental income generated from
leasing of investment properties is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the
lease terms. Lease incentives granted are
recognised as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments receivables.

Rental income generated from construction
machinery

Revenue from rental income generated from
construction machinery is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the lease the lease
terms.

Interest income

Interest income on financial assets at
amortised cost using the effective interest
method is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss as part of other income. Interest
income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of
a financial asset except for financial assets
that subsequently become credit-impaired.
For credit-impaired financial assets, the
effective interest rate is applied to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset (after
deduction of the loss allowance).
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Aceso Life Science Group Limited o =854 @ EHEEEFR A A)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RREE

For the year ended 31 March 2021 HE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEETBERBE(E)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.25 Revenue recognition (Continued) 2.25 W AR (4
(i) Dividend income (i) EEIEZ/\
Dividends are recognised as other income in P& BB 2 AN R 7 R N e ST By
the statement of profit or loss when the right THEaABERAEMKA - &
to receive payment is established. This REERNZERENER R
applies even if they are paid out of pre- ST Z 185 - BrIERR B R B
acquisition profits, unless the dividend clearly FEWEI S D IR E R o
represents a recovery of part of the cost of an
investment.
2.26 Leases 2.26 HE
Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and HERNHEEERIMHASEFERE
a corresponding liability at the date at which the PREAREAEEERBHARE -

leased asset is available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease BRI B EHE RIFHESHEMKE
components. The Group allocates the Do REERBHEE RIEHEESHK
consideration in the contract to the lease and non- B2 BEBIERGEHNP 2K
lease components based on their relative stand- BOREZLZEKEBD - AW 5
alone prices. However, for leases of real estate for AEEEAEKBAZEHWEHREM
which the Group is a lessee, it has elected not to 5 HEZETKHHEEREHER
separate lease and non-lease components and REDnHE MEBEEAEE—H
instead accounts for these as a single lease EHEKHBD NI ©

component.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis HERRTVIRE R EEER - B8
and contain a wide range of different terms and LR IGR LGN - HEHZ
conditions. The lease agreements do not impose W INER R - HHEARAR
any covenants other than the security interests in ZHEEBEDP 2 EMERRIN -H
the leased assets that are held by the lessor. EEENMSHIEERERAIEEMR -

Leased assets may not be used as security for
borrowing purposes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B HRR M

For the year ended 31 March 2021 H{Z =T =

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

—F=A=T—HILFE

2.26 Leases (Continued)

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are
initially measured on a present value basis. Lease
liabilities include the net present value of the
following lease payments:

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives
receivable;

e  variable lease payments that are based on an
index or a rate;

e amounts expected to be payable by the
lessee under residual value guarantees;

e the exercise price of a purchase option if the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise that
option; and

e payments of penalties for terminating the
lease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably
certain extension options are also included in the
measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot
be readily determined, which is generally the case
for the leases in the Group, the lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate
that the individual lessee would have to pay to
borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of
similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar
economic environment with similar terms, security
and conditions.
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Aceso Life Science Group Limited o =854 @ EHEEEFR A A)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RREE

For the year ended 31 March 2021 HE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.26 Leases (Continued)

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the
Group:

e where possible, uses recent third-party
financing received by the individual lessee as
a starting point, adjusted to reflect changes
in financing conditions since third party
financing was received;

e  uses a build-up approach that starts with a
risk-free interest rate adjusted for credit risk
for leases held by the Group, which does not
have recent third party financing; and

*  makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g.
term, country, currency and security.

Lease payments are allocated between principal
and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to
the statement of profit or loss over the lease
period so as to produce a constant periodic rate
of interest on the remaining balance of the liability
for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost
comprising the following:

° the amount of the initial measurement of
lease liability;

e any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease
incentives received;

e anyinitial direct costs; and

° restoration costs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HRR M

For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.26 Leases (Continued)

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over
the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease
term on a straight-line basis. If the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option,
the right-of-use asset is depreciated over the
underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets are recognised on a
straight-line basis as an expense in the statement
of profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with
a lease term of 12 months or less without a
purchase option. Low-value assets comprise IT-
equipment and small items of office furniture.

Lease income from operating leases where the
Group is a lessor is recognised in income on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. Initial direct
costs incurred in obtaining an operating leases are
added to the carrying amount of the underlying
asset and recognised as expense over the lease
term on the same basis as lease income. The
respective leased assets are included in the
statement of financial position based on their
nature.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 HE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (Continued)

2.27 Government grants

TESHBRERBEE)

2.27 BUFHEBD

Grants from the government are recognised at
their fair value where there is a reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and the
Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred
and recognised in the statement of profit or loss
over the period necessary to match them with the
costs that they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to the purchase of
property, plant and equipment are included in
non-current liabilities as deferred income and are
credited to the statement of profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the expected lives of the
related assets.

2.28 Related party transactions

A related party transaction is a transfer of
resources, services or obligations between the
Group and a related party of the Group,
regardless of whether a price is charged.

(@) A person, or a close member of that person'’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group;
or

(iii) is a member of the key management

personnel of the Group or the Group's

parent.

B AIERESSWEHKTHEN A
AL B RETHA S RE - RIER
B L N ERERR o

HRABB BTN B LER
H gt E 2 AR A 2 B IR

HBEEWME BEERBAMIK
B BE SRR AT A ERB A
& WRHEBEE AHFHRE
HREEFABER -

2.28 8

RENTRXZEEAREENKERRE
FHZEZER RELEETEE
i AN A 75 (B AR

(@) BT AL - BEA LR
At Z3E MR R E G RS

() BAREEEHZESIESKL
R #22 Il 4

(i) HEAEBEEAXEN:
17

VRN SE I NSE S NC]
ZEBEEABKE -

155

Annual Report F % 2020/21



Aceso Life Science Group Limited o {Z# 4 il HEBHR A A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HRR M

For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
2.28 Related party transactions (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members
of the same group (which means that
each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).

one entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a member
of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

one entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third party.

the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to
the Group. If the Group is itself such a
plan, the sponsoring employers are also
related to the Group.

the entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a)
above.

a person, or a close member of that
person’s family, who has control or joint
control over the Group, has significant
influence over the Group or is a member
of the key management personnel of
the Group (or of a parent of the Group).

the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the parent of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2021 HE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including (i) foreign
exchange risk, (i) cash flow interest rate risk; and
(iii) price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
Group's overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on
the Group's financial performance. Risk
management is carried out by the senior
management of the Company under policies
approved by the Board of Directors of the
Company.

(a) Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong
Kong, United Kingdom ("UK") and PRC.

The functional currency of the Hong
Kong reporting entities is HK$ and the
transactions are mostly denominated in
HK$ and United States dollar (“US$").
For transactions or balances
denominated in US$ are reasonably
stable with the Hong Kong dollars under
the Linked Exchange Rate System, the
directors are of the opinion that the
Company does not have significant
foreign exchange risk, the exposure to
fluctuation in exchange rates will only
arise from the translation to the
presentation currency of the Group.
Accordingly, no sensitivity analysis is
performed.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Market risk (Continued)

(1)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

The functional currency of the PRC
reporting entities is RMB and the
transactions are mostly denominated in
RMB, the conversion of RMB into
foreign currencies is subject to the rules
and regulations of the foreign exchange
control promulgated by the PRC
government.

The functional currency of the
investment properties holding company
in the UK is Great British Pound ("GBP")
and the transactions are denominated
in GBP.

The Group has minimal exposure to
foreign currency risk as most of its
business transactions, assets and
liabilities are principally denominated in
functional currency of the Group's
entities. The Group manages its
exposures to foreign currency
transactions by monitoring the level of
foreign currency receipts and payments.
The Group ensures that the net
exposure to foreign exchange risk is
kept to an acceptable level from time to
time. The Group is presently not using
any forward exchange contract to hedge
against foreign exchange risk as
management considers its exposure is
not significant.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RREE

For the year ended 31 March 2021 HE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Market risk (Continued)

(ii)

Cash flow and interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate
risk through the impact of rates changes
on interest-bearing borrowings and
bank and pledged deposits.

The Group monitors closely its interest
rate exposure by maintaining an
appropriate mix of fixed and floating
rate borrowings and considers hedging
significant interest rate exposure should
the need arise. The position is regularly
monitored and evaluated by reference
of anticipated changes in market
interest rate. During the year ended 31
March 2021, the Group did not have any
financial instruments for hedging
purposes.

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure to
the floating-rate borrowings and bank
and pledged deposits at the end of the
reporting period. The analysis is
prepared assuming the financial
instruments outstanding at the end of
the reporting period were outstanding
for the whole year.

The sensitivity analysis below
demonstrates the effect of the interest
differences by a 0.5% change on
floating-rate borrowings and bank and
pledged deposits, assuming all other
variables were held constant.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Market risk (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Cash flow and interest rate risk
(Continued)

3

3.1

MBEREE (&)
Bt m bR E E (48)
(a) WA ()
(i) HemERFIFERER (&)

Carrying amount

Impact on post-tax loss

REE HiikERzYE
2021 2020 2021 2020
—B--F  ZTCTF ZBD-F 0 CTCEF
HK$'million  HK$'million  HK$'million  HK$'million
BEER BEAT BEBT BEAT
Floating-rate FREE
borrowings (82) (118) - -
Bankand pledged 1T REBEMEFH
deposits 5 5 - -
Price risk (i) 1EFEE Bz

The Group's exposure to equity
securities price risk arises from
investments held by the Group and
classified in the consolidated statement
of financial position as financial assets at
FVTPL and financial assets at FVTOCI.
The management would manage its
exposure arising from these investments
by closely monitoring the performance
of respective listed equity securities and
derivatives and market conditions. The
management would consider
diversifying the portfolio of these
investments as they consider
appropriate.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 HE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 H¥RRERE(E)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BEEREREEE)
(a) Market risk (Continued) (a) HHEERR(E)
(i) Price risk (Continued) (i) 1B E bR (E)

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure to
equity securities price risks at the end of
the reporting period. The sensitivity
analysis included those financial assets
at FVTPL and financial assets at FVTOCI.
If the prices of the respective equity
investment included in financial assets

Tt 2 REE AT TR IR
WERRAR ZBRATES
EBRERETE - IRED
reEaEUNAFEFE
BESFABRRZ R
BEMARFEAERR
Bt AR EEKEZ
TREE ° T ARRF

at FVTPL had been 10% higher/lower, Bt BEZLEt A Bz
assuming all other variables were held ZERMEBEELE FTRE
constant, the impact to the Group BEZEB®EEHA T
would be as follows: 10%  BREMBEMESE
HRTE BIEASEZ
TERBET
Impact on Impact on other
post-tax loss component on equity
HHAFR S HREZHAARS I 2HE
2021 2020 2021 2020
“B--f "T-TF B "T°ITF
%  HK$'million HK§'million HK$'million  HK$'million
HEBT BEBT BB BEAT
Financial assets at LAATFEER +10%
FVTPL HEMEEIA
Bz o
BE 5 29 - -
-10% (5) (29) - -
Financial assets at LAAFEER +10%
FVTOCI HEMEEIA
Hip2Ebz
LEMEE - - 39 35
-10% - - (39) (35
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk arises if a customer or other
counterparty fails to meet its contractual
obligations. The credit risk of the Group
mainly arises from trade receivables, loan
receivables, finance lease receivables,
corporate note receivables, other receivables;
and deposits with banks and financial
institutions, in which carrying amounts
represented the maximum exposure to credit
risk.

As at 31 March 2021, the Group has
concentration of credit risk in respect of its
loan receivables, finance lease receivables,
corporate note receivables, trade receivables,
and other receivables. The number of

3

M EREE(E)

3.1

Bt m bR E E (48)
(b) FEEE

i & PR E AR HH T REE
THENEE RAIELEER

o AEBEZEERREER

B B AR

&Y
HERKRE BREEXR
B A RIGRIE - A RERTT
REBEBEER - HREES

REEER

R-_ZE-_—%=ZA=+—H"
AEBBERKER
ERWEIE  ERAESER-
JFEE UK B R B EL b LUK IE T
EESPEE - ZFRKFIE

BmEM

counterparties from these receivables are as ZRGEFTBEWT
follows:
2021 2020
—B-—F —T_THF
Finance lease receivables &S W RIE 4 4
Loan receivables JEWE R 67 103
Corporate note receivables R 2 2
Trade receivables B 5 REIKIE 160 167
Other receivables H A W TR IE 72 >4

The Group measures loss allowances for

trade receivables at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs, which is calculated using a
provision matrix. As the Group's historical
credit loss experience does not indicate
significantly different loss patterns for
different customer segments, the loss
allowance based on past due status is not
further distinguished between the Group's
different customer bases.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 HE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

The following tables provide information
about the Group's exposure to credit risk and
ECLs for trade receivables as at 31 March

2021 and 2020:

3

M EREE(E)

3.1
(b)

Bt m bR E E (48)

FEmERE (E)

TRREEEEAEEN -
T FR_FT-_FTF = A
—t+—HAFmYE 8RR &

FUEREREEBEZE

o
Gross

Expected carrying  Allowance
loss rate amount for loss
RHEER IREAAE BiERE
%  HK$'million HK$million
BEET BEET

At 31 March 2021 R-B=-—%&

=ZA=+—H

Current BN &R 3 92 3
1-30 days past due BHI1Z=30H 15 13 2
31-90 days past due BHI31 £ 90 A 18 11 2
91-180 days past due #HEI91ZE 180 H 25 12 3
Over 180 days 180 H A L 23 22 5
150 15

At 31 March 2020 R-ZEBE-ZHE

ZA=+—H
Current BN &A 11 36 4
1-30 days past due BHEI1ZE30H 13 16 2
31-90 days past due #HEI31 290 H 14 7 1
91-180 days past due #EF91 =180 H 29 7 2
Over 180 days 180 H A E 76 17 13
83 22
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

Loss allowance on loan receivables, finance
lease receivables, corporate note receivables,
other receivables are measured as either
12-months expected credit losses or lifetime
expected credit losses on individual basis,
depending on whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. If a significant increase in credit
risk of a receivable has occurred since initial
recognition, then loss allowance is measured
as lifetime expected credit losses.

The Group placed deposits in banks are held
in reputable financial institutions, which
management believes are of high credit
quality and management does not expect
any losses arising from non-performance by
these counterparties.

The Group has monitoring procedures to
ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. Movements of the
allowance for credit losses on loan
receivables, finance lease receivables,
corporate note receivables, trade receivables,
and other receivables are disclosed in notes
23,24, 25, 30 and 31 respectively.
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Bt m bR E E (48)

3.1

(b)

FEmERE (E)
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 HE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BBEBERE(E)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 FEERREZE(E)
(c) Liquidity risk (c) mEBEZLEE

Cash flow forecasts are prepared by
management. Management monitors rolling
forecasts on the Group's liquidity
requirements to ensure the Group maintains
sufficient liquidity reserve to support
sustainability and growth of the Group's
business. Currently, the Group finances its
working capital requirements through funds
generated from operations, issue of new
shares, corporate note payables, convertible
note payable and obtaining bank and other
borrowings.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of
the Group's liquidity reserve on the basis of
expected cash flows. The Group’s policy is to
regularly monitor current and expected
liquidity requirements and its compliance
with lending covenants, to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
adequate committed lines of funding from
major financial institutions to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and long
term.

The table below analyses the Group's
financial liabilities into relevant maturity
groupings based on the remaining period at
the end of the reporting period to the
contractual maturity date. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows.

ReneRllmEEEmRe-
EEEERAKERDESR
kZ RBTEA - RAREE 4
RARZRDESHE  UX
FARBRBZAFEER R
R BAl AEBBEBKLE
EEZES  BITHERN &
NEERE  BNATHRRER
REGIRIT R EMEER S H
LEEEF R

EEERANReREALE
RAKERBDES B RD
R o AEE 2 BR R EHE
SRR LREHRRBDESFT LR
HETRERBZEN A
REEF TR 2R HE MR
BXIESREBREREZIAGRE
TRE  NENEEHNRES
MBEEFR -

TREBEREHRESHTH
B2 FErEfE - A2 B4
oM AKB zEMAE - K
NEEZEEREHRIIRR

==
ﬁ/mi °
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

MBEREE (&)
3.1 HMBEREEGE)
(c) mBEZEE (E)

Between Between

Less than 1 year to 2to Over
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
SR1E  15Z22F 25E5% 5EHME @t
HK$'million  HK$'million ~ HK$'million  HK$'million ~ HK$'million
AEET AEET AEET AEET AEET
At 31 March 2021 R-B--#=fA=+-8
Trade payables g HEN A 4 - - - 4
Other payables, deposits Hit ERF0R -
received and accruals BUETE R FUR 161 = = = 161
Bank and other borrowings RITRAMEER
and corresponding interests THER 2 566 83 923 = 1,572
Corporate note payables and N CEZER
corresponding interests THER 2 322 408 = = 730
Convertible note payable TEf R E 25 = 30 = = 30
Lease liabilities HEERE 12 8 10 = 30
1,065 529 933 - 2,527
At 31 March 2020 R-E-g£zA=+-8
Trade payables 2 G RENFE 18 - - - 18
Other payables, deposits Hi FERAF0E -
received and accruals BUWET & REFTHUE 65 - - - 65
Bank and other borrowings BITREMEENAR
and corresponding interests TRER 2 655 96 126 740 1,617
Corporate note payablesand ~ ERf M EZER
corresponding interests TRREFS 246 135 408 - 789
Convertible note payable FEN AR E R - - 100 - 100
Lease liabilities HEEE 14 11 19 - 44
998 242 653 740 2,633
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 HE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BBEBERE(E)
3.2 EsREkmERE

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as
a going concern in order to provide returns for
shareholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group manages the capital structure and
makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in
economic condition. In order to maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may obtain bank
and other borrowings, issue of convertible note
payable, corporate note payables or placing of
new shares.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the
gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debts
divided by total capital. Net debts is calculated as
total borrowings (including current and non-
current bank and other borrowings, corporate
note payables and convertible bonds as shown in
the consolidated statement of financial position)
less cash deposits (including cash and cash
equivalents and pledged deposits as shown in the
consolidated statement of financial position). Total
capital is calculated as “total equity” as shown in
the consolidated statement of financial position
plus net debts.

AEBEREAZBERRREAE
BFEKE 2 ARRERM
O N R REERNRBLARDE
ZAND N

AEBEREENRRE  WHELH
RAEBELRE - BEFHHE
BARARE  AEBEAERBRTR
HfEE  HTRNATRERER -
ENEERELBREHRRD -

AEERBEERBLRERER -
AL RRER FRERAREARE -
B FRIZEERR(BREAME
RREARZRE RIFRBIRTT R
HEE  BNEERRRATBRK
%) R FR(BREE MR
MERAIRZBEMREFEMANR
BEERTFR)AE - REXRGEEY
BARKAR [ BT ERF
HatE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BEEREE(E)
3.2 Capital risk management (Continued) 3.2 E2REREE(E)

The gearing ratios at 31 March 2021 and 2020
were as follows:

R-ZBE-_ R -_FT_FTF=H
=t RZEERBELEMNT

2021 2020

=B —F —ET_TF
HK$'million  HK$'million
BEER AEETT

Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 1,426 1,422
Corporate note payables: ENMBERIE -

— at amortised cost — L IER R 652 662
— at FVTPL — ARFEFEEHEEL

AR 628 -

Convertible note payable JEfT AR TR 24 72

2,730 2,156

Less: Cash and cash equivalents WIS RIREEEBY (198) (382)

Pledged bank deposits EHERRITER (5) ()

Net debts B EZE 2,527 1,769

Total equity WS 4m 5 3,014 2,496

Total capital FEE= N 5,541 4,265

Gearing ratio BEBAMBHX 46% 41%
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 HE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BBEBERE(E)

3.3 Fair value estimation 3.3 DFEME
The table below analyses financial instruments TRAGEEDTRAFEIIRZ
carried at fair values, by valuation method. The TRIA - TRERDAENT

different levels have been defined as follows:

e Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets o HRAABAEHEBENERMSEZ
for identical assets or liabilities (level 1). RECRERAB) (B -

* Inputs other than quoted prices included s RE-—FABEZ®REN &
within level 1 that are observable for the EXBEHRn AZE -
asset or liability, either directly (that is, as Al AEEBIER) s EE (A
prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from REER) (B -

prices) (level 2).

e Inputs for the asset or liability that are not e EENBBWHFREABED
based on observable market data (that is, 5 8UE 2 B A B (BT A &
unobservable inputs) (level 3). R ABE)(E=4) -

The following tables present the fair value TREIAEER-_ZTE-_—F R =

hierarchy of the Group's investment properties, T_TF=A=+T—RBEAFES

financial assets and liabilities that were measured EZREDE eMEERAEZ
at fair value at 31 March 2021 and 2020. NEEER -
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3 BXkEREE(E)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 AFEMEF(E)
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—& E-R F=4 st
HK$'million  HK$'million  HK$'million  HK$'million
BEET BEET BEET BEAT
Recurring fair value measurements: & ¥4 A FEH & :
At 31 March 2021 R-B-—F=A=+—H
Assets EE
Investment properties (note 16) REME (KT 16) = = 1,603 1,603
Financial assets at FVTOCI WA EFTE R HEE
(note 21) FFAEMmEEYE
SREE (M21)
Unlisted equity securities I ETRAE S - - 346 346
Listed equity securities FHREARE 120 = = 120
Financial assets at FVTPL (note 22) LAA/{EET 2 B HE L
FFABmsSRMEE
(MizE22)
Listed equity securities ETBRARES 58 - - 58
Unlisted fund investment FELMESKEE - 511 - 511
Unlisted debt instruments EEMEKTA - = 15 15
Convertible note receivable FEUR AT AR SR 4 = - 4 4
Total Bt 178 511 1,968 2,657
Liabilities aE
Financial liabilities at FVTPL AR EETE B EE
(note 36) FFABmZzeRAR
(P 5E36)
Call option REE R - - 113 113
Corporate note payable e 2R - - 628 628
Total st - - 741 741
At 31 March 2020 N-EBE-ZEF=/F=+—H
Assets EE
Investment properties REYHE - - 1,432 1,432
Financial assets at FVTOCI AT B E B HE
FAEMEEmKE
Unlisted equity securities ELETRAE S - - 352 352
Financial assets at FVTPL AT EE 8 B
AABZCEREE
Listed equity securities AR A 295 - - 295
Unlisted fund investment FELFTESKE - 50 - 50
Unlisted debt instruments JELrMEBIA - - 12 12
Derivative option $TA ERRE - — 17 17
Total ey 295 50 1,813 2,158
Liabilities =R
Financial liabilities at FVTPL LAATFEFTERHEE
FFABZZzeRARE
Call option REA AR - — 171 171

170 Annual Report ¥ 2020/21



Aceso Life Science Group Limited o {Z#4 £ mEH R EB AR QA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2021 HE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

The fair value of financial instruments traded in
active markets is based on quoted market prices
at the end of the reporting period. The quoted
market price used for financial assets held by the
Group is the current bid price. These instruments
are included in level 1.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market is determined using
valuation techniques which maximise the use of
observable market data where it is available and
rely as little as possible on entity-specific
estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair
value an instrument are observable, the instrument
is included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not
based on observable market data, the instrument
is included in level 3.

Specific valuation techniques used to value
financial instruments and investment properties
include:

e the use of quoted market prices or dealer
quotes for similar instruments

e the use of discounted cash flow model for
unlisted equity and fund investments,
convertible note receivable, corporate note
payable and investment properties

e the use of option pricing model for call
option

There were no significant transfers of financial
assets or liabilities between level 1, level 2 and
level 3 fair value hierarchy classifications.

M EREE(E)

AFEME ()

REBMZEEZEMTAZAYF
BEIREREMR TS HREE -
AEERBAZEREEMMZMS
HBE/RTEAE - ZFTAFA
FE—a e

WHNERMEEEZEMTAZ
AFEXRAGEERNEE  &FHh
1B+ i 2% 8 NI 3 A] B s T S5 B (40
B) BERIERBEERZEEMR
oMt E—EIAZATEMS
ZBEXRBABE SR BREE -
AIZTHRFFASE 4 -

fisd —IE R ZIAE KN A BRI FEE
RABEDSEE - AR TAETA

5=y

55 AN °
AREBITAMREMREEZE
EMERMEE

e ERBUIAEZMESHRELR
HERE

o WMIILTRARESKRE &
WA RE BN EERE
RREMEERABRRRERE
B

o BREHREECHPEEERN

F—H F_REE=ZFAFER
LBz ETEEALHEESE
B o
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3 M¥EREEGE)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 AFEMEF(E)
The Group engaged independent professional AEBZERBIZXRGEMEDE
valuers for performing valuations of items RE_GRE-HRBEETYE
categorised as level 2 and level 3 as required for RIRFTE 2 h{E - BB FIE <@
financial reporting purposes. The finance RAEEZEZE G m —RXMERF
department discussed the valuation processes HAREE Y FEREHE 2
with audit committee once every 6 months, in line
with the Group's half-year reporting periods.
The following table presents the changes in level 3 TRENHE-_FT-_—F=A8
financial instruments for the year ended 31 March =t-HLEFEF=ReRITAZ
2021. BEH o
Financial Financial Financial
Investment assets at assetsat liabilities at
properties FVTPL FVTOCI FVTPL
AAFE
AATE stEEEZ( ARTEE
FTEEHEEME SFAEM FrERESM
FABRz  2EUmEZ  FABHEZ
KREME TREE TREE TRERE
HK$'million  HK$'million  HK$'million  HK$'million
BEET BEBETL BEET BEETL
At 1 April 2019 R-ZE-NFNA—H 1,381 - 118 (185)
Acquisitions L - 291 -
Disposals HE - - (50) -
Total gains/(losses) recognised BRERNE(BR) BE
— in consolidated statement —REABHRER
of profit or loss 140 20 - 14
— in consolidated statement of — RiFaEM2ERER
other comprehensive income - - 7) -
Exchange alignment RS (89) 1 - -
As at 31 March 2020 R-E-ZEHE=A=+—H 1,432 29 352 (171)
Total gains for the year included in HRERBEZEER
the consolidated statement of BEH A AGEBERY
profit or loss for assets and FRlamesE
liabilities held at the end
of the year 140 20 - 14
Change in unrealised gains for the MRERBEZEER
year included in the consolidated BEFAGRBRRZ
statement of profit or loss for FRAZBR S
assets and liabilities held at the
end of the year 140 20 - 14
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 HE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

3 BXkEREE(E)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 AFEMEF(E)
Financial Financial Financial
Investment assets at assets at  liabilities at
properties FVTPL FVTOCI FVTPL
HAYE
UATE SEEHSZ(E UATEE
sFEEHSZ( FPAREM FEAHS(L
FABRZ  ZEWEZ FABREZ
REMHE SREE cREE AR
HK$'million  HK$'million  HK$'million  HK$'million
HEBET BEER HEER HEER
At 1 April 2020 R-ZZE-ZFNA—H 1,432 29 352 (171)
Acquisitions or additions WEESRE - 48 - (616)
Disposals He = = = =
Total gains or losses recognised BiERN R EBEE
— in consolidated statement —RFABRER
of profit or loss 10 (59) - 46
— in consolidated statement of —RiERe Et R R
other comprehensive income - - (6) -
Exchange alignment [E 5355 161 1 = =
At 31 March 2021 R-E=-—-H=ZA=+—H 1,603 19 346 (741)
Total gains/(losses) for the year RRERBEZEER
included in the consolidated BETAGAERRY
statement of profit or loss for Frlz/ (BE) B8
assets and liabilities held at the
end of the year 10 (59) - 46
Change in unrealized gains/(losses) ~ FRFERFBEZEEK
for the year included in the BEFAGEBERERZ
consolidated statement of FRAZHRUE(FE)
profit or loss for assets and o]
liabilities held at the end
of the year 10 (59) - 46
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HERRERE(E)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 AFEMEF(E)
Disclosure of valuation process used by the REXEEBERFE 2 EEREF UK
Group and valuation techniques and inputs B R FEGERAZEE R EA
used in fair value measurements Bz
Level 2 fair value measurements %_ﬁﬂﬁ—‘/—‘@ﬂ%
Financial assets at FVTPL SFTEHJFEEﬁ“TKuJFJ\TE 52
Fair Value
DNFE
2021 2020
B —-F —ECTEF
Description Valuation technique Inputs HK$'million  HK$'million
797 fRE R LTPN: ¢ BAEBRT BAEBTT
Unlisted fund investment  Asset-based approach  Net assets 511 50
FELTESEE BEEWE BEFE
Level 3 fair value measurements FE=RRTEE
Investment properties REME
Description Range Fair value
R €E AYE
Effect on fair
value for
Valuation Unobservable increase of
technique inputs 2021 2020 inputs 2021 2020
PN ¢
HAFEZ
BRI TABRRAZE -Z--F —ZT_-TF gg “E--f ZZ-Zf
HK$'million  HK$'million
BB  BHEAT
Investment properties  Income approach ~ Term yield 5.0% 4.5% Decrease 1,603 1,432
REWE N il g b
Reversionary Yield 5.5% 5.0% Decrease
EHkm= A
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 HE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 H¥RRERE(E)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 AFEMEF(E)
Disclosure of valuation process used by the WEXEERFBZ G EREF LR
Group and valuation techniques and inputs BRAFEFRRBAZEERNGRBA
used in fair value measurements (Continued) B (8)
Level 3 fair value measurements (Continued) BN FEFE(E)
Financial assets at FVTPL UAFEEFEEHEE(LFTAERZ

Description Range Fair value
AR gE NYE
Effect on fair
value for
Valuation Unobservable increase of
technique inputs 2021 2020 inputs 2021 2020
2 i A i
HATES
fRER M FUBERAEE —Z--§ _—T-TF g4 B _ZT_TF
HK$'million  HK$'million
EX- -y BEAT
Unlisted debt Discounted Discount rate 11.5% 11.5% Decrease 15 12
instruments cash flow
FEMEBTA BB ERE R R B
Convertible note Discounted cash Discount rate 28% N/A  Decrease 4 -
receivable flow
FE TR RS BRBENE HRE TEA R
Derivative option Hull-white model Credit spread N/A 11.5% Decrease - 17
DTH HRE R ERIER FEEE TEA P
Financial liabilities at FVTPL NAFEFEBHEEFAERZ
TRAME
Description Range Fair value
R gE DYE
Effect on fair
value for
Valuation Unobservable increase of
technique inputs 2021 2020 inputs 2021 2020
12 hnis A\ g
HATES
i FUBRHANE —%¥--F -T-TF pE —g=-% -T-TF
HK$'million  HK$'million
EX- -V BEAT
Call option Monte-Carlo Volatility 42% 62% Increase 113 171
Simulation Model
R SHREEERER KR &m
Corporate note Discounted Discount rate 9.4%-9.8% N/A Decrease 628 -
payable cash flow
ERCERE BREERE WRE TER B
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BBEBERE(E)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 AFEMEF(E)
Disclosure of valuation process used by the REXEEBERFE 2 EEREF UK
Group and valuation techniques and inputs B R FEGERAZEE R EA
used in fair value measurements (Continued) Bz (1E)
Level 3 fair value measurements (Continued) BN TEFZE (B)
Financial assets at FVTOCI UAFEEFZEEHELTFAREME
HREZEMEE
Description Range Fair value
#iR #E ATE
Effect on fair
value for
Valuation Unobservable increase of
technique inputs 2021 2020 inputs 2021 2020
g A gE
HAREZ
fHER TUBERAYE —S--& —ZT-TF g& - —ZT-EZF

HK$'million  HK$'million
BERET OEET

Goodwill International  Income-Based Marketability 15.8% 15.8% Decrease 8 28
Holdings Limited Approach Discount
Gooduwill International  AE TR o
Holdings Limited
Discount rate 14.7% 18.0% Decrease
HRE mo
Co-Lead Holdings Asset-Based Marketability 15.8% 15.8% Decrease 32 28
Limited Approach Discount
Co-Lead Holdings BEAME mBMTE o
Limited
Minority Discount 25.6% 22.3% Decrease
DB E b
Quan Yu Tai Market-Based Price to book 0.89% 0.97% Increase 306 296
Investment Company ~ Approach
Limited
FREREBRAR WA izl 2 1Zm
Marketability 15.8% 15.8% Decrease
Discount
mBIITR b
During the two years, there were no changes in Rz MIEFE - ARG ERTIT &
the valuation techniques used. BE o
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 HE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
ASSUMPTIONS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated
and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year are discussed below.

(1) Business combinations or assets acquisitions

Accounting for acquisitions require the Group to
allocate the cost of acquisition to specific assets
acquired and liabilities assumed based on their
estimated fair values at the date of acquisition.
The Group has undertaken processes to identify
all assets and liabilities acquired. Judgements
made in identifying all acquired assets,
determining the estimated fair value assigned to
each class of assets acquired and liabilities
assumed, as well as asset’s useful lives, could
materially impact the calculation of goodwill,
bargain purchase and depreciation and
recognized in charges in subsequent periods.
Estimated fair values are based on information
available near the acquisition date and on
expectations and assumptions that have been
deemed reasonable by management. Determining
the estimated useful lives of tangible and
intangible assets acquired also requires
judgement.

4
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HRR M

For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

4

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
ASSUMPTIONS (Continued)

(1

Business combinations or assets acquisitions
(Continued)

The Group has not applied the concentration test
to assess whether the acquired set of activities and
assets is not a business. Rather, the Group has
assessed a business based on whether an
integrated set of activities and assets include, at a
minimum, an input and a substantive process that
together significantly contribute to the ability to
create output. No goodwill or bargain purchase
will be recognized if the acquisition is not
considered as a business combination. Even if
there is economic goodwill in the transaction, this
amount is allocated to the assets acquired based
on their relative fair values. This results in a higher
asset basis that must then be amortized or
depreciated. Different conclusions around these
judgements may materially impact how these
investments presented and measured in the
consolidated statement of financial position of the
Group.
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Aceso Life Science Group Limited o =854 @ EHEEEFR A A)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2021 & =T = —

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
ASSUMPTIONS (Continued)

(2)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment,
intangible assets and investments accounted
for using equity method

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are tested
annually for impairment; or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that
they might be impaired. Other assets are tested
for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. The recoverable amounts
have been determined based on the higher of
value-in-use calculations or fair value less costs of
disposal. These calculations require the use of
judgements and estimates. Management
judgement is required in the area of asset
impairment particularly in assessing: (i) whether an
event has occurred that may indicate that the
related asset values may not be recoverable; (i)
whether the carrying value of an asset can be
supported by the recoverable amount, being the
higher of fair value less costs of disposal and net
present value of future cash flows which are
estimated based upon the continued use of the
asset in the business; and (iii) the appropriate key
assumptions to be applied in preparing cash flow
projections including whether these cash flow
projections are discounted using an appropriate
rate. Changing the assumptions selected by
management in assessing impairment, including
the discount rates or the growth rate assumptions
in the cash flow projections, could materially affect
the net present value used in the impairment test
and as a result affect the Group's financial
condition and results of operations.

e M RREE
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4 BRETHETRERGE)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HRR M

For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

4

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
ASSUMPTIONS (Continued)

(3)

(4)

(5)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group estimates the allowances for expected
credit loss for its trade receivables, finance lease
receivables, loan receivables and other
receivables. This requires the use of estimates and
judgements which are based on the Group's
historical credit loss experience, possibility of
default adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, and an assessment of both the current
and forecast general economic conditions at the
end of reporting period. Where the estimation is
different from the original estimate, such
difference will affect the carrying amounts of the
financial assets and will affect the result of
allowance for loss recognized and results of
operations.

Fair value of other financial instruments

The fair values of financial assets and liabilities at
FVTPL or FVTOCI were determined by using
various valuation techniques. The Group uses its
judgement to select a variety of methods and
make assumptions, including the discount rates,
which are mainly based on market conditions
existing at the end of each reporting period.
Changes in assumptions used could materially
affect the fair value of these balances and as a
result affect the Group's financial condition and
results of operation.

Fair value of investment properties

The Group appointed an independent
professional valuer to assess the fair values of the
investment properties. In determining the fair
values, the valuer has utilised a method of
The

directors have exercised their judgement and are

valuation which involves certain estimates.

satisfied that the method of valuation is reflective
of the current market conditions.
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Aceso Life Science Group Limited o =854 @ EHEEEFR A A)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 HE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

a.

Description of segments and principal activities

The Group has identified six (2020: five) reportable
segments of its business:

(i)

(i)

(i)

Rental and sale of construction machinery
and spare parts business: The Group offers
crawler cranes of different sizes, other mobile
cranes, aerial platforms and foundation
equipment in its construction machinery
rental fleet in Hong Kong. The Group also
sells construction machinery and spare parts
in Hong Kong and Macau.

Provision of repair and maintenance and
transportation service business: The Group
provides repair and maintenance service for
construction machinery, in particular the
crawler cranes, in Hong Kong. The Group
also provides transportation services which
include local container delivery, construction
site delivery and heavy machinery transport
in Hong Kong.

Money lending business: The Group holds
money lending licenses and offers
mortgaged loan and personal loan
businesses in Hong Kong.

5 WARZHER
a. ZDEHREEERBFR

AEBEEREXBER A E(ZF=
T A RI2HRE

(i)

(i)

(iii)

BERBLERZTHEENRE
X ARBET2EBRZ
ERBMAEERKEHTRER
RPNZBEFHE - EMRE D
W TR TEe RIBERE -
AREBEMEEBMRFIHER
SRR -

RS MRE I ME B RS
X% AEERBBREER
WOLERES ) IREEE
RRER - REBTRNEE
RUCER R - B EEANM
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R UEBRBRBERBER R
AABTRET
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HRR M

For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)
a. Description of segments and principal activities
(Continued)

(iv)

(vi)

Provision of asset management, securities
brokerage, commodities, futures and other
financial service business: The Group holds
Securities and Future Commission licenses
for conducting type 1 (dealing in securities),
type 2 (dealing in futures contracts), type 4
(advising on securities) and type 9 (asset
management) regulated activities under the
Securities and Futures Ordinance and
provides a wide range of financial services in
Hong Kong.

Property leasing business: The Group holds a
commercial property in London, the United
Kingdom (the “UK"), for leasing.

Property development business: The Group
started the property development business
during the Year. The Group holds properties
under development in Malaysia through a
subsidiary and in Cambodia through an
associate.
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Aceso Life Science Group Limited o =854 @ EHEEEFR A A)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE—F =

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

b.

e A AR ML

—F=ZRA=t—HLHEE

5 WARZBERE)

Segment profit or loss b. 2Z#iE#E
The segment profit or loss for the reportable BHE_Z-_—FR_FT_FTF=H
segments provided to the chief operating decision =E+—RIEFE RHTEFELE
maker and reconciliation to loss before taxation RENEBBAA2WD A2 9 EbE =
for the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020 are NERRATEEEENT ¢
as follows:
Provision of
asset
management,
securities
Rentaland  Provision of brokerage,
sale of repair and commodities,
construction  maintenance futures and
machinery and other
and spare transportation Money financial Property Property
2021 parts service lending services leasing  development Total
—g--f RftgEER.
BEARR  RESER FHEL-
BRSH RENR B BER
HERHE Euk% HE EteBEH EZiL ES a3t
HKS'million ~ HK$'million ~ HKS'million ~ HKS'millon ~ HK$'million ~ HK$'million  HK$'million
BEER BEER BEET BEER BEER BEET BEER
External revenue IVRITA 14 8 17 1 69 = 346
Segment results before the MU TRER A HEE
following items: 48 4 62 1 63 - 178
— Depreciation and amortisation ~ — FEREH (39) - - (1) - - (40)
— Impairment losses: — HEEE:
— property, plantand equipment  — %1% - BERRE (48) - - - - - (48)
— intangible assets —ENEE (28) - - - = = (28)
— financial assets —SREE
(expected credit losses) (BEERR) 4 - (28) 2 1) - (27)
— Finance costs —BARA (3) - (3) - (26) = (32)
Segment results NEEE (66) 4 3 ()] 36 - 3
Unallocated: AAE:
— Otherincome —EtBA 3
— Fair value losses —AVEER (124)
— Otherlosses —EtEE (1)
— Administrative expenses — TR (41)
— Impairment losses: —AERE:
— property, plant and equipment  — %1% « BRRRE (22)
— financial assets —SREE
(expected credit losses) (BEREFR) (21
— Share-ased payment expenses LAH;( WARTER (49)
— Share of results of associates NG 196
— Share of results of joint ventures 1 RELERE 92
— Finance costs —RERA (155)
Loss before taxation BiaSE (323)
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Aceso Life Science Group Limited o {584 £ fmEHEEEBR A

/ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B HRR M

For the year ended 31 March 2021 BEZ =& =

5

—F=RA=t+—HLHEE

the chief operating decision maker does not

regularly review segment assets and liabilities.
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DHEENEE
BENBE-

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 WARZWBERGE)
(Continued)
Segment profit or loss (Continued) DEBEE (48)
Provision of
asset
management,
securities
Rental and Provision of brokerage,
sale of repair and commodities,
construction maintenance futures and
machinery and other
andspare  transportation Money financial Property
2020 parts service lending services leasing Total
“%-% REEEER.
BEHEAR REEER Eran
BRZH RER Am HER
BERHE B8R HE  Etemki NEEE 5t
HKS'million HK$'million HK$'million HK$'million HK$'million HK$'million
BEET BEET BEET BEET BEET BEET
External revenue INRIA 129 9 75 19 o4 29
Segment results before the NRUATERAZHBEE -
following items: 36 - 48 (12) 198 210
— Depreciation and amortisation ~ — & R # (40) ) - @ - ()
— Impairment losses: —REEE:
— intangible assets —EVEE (86) - - - - (86)
— financial assets —SREE
(expected credit losses) (EBEEBE) 6 - ") i) @ (100
— Finance costs —RERA () - @ - (26) (39)
Segment results NHEE (107 (1) (A7) (17) 170 4
Unallocated: AR
— Other income —Hp A l
— Fair value gains — AT ERE l
— Other gains —Ehla 6
— Administrative expenses — TR 22
— Impairment losses on —eRAENERE
financial assets (RBEEER)
(expected credit losses) (17)
— Share-based payment expenses  — BRI A RHERE R @
— Share of results of associates —HUEBERARE 10
— Share of results of joint ventures ~ — D EAS 0 EEE &
— Finance costs —BENA (148)
Loss before taxation BRASE (267)
No segment assets and liabilities are presented as HREELEBARALETHERH

WA 25D F
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 HE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

C.

5 WARZBERE)

Geographical information c. HWEER
The geographical information about the Group's BREAREEBIBEFAEHRA (R
revenue from external customers by location of KRB D) ANMIERBEE (&
operations and the non-current assets other than BT HEBRIN RIEERIBEE(BEE
financial instruments and deferred tax assets in BERATE) 2R ER T
which the assets are physically located is detailed
below:
Revenue Non-current assets (note)
1O FRBEE (M)
For the year ended
31 March As at 31 March
BE=A=t-HLHFE R=A=t+-H
2021 2020 2021 2020
—®--% CT-TF  ZB--f  TCEF
HK$'million  HK$'million HKS$'million  HK$'million
BEER BEAT BEER BEAT
Hong Kong B8 275 227 383 1,124
UK " 69 64 1,603 1,432
The People's Republic of EARAME ([HE)

China (the "PRC") - - 403 18
Macau B - -
Cambodia RIHE - - 1,116 -

346 296 3,505 2,574
Note: B

Non-current assets excluded financial assets at FVTOCI,

financial assets at FVTPL, loan receivables, financial lease
receivables, corporate note receivables, deferred tax assets,
pledged bank deposits and other receivables and deposits.

FERMBEETBEARTEFEEEELFA
HizHWRa @RMEE AR TEAEAR
B ABEZeREE  BEEFR mEM
BRYESR - BRERRE  BERBEE -
EHEMRTE A R EMEYGRARATE
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/ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B HRR M

For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5

(Continued)

d. Information about major customers

Revenue from external customers over 10% of the

WARDBER (B)
d BRIEEFZEH

HAREEBEW AR 10% 2580 %

total revenue of the Group are as follows: PRAAT :
2021 2020
—ET-F T -TF
HK$'million  HK$'million
BEERT BEAT
Customer A BEFA
— Rental and sale of construction = —EEAEBNERSHREEN
machinery and spare parts tHE DB
segment N/AFER 30
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 HE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 WARZIBER(E)
(Continued)
Revenue summary e. WABE
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
HK$'million  HK$'million
BEET BEET
Revenue from contracts with BEEAHZ WA (KT -
customers (note i):
— Sale of construction machinery ~— — S LR THIHE
and spare parts 41 29
— Repair and maintenance and — BIERREUEG R
transportation service income WA 8 9
— Commission income generated — &EEE « B5HLL -
from asset management, Em . EREMSE
securities brokerage, REEE 2 ASKA
commodities, futures and
other financial services 7 15
56 53
Revenue from other sources: HE R WA -
— Rental income generated from — — @EMWES 2 HES WA
construction machinery 100 100
— Rental income generated from  —ASREVEEL 2 HS
leasing of investment properties A 69 64
— Interest income generated from — MEEL 7 F B WA
money lending 117 75
— Interest income generated from —RBEESFEEL ZFI WA
margin financing 4 4
290 243
346 296
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HRR M

For the year ended 31 March 2021 =

e.

—E-—FZASt—ALEE

_=_

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 WARZIBER(E)
(Continued)
Revenue summary (Continued) e. WAME(E)
Note i: Bk
Disaggregated revenue from contract with customers PHREFEHBRA
For the year ended 31 March 2021 HE T —F=-A=1—HIFEZ
Provision of
asset
management,
securities
Provision of brokerage,
Sale of repair and commodities,
construction maintenance futures and
machinery and other
and spare transportation financial
parts service services Total
RUEEEER -
BEEMR RELEER BHELL -
BREY REUR Bm HER
HE ERRE Hir S mR% @st
HK$'million HK$'million HK$'million HK$'million
HEBR BB HEBR HEBR
Sale of construction machinery S R BB E 14 &
and spare parts 41 - - 41
Repair and maintenance and BIERREN RERRE
transportation service income WA - 8 - 8
Commission income generated ~ BEEE  BHLL
from asset management, Bm BEREMEHE
securities brokerage, RBEEZBSWA
commodities, futures and
other financial services - - 7 7
41 8 7 56
Timing of revenue recognition U A\ HE R 8
At a point in time AE BRI 41 7 48
Over time 8 R P - - 8
Total ast 4 8 7 56
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 HE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 WARZBER(E)
(Continued)
e. Revenue summary (Continued) e. WAME(E)
Note i: (Continued) Mski: (48)
Disaggregated revenue from contract with customers PHEBEFEHRA ()
(Continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2020 HE—T-_TF=A=1+—HIFE
Provision of
asset
management,
securities
Provision of brokerage,
Sale of repair and commodities,
construction maintenance futures and
machinery and other
and spare transportation financial
parts service services Total
REHEEEER -
R K REHER BRI
HRTH REUR M BER
HE BEHRY Hin & pR% FoE
HKS$'million HKS$'million HKS$'million HKS$'million
BEBT BEAT BEAT BEAT
Sale of construction machinery — EEER R ERSTHEE
and spare parts 29 - - 29

e RREAER R

LION - 9 - 9
REEH EHER -

Hm - BEREnSR

Repair and maintenance and
transportation service income

Commission income generated
from asset management,

securities brokerage, RBEEZBSUA

commodities, futures and

other financial services - - 15 15

29 9 15 53

Timing of revenue recognition W ATEFREE S
At a point in time RE R 29 - 11 40
Over time 8 B P - 9 4 13
Total wast 29 9 15 53
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/ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B HRR M

For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5

(Continued)

f.  Summary of revenue and gross proceeds from

the sale of financial assets at FVTPL

WARDBER (B)

. OBRARKEHENATENBEEAR
BLHAREZLREEZFER

HEEZME

2021 2020
—E-—F —EETF
HKS$'million  HK$'million
HE#BT BEBT
Revenue (note 5(e)) g A (B FE5(e)) 346 296

Gross proceeds from the sale of REHEUATEFERER

financial assets at FVTPL Bt A\ BmcemEE
Z S IR B 175 1,149
Total At 521 1,445

6 OTHER INCOME 6 HftgA
2021 2020
—F--F C—T-FTF
HK$'million  HK$'million
HEET BEAT
Interest earned on: HATFIERILZ AL -

— corporate note receivables — R EEE 30 6
— bank deposits — RITFER 2 1
Forfeiture of partial payment FREE B FIA - 78
Government grant IR I #6 Bfy 7 -
Rental income He WA 4 3
Others Hi 9 2
52 90
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OTHER (LOSSES)/GAINS, NET

B ISR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 HE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

7 Htt(BBR) WEFHE

2021 2020
—EB--F —ZT-THF
HK$'million  HK$'million
HEBT BEAT
Extinguishment loss on early principal 2R BRI EM AT BEZERS 2
redemption of convertible note B & & 18 (M5 35)
payables (note 35) (1) -
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HEH B A RS - 32
Foreign exchange gain/(loss) B 5 Wz (E518) 1 Q)
Loss on disposal of property, plantand HEWE - MENREZ EE
equipment (2) (15)
Loss on remeasurement of corporate  JEINP ¥ EEEHEEIE
note receivables - (10)
(2) 6
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES 8 EETAMX
(a) Employee benefits expenses (including (a) EERABX(BREE=MS)
directors’ emoluments)
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETTF
HKS$'million  HK$'million
HEBT BEEAT
Salaries, wages, bonuses and He o TE - B4 N H A EEY
other allowances 96 119
Contributions to retirement RO FRGT B R
contribution plan 2 1
98 120
Employees’ share-based BB Z AR RS RAL
payment expenses 10 4
108 124
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e B HRR M

For the year ended 31 March 2021 & =F = —

8

FZRA=+—HLHEE

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES (Continued)

(b)

Five highest paid employees

Of the five individuals with the highest
emoluments in the Group, one (2020: one) was the
director of the Company and one (2020: one) was
the senior consultant of the Company, whose
emoluments are included in the disclosure set out
in Note 8(c) below. The emolument of the highest
paid individual except directors and senior
consultant is as follows:

Salaries, wages, bonuses and
AL

other allowances
Share-based payment expenses

e I& i

PAB AR T2 A 3R 32

8 EEBAAX(E)
(b) HEEEREFHEE
EAEEFNSEs2REEERNET
ER . —R(ZE2EZEF: —F)A
ARREE Z—H(ZE_FF:
—Z)AEARFSRER  HileE
BIEELNTHI S FTIEEE R - B
BEE koA ERN FTss 2@
FIETHMEMT :
2021 2020
___g___—ﬂi —7—75'5
HK$'million  HK$'million
BEET BEET
AT % HoA
5 4
1 _
6 4

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

e T TSRz AR :

Number of individuals

A
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
Emolument band: < #[E -

HK$1,000,001-HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 77T 2 1,500,000/8 7T - 2
HK$1,500,001-HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7 7T £ 2,000,000 78 7T 2 1
HK$2,000,001-HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7% 7T Z 2,500,000 87T - -
HK$2,500,001-HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7% 7T Z 3,000,000 77T 1 -

During the year ended 31 March 2021, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the
directors or the five highest paid individuals as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or
as compensation for loss of office (2020: Nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 HE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

8 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES (Continued)

(c)

Directors’ and senior consultant’'s emoluments

The emoluments paid or payable to each director

were as follows:

For the year ended 31 March 2021

8 EEBAMX(E)

(c)

ESRSRERNE

Contributions

Salaries to retirement

ENSENSESZTZMENT

WE-B--F=B=+-HL%F

and other  contribution  Share-based
Fee allowances plan payment Total
ek BARER DY)
e Hit 2R HE G FAMAR st
HK$'million ~ HK$'million  HK$'million ~ HK$'million  HK$'million
BEAT HEAR BHEAR HEAER EY- Y
Executive directors HTES
Xu Haiying HBE = 0.7 - - 0.7
Dr. Zhiliang Ou, J, BEREL  crer = 0.7 = = 0.7
Fok Chi Tak ErE - 4.8 - 4.2 9.0
- 6.2 - 4.2 10.4
Non-executive directors FUTES
Wang Yu (note i) TF (5t - 0.4 - - 0.4
Li Yao (note i) iR (M5ti) - 0.1 - - 0.1
- 0.5 - - 0.5
Independent non-executive BIFHITES
directors
Chan Ming Sun, Jonathan 57424 0.2 = = = 0.2
Lam Kwan Sing WEH 0.2 - - - 0.2
Lee Chi Hwa, Joshua TR 0.2 - - - 0.2
0.6 - - - 0.6
Senior consultant BHREE
Ms.LishaoYulnotedd ~  FOFREMED) - ks - L
Total st 0.6 20.5 - 4.2 25.3
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Aceso Life Science Group Limited o {884 mEHTEE AR A A

g ,/ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HRR M

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #;

E-F-—F=A=t-ALEE

8 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES (Continued) 8 EEEFMAX(E)
(c) Directors’ and senior consultant’s emoluments () EERSHERME (E)
(Continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2020 HE_ZT-_TF=-A=+—HLF
g
Contributions
Salaries  to retirement
and other  contribution  Share-based
Fee allowances plan payment Total
ek RRER PARR 7
we Hi28h RS AR st
HK$'million HKS$'million HKS$'million HK$'million HKS$'million
BEATL BEAT HEATL BEATL BEABT
Executive directors BiTE=S
Xu Haiying EE - 0.6 - - 0.6
Dr. Zhiliang Ou, J. BE=Et  crur - 0.7 - - 0.7
Fok Chi Tak EE - 49 - 2.5 74
- 6.2 - 2.5 8.7
Independent non-executive BV EHITES
directors
Chan Ming Sun, Jonathan 5§70l 0.2 - - - 0.2
Lam Kwan Sing MEB 0.2 - - - 02
Lee Chi Hwa, Joshua TR 0.2 - - - 0.2
0.6 - - - 0.6
Senior consultant ERERE
Ms.lishoow —  Fd¥t+ - M3 R - 143
Total et 0.6 20.5 - 2.5 236
Notes: Mk
()  Wang Yu and Li Yao were appointed as non-executive 0] IFRFBRR-_Z-_ZFN\A+N\BE
Directors on 18 August 2020. ZERFHTES -
(i) Ms. Liis a controlling shareholder of the Company. (i) FREA/ERRABIZEREE -

194 Annual Report %% 2020/21



Aceso Life Science Group Limited o =854 @ EHEEEFR A A)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 HE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES (Continued)

()

(e)

(f)

(9)

(h)

Directors’ retirement benefits

No retirement benefits were paid to or receivable
by any directors in respect of their other services
in connection with the management of the affairs
of the Company or its subsidiaries undertaking
(2020: Nil).

Directors’ termination benefits

No payment was made to directors as
compensation for the early termination of the
appointment during the year (2020: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services

No payment was made to the former employer of
directors for making available the services of them
as a director of the Company (2020: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled
bodies corporate by and connected entities
with such directors

There were no loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such
directors during the year (2020: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and
contracts in relation to the Company’s business to
which the Company was a party and in which a
director of the Company or an entity connected to
a director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year (2020:
Nil).

BERERAMAX(E)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(9)

(h)

ESERNEFN

MEEFHEMMERERQARSHE
BB~ B E 5% B AR R 2 H b AR

BB R KRN (—F
TE |

EEBBEN

AEEWEAEE N EMMEAF
RREERLEZEZHE(ZE-F
FE)

RETE=ZSTURESRERURK 2
RE

WERAMTEESREE S HEMRKIE
NEZSEEEEARRRESRMGE
R (ZE_FF ) -

FREANRES HIFESEH
ZEABBRRRZEESTHRER

BrEN BUERKRHEGARSZE
#

REAFE  WEEFMRES B%
EEEEGI O EANBRBREZSE
EEHEBEB2ER  BUBERK
HhR 5 (T _FF : &) -

EERRG  ZHIENHZEKR
e

RAB W ET LR AFE L REK
REENTABEHGFEEARAE
EREANGNESAHETERER
S EREAERNERERNDAER
BRZERRS  ZHHAH(ZF
ZTF | o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B HRR M

For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

9 EXPENSES BY NATURE

9 BMHEISZAX

2021 2020
=B - —T-TF
HK$'million  HK$'million
BHEBT BEET
Amortisation of intangible assets R EEEE 2 2
Auditor’s remuneration ZEEN I & 4 3
Cost of inventories sold EEFE/MA 32 27
Depreciation of: & -
— property, plant and equipment — % - BEMERE 51 47
— right-of-use assets —EREEE 10 8
Direct operating expenses from REMEMEAZ AERLERX
investment properties 47 40
Employee’s benefit expenses EERAMFEX 98 120
Legal and professional fee ERLEEXEN 33 19
Others Hih 11 50
288 316
Representing: Bl -
— Cost of revenue — AR K 133 129
— Administrative expenses — THAX 155 187
288 316
10 FINANCE COSTS 10 BERAK
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-ETF
HKS$'million  HK$'million
HE#BT BEBT
Interest expenses arising from: UTREZMERX :
— bank and other borrowings — SR REMEE 47 97
— corporate note payables — BN EEE 135 85
— convertible note payables — AT R R R 8 -
— lease liabilities —MHE&E 1 1
Exchange difference on borrowings BEECEL =5 (4) -
187 183
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1

e M RREE

For the year ended 31 March 2021 HE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE 11

The income tax expense in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss represented:

FR8BRAX

RAEBERPAERAE

2021 2020
—E-—-F —ECTEF
HK$'million  HK$'million
BEBTT BEETT

Current income tax B ERRRT1S X
— Current year — RFEE
— Hong Kong — BB 20 10
— Overseas — & 2 7
— Over-provision in prior years — BT FEEERE (10) -
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, L= -
Deferred income tax BIEPTIS M
— Current year — RFE (7) (6)
— Under-provision in prior years —RAFEREDTE 20 -
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 13 O
25 11

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at the rate of 8.25%
on the estimated assessable profit up to HK$2 million
and 16.5% on any part of estimated assessable profit
over HK$2 million for both years. Taxation arising in
other jurisdiction are calculated at the rates prevailing
in the relevant jurisdictions. Under-provision in prior
year represented the provision of capital gain tax in the
UK for the Group's investment properties (note 16)
under the new rules with effect from 1 April 2019. The
new rules apply to gains in value post 1 April 2019 with
applicable tax rate of 20%.

LRI ERME N RZ2EEBTME
FEMEHRN MEFEZHIETH K 8.25% 5
B BARTERTENBH2BEEETLZ
WoMmE - BIR16.5% 1 H - A BlEE
EBATELZHRIZE@RIEER 2 RITH
KiE - EFRBTRERE_Z—NF
mMA—BREEMZ IR A K EREE
ZEREMEARENBER BB (T
16) - FAAEAR =T —NFMA—H
&2 EEWE - BRAKRES20%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HRR M

For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

1

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 11 PSS (&)
The tax on the Group's loss before income tax differs REERAEHRABEY &2 BIEA IR
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the HKABENSHMEEE2E®EE B
Hong Kong Profits Tax rate as follows: ST
2021 2020
B C—ZT-FF
HKS$'million  HK$'million
BEBERT BEAT
Loss before income tax B BTIS TR A &S 18 (323) (267)
Less: Share of results of associates W DREE A RIER (196) (10)
Share of results of joint ventures DMEREDEEE (92) (42)
(611) (319)
Calculated at a tax rate of 16.5% Z16.5% K E
(2020: 16.5%) (ZZZFF 1 16.5%) (100) (53)
Effect of different tax rates of H b m) AR R B R R R =R
subsidiaries operating in TRz &
other jurisdictions (7) 1
Expenses not deductible ANETHOR A S2
for tax purposes 127 83
Income not subject to tax BERBIA (17) (51
Tax loss for which no deferred income  KRIERIELEMSFHSE L
tax amount was recognised T e a8 12 32
Utilisation of previously unrecognised  EhfA % RiAMER 2 FiIEE B
tax losses - )
Under-provision in prior years BEFEREDE 10 -
Income tax expense FTiSHi A 2 25 11
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 HE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

12

13

DIVIDEND 12 BRE

No dividend has been paid or declared by the HE-T-—F=A=+—HIEFE K

Company during the year ended 31 March 2021 (2020: AETEENHERRE(ZE_FF :

Nil). ") -

LOSS PER SHARE 13 BREE

(a) Basic (@) EXR
Basic loss per share was calculated by dividing the BREABERANAEZFAEA
loss for the year attributable to the equity holders EEFRNBERAFRNEEITEB
of the Company by the weighted average number Mz pntEF 8T E -

of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

2021 2020
—E--F —ZT_THF
Loss for the year attributable to the equity ANA BIKEZS B AJE(G FE X
holders of the Company (HK$'million) ER(BEBT) (376) (284)
Weighted average number of ordinary BETERRZ MEFHH
shares in issue (million shares) (ABK) 6,559 5,778
Basic loss per share (HK$ cents) G EAEE (GBI (5.73) (4.92)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B HRR M

For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

13 LOSS PER SHARE (Continued) 13
(b) Diluted

Diluted loss per share was calculated as follows:

BRER(E)
(b) #5F

FREEBEERAENT

2021 2020
—E--F —ZT_THF
HK$'million  HK$'million
BEBERT BEBT
Weighted average number of ordinary RUGESREREE 2 TR
shares for the purpose of basic loss IS8
per share 6,559 5,778
Adjustment for: KIATRIAAE
— Assumed exercise of call option — BRRITEREEE 455 -
Weighted average number of ordinary Rt EEREEER AR
shares for the purpose of diluted loss N E
per share 7,014 5,778
2021 2020
S a2
Loss for the year attributable to the equity N EIHERIEA AELEER
holders of the Company (HK$' million) BB (AEEETT) (376) (284)
Adjustments for: KT BIEFE -
— Assumed exercise of call option — RBRITER B
(HK$' million) (B8ET) (67) -
— Assumed grant of share awards by — REZREFEERIRE
Hao Tian International Construction EEBER AT
Investment Group Limited (“HTICI") ([EXREIRRZEFEE])
(HK$' million) Rk 28 (BE%ET) (1 -
Adjusted loss for the year attributable to ~ FRABESRE#EEE Y
equity holders of the Company used ARFRERFFEA
to determine the diluted loss per share  JE{EF AL AEEE (444) (284)
Weighted average number of ordinary BEITERRZ METHE
shares in issue (million shares) (BER) 7,014 5,778
Diluted loss per share (HK$ cents) B EEREE (B) (6.33) (4.92)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 HE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14 Y¥ - - BERRZE
Leasehold Furniture,
and and Leasehold fixtures and Motor
buildings  improvements  equipment Art works vehicles  Machinery (i Yacht (i) Total
BELH fih %B
kBT HENRRE FEG B it A A i) h

HKS'million HKS'million HKS'million HKS'million HKS'million HKS'million HK$'million HKS'million
BERT BEER BEAT BERT BEET BEAT BE#ET BEAT

At 1 April 2019 RZZ-NEWA-A

Cost A 112 9 ] 19 5 37 69 593
Accumulated depreciation ZithE 40) () o) - 2 79 (20 (15)
Net book amount BEFE 66 4 3 19 3 K I 87

Yearended 31 March 2020  BZ-Z-FE=B=+-H

[lx:3:54
Opening net book amount ENRERE 66 4 3 19 3 3 49 37
Additions KE - b 1 - - 28 4 3
Disposals HE (57) - - - - - - (57)
Depreciation it 2 (1) - - (1) (39) @ @)
Exchange difference EXzE Y U] - - - - - B
Reclassification to inventories BRI HEEFE - - - - - () - U]
Closing net book amount FRERSE 5 8 4 19 2 21 Q9 38
At 31 March 2020 R-ZZE5=f=t-A
Cost R 25 14 7 19 2 3% 73 53
Accumulated depreciation Z:iE (20) o 6] - - (114) (24) (167)
Net book amount REEFE 5 8 4 19 2 81 4 38
Year ended 31 March 2021 §Z-8--%=f=1-8
LEE

Opening net book amount ENEEEE 5 8 4 19 2 281 49 368
Additions AE - 2 - - 1 10 2 15
Disposals & - - = = = (6) = 8)
Depreciation il (1) (1) (1) - - (43) (5) (51)
Impairment W = 6) (1) = = (42) 1) (70)
Exchange difference ERZR 2 - - - - - - 2
Closing net book amount ERERGE 6 3 2 19 3 200 25 258
At 31 March 2021 RZE--E=f=1-H
Cost [ 21 15 1 19 3 N 75 517
Accumulated depreciation ZHITER

and impairment i (21) (12) (5) - - (17) (50) (259)
Net book amount BE3E 6 3 2 19 3 200 25 258
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HRR M

For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Notes:

@

Non-current assets pledged as security (note 42)

As at 31 March 2021, the carrying amount of property, plant
and equipment of approximately HK$108 million was pledged
to secure borrowings (31 March 2020: HK$151 million).

The Group carried out reviews of the recoverable amount of its
property, plant and equipment in 2021 as a result of the
deterioration of the markets of the Group’s products and
services. These assets are used in the Group's rental and sale
of construction machinery and spare parts segment and certain
assets are corporate assets. The reviews led to the recognition
of an impairment loss of HK$70 million, that has been
recognised in profit or loss. The recoverable amount of the
relevant assets of HK$225 million has been determined on the
basis of fair value less costs of disposal using discounted cash
flow method (level 3 fair value measurements).

15 LEASES

(i)

Amounts recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position

14 9% - BERRE(E)

GEX

0]

(ii)

15 #HE

(i)

EEMIERBAEF SRR (H5E42)

RZZEZ—F=A=+—0 ¥ BEEX
HBZREENA108EEE L BEMAEE
ﬁé%ﬁ(:%‘i:;fizﬂ =+—H:151BE#

JT) ©

BN AREER KRB ZTHERBE - BA
SEBEM_T_—FNE BERREZA
WE e - ZEEEMNAEE 2 BEEM N
BRSHEENRHEEN R ETEERRAE
E-HwHEMSRSYHRREBR0BE
AL ARBIRCNBRRRER - HEEEZH
WRISER225BEET  ERBRRRASRE
E(B=ZRRNTFEFE) RATFEBBEKRAR
HE -

REMBRRBRPER 2 EH

2021 2020
—E-—F —T_TF
HK$'million  HK$'million
BHEETT BEET
Right-of-use assets EREEE
Offices T/NE 19 25
Warehouses BB 3 6
Machinery e, 10 11
Motor vehicles RE 1 1
33 43
Lease liabilities HEERE
Non-current IERH (18) (28)
Current Nk (11) (12)
(29) (40)

No additions to the right-of-use assets during the
year ended 31 March 2021 (2020: HK$38 million).

The total cash outflow for leases for the year
ended 31 March 2021 was approximately HK$13
million (2020: HK$19 million).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15 LEASES (Continued)

(i)

B ISR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 HE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

Amounts recognised in the consolidated

statement of profit or loss

15 #HE(E)
(i) SABEXRRTERIZLHE

The consolidated statement of profit or loss shows FAERRBTIATEHESERAZ
the following amounts relating to leases: TR
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
HK$'million  HK$'million
BEABT BEET
Depreciation of right-of-use assets {FREEEITE
— Offices —WRE 5 4
— Warehouses — BB 3 2
— Machinery — R 1 1
— Motor vehicles a2 1 1
10 8
Interest expenses (note 10) FERX (M5 10) 1 1
Expenses related to short-term HEHEERE MY
leases 1 11
Lease commitments of 5EEAEE 2 HE A
short-term leases 1 -
The maturity analysis, based on RIBARIRINEMEBEST
undiscounted cash flows, of AEEHEREZZH
the Group's lease liabilities is ERDITOT
as follows:
— Less than 1 year — —FRX 12 14
— Between 1 and 2 years — —EMFE 8 11
— Between 2 and 5 years —MERF 10 19
30 44
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HRR M

For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

15 LEASES (Continued)

(i)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Lease liabilities

(iii)

15 HEE)

HERE

Present value of lease

Lease payments payments

HEMK HEMNRERE
2021 2020 2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF —E-—F ZETF
HKS$'million HK$'million HKS$'million HK$'million
BEBRT BEAET BEBRT BEET
Within one year —FR 12 14 11 12

In the second to fifth years, FE_FEERF

inclusive (EEMERIETA) 18 30 18 28
30 44 29 40
Less: Future finance charges i : RIEEIE & B (1) (4) N/ATER N/AT i A
Total ey 29 40 29 40

The Group's leasing activities and how these
are accounted for

The Group leases various offices, warehouses,
machinery and motor vehicles. Rental contracts
are typically made for fixed period but may have
extension options as described in (iv) below.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis
and contain a wide range of different terms and
conditions. The lease agreements do not impose
any covenants other than the security interests in
the leased assets that are held by the lessor.
Leased assets may not be used as security for
borrowing purposes.

Extension and termination options

Extension and termination options are included in
certain leases across the Group. These are used to
maximise operational flexibility in terms of
managing the assets used in the Group’s
operations. The majority of extension and
termination options held are exercisable only by
the Group and not by the respective lessor.

Lease liabilities were effectively secured as the
rights to the leased assets recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position revert
to the lessor in the event of default.
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(iv)

(vi)

AEEzHEERHURZFERD 2
BHEERE

AEEHEHRSERLAE BB #
WMEAE - HEAH —REZEER
HARTSL - MERTBE LB XX (iv) /AT
AT RS2 -

HERFRBENBERESD - 22
ERETR 2 BRBMRE - BREEA
RACHEREY M2 B MERI -
HEHZETSEMEMNREE - HE
BETSRAEEEER -

ERRAILRERE

ERME DEEETANEEER
ETHE EERASBEEKHME
BE E FREZFEAAERER
BEBERNL - IFAMITER R
RIPEERETHASETE B
TEEBELBEATTE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16

B ISR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 HE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16 REYHE
2021 2020
—E-—-F —ECEF
HK$'million  HK$'million
BEBET BEET
At fair value ARAFE
Beginning of the year F1]) 1,432 1,381
Fair value gain A EWER 10 140
Exchange alignment PE 5 32X 161 (89)
End of the year FER 1,603 1,432
Notes: 3T -
(i) Non-current assets pledged as security (note 42) [0) BHEMIEREEEFEAIRR (WE42)
As at 31 March 2021, the carrying amount of investment RZZEZ—F=A=+—0 BEVEZER
properties of approximately HK$1,603 million was pledged to BHR/1603EEET  BEEFAERES(Z
secure borrowings (31 March 2020: HK$1,432 million). T-EF=A=+—H:1432BEBT) °
(i) Leasing arrangements iy HEZH
The investment properties are leased to tenants under REMERBRKLEAELATHES HEagE
operating leases with rental payable quarterly. There are no JERT—IR o AR B AR 2 TR E R
variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate. R REBUERASVBURKEEERBKE
Where considered necessary to reduce credit risk, the Group ShAEHRERUELR -

may obtain guarantees for the term of the lease.
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17

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

17 EBREE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HRR M

For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

Securities
Brand brokerage Customer
Goodwill name licenses list
(note a) (note b) (note ¢) (note b) Total
HE mEEE BHRLLER EFRE
(Hsta) (KfEEb) (MfEEc) (BraEb) @st
HK$'million HK$'million HK$'million HKS$'million HK$'million
AEBT BEAT HEAETL BHEBTL HEBT
At 1 April 2019 R-E-hEMA-H
Cost B AR 415 167 4 8 594
Accumulated amortisation RETEERAE
and impairment (316) - - 4 (320)
Net book amount REFE 99 167 4 4 274
Year ended 31 March 2020 BE-_ZE-_EF¥=H=+-H
HEE
Opening net book amount FUREFE 99 167 4 4 274
Amortisation iy - - - 2 2
Impairment B (86) - - - (86)
Closing net book amount FREMFE 13 167 4 2 186
At 31 March 2020 R-B-B&=H=+-H
Cost DN 415 167 4 8 594
Accumulated amortisation A ELAE
and impairment (402) - - (6) (408)
Net book amount REFE 13 167 4 2 186
Year ended 31 March 2021 BE-_ZE-_-f#=H=+-H
HEE
Opening net book amount FREFE 13 167 4 2 186
Amortisation B - - - (2) (2)
Impairment RE (13) (15) = = (28)
Closing net book amount FRIEMFE - 152 4 - 156
At 31 March 2021 R-E--§=B=+-H
Cost AR AR 415 167 4 8 594
Accumulated amortisation ZEHEERRE
and impairment (415) (15) = (8) (438)
Net book amount REHE - 152 4 = 156
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e BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2021 HE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

17 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Goodwill

The amount arose on the acquisitions of crawler
crane business in HTICI and Fujian Nuogi Co.,
Limited (“Fugian Nuogi”) in February 2017.

The recoverable amount of crawler crane business
in HTICI has been determined based on a value in
use calculation.

The Group carried out reviews of the recoverable
amount of its intangible assets in 2021 as a result
of the deterioration of the markets of the Group's
products and services. These assets are used in
the Group's crawler crane business in HTICI. The
review led to the recognition of an impairment
loss of HK$13 million and 15 million for goodwill,
brand name and customer lists respectively that
have been recognised in profit or loss. The
recoverable amount of the relevant assets of
HK$152 million (2020: HK$182 million) has been
determined on the basis of their value in use using
discounted cash flow method (level 3 fair value
measurements). The calculation uses cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved
by management covering a five-year period with a
discount rate of 14% (2020: 11.5%). Cash flow after
the five-year period are extrapolated at 3% (2020:
3%) growth rate. Another key assumption for the
value in use calculation is the budgeted revenue
and gross margin, which is determined based on
the unit's past performance and management's
expectations for the market development.

Brand name and customer list

The amount arose on the acquisitions of crawler
crane business in HTICI in February 2017. The
recoverable amount has been determined based
on basis detailed in note 17(a).

17 BREE(E)

(a)

E

EZ%%E§_7 tE-_ABRBEEX
BREZRRERBEEETRNDAR
/AT(HEE'@E%Z? IR PEERE
& oo

EREFRERREZETmEER
bR EREFEREBTERS
JREEIE °

HRANREERMRTBZHHER
Bl MAKREEEN _T_—F
BRYEEZAROEHE RFEE
ARAEBEZRERERREZ
BERmEER - BEHNAMSBEN

ARNEBEDERZEHE  mEAE
AEPREDRIERRERE13A

BEELRISEEETL HEEEZ
AlEeEAIR2EEET(ZE
%iW&EE%ﬁ)ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%
FTET?K)EH Hﬁiﬁﬁzﬁu%mué/f(kk_

FEAR)ERE - %Hﬁﬁ%ugﬁ
EHMEZAFHMBEERERZ
REMETER - BMIREF14%(ZF
—TEFEN5%) c AFEHEREIES
MEBUAI%(ZTZTF :3%) 21
REHEE - EREEFEZ2E @
FARBRAEEWRAREMNE 5

BESML s BEIRBELEEEY M
B R HIEEETE -
REEBREERE
ZeBWE_T—tF_ARBEEREX

BRZRNEETARETES -
A E S BERENE 17 PR
ZEMETE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 & =F = —

17

FZRA=+—HLHEE

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

(c)

Securities brokerage licenses

The amount arose on the acquisitions of Hao Tian
International Securities Limited ("HTIS") in
February 2017.

The recoverable amount of HTIS has been
determined based on a value in use calculation.
The calculation uses cash flow projections based
on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-year period with a discount rate of
17% (2020: 13%). Cash flow after the five-year
period are extrapolated at 3% (2020: 3%) growth
rate. Another key assumption for the value in use
calculation is the budgeted revenue and gross
margin, which is determined based on the unit’s
past performance and management'’s
expectations for the market development.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 HE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

18 SUBSIDIARIES

The Group's principal subsidiaries at 31 March 2021 are
set out below. Unless otherwise stated, they have share
capital consisting solely of ordinary shares that are held
directly by the group, and the proportion of ownership
interests held equals the voting rights held by the
group. The country of incorporation or registration is
also their principal place of business.

(a) Particulars of the principal subsidiaries

18 MIBAF

AEER-Z-_—F=-A=1+—HzZxZ
B ARSI T - REBIHAIN - ZF
MBARZBRAEREREERA LB
IRAERK - PRSP AR 2 L OIEERE
E R B 2R o sz ket B K IR
RETEEFEME -

(a) EEMERAFE

Issued and Material
Place of fully paid up non-wholly
incorporation/ share capital/ owned Ownership interest
Name of entity establishment registered capital subsidiaries held by the Group Principal activities
BRARMRERE/ EXf2E
LLEL HfAT/ HIEE  ERER HELR AREER L ARRR IERH
2021 200
—3o-f Z3C%E
Aceso-Promethera Asia Company Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000 100% - Investment holding
("Aceso-Promethera”)
Aceso-Promethera Asia Company Limited B 10007 REER
( Aceso-Promethera )
Alcott Global Limited ("Alcott”) BvI US$100 53% - Investment holding
Alcott Global Liited ([ Alcott ) ABRTES 100X RERR
Beijing Hao Tian Investment Fund PRC US§370,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
Management Co,, Limited
PRERREELERARAT A 3I0000%TC REER
Big Wish Developments Limited ('Big Wish") ~ BVI US8100 53% - Investment holding
Big Wish Developments Limited ([Big Wish ) ~ £ &E& 100%7 REER
Chim Kee Company Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 /0 53% 71%  Construction machinery rental and
trading and sales of construction
materials business
GHARAT B 1,000,000/ 7 BABREARHENRREH
HEER
Chim Kee Machinery Co., Limited Hong Kong HKS1 53% 71%  Construction machinery rental and
trading and sales of construction
materials business
GRERARAT B 137 BABREARHENRREIH
HEXR
Dasar Prisma San. Bhd(*Dasar”) Malaysia Malaysian Ringgit 2 53% - Property development
Dasar Prisma Sdn. Bhd. ([ Dasar) ERED ERELLE ELE
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

18 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 18 MEBAT (&)
(a) Particulars of the principal subsidiaries (a) FEMBARFHEE)
(Continued)

Issued and Material
Place of fully paid up non-wholly
incorporation/ share capital/ owned Ownership interest
Name of entity establishment registered capital subsidiaries held by the Group Principal activities
BRARARRE/ EXf2E
1B SR/ AL ERER HELR AEEEEERRR IERH
2021 2020
“EC-f -30%E
Esteem Ocean Limited BVI Usst 100% 100%  Investment holding
HEBRAT RERNHS B3 RERR
Fujian Nuogj Co,, Ltd PRC RMB122,158,800 60% 0%  Retaling of men's and
women's apparels
EREARNERAR w8 ARH122,158, 8007 BRRAFER
Glory Century Limited Hong Kong HK$100 /0 52% 70%  Investment holding and
provision of group management
and administration services
SHRRAR (3 10077 RARRARRREREER
TR
Hao Tian Credit Company Limited Hong Kong HK$200,000,000 /0 52% 70%  Moneylending
RRGEEARAA B 2000000007 i
Hao Tian Finance Company Limited Hong Kong HK$1,210,000,000 100% 100%  Money lending
ZRUBERLA B 12100000008 T e
Hao Tian Hua Tong (Beijing) Co., Limited PRC RMB5,000,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
RRER(LR)BHERAA hE ARM 50000007 RERR
Hao Tian International Bullion Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 52% 70%  Commodities brokerage
ZRERSEARAR B 10,000,000 7T Amia
Hao Tian International Financial Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 52% 70%  Investment holding
Holdings Limited
SRERERERARAT B 10,000,000/87 RERR
Hao Tian International Securities Limited Hong Kong HK$100,000,000 52% 70%  Securities brokerage business
EREBESERAR & 100,000,000/ 70 EFELER
Hao Tian Management (Hong Kong) Hong Kong HK$10,821 92% 92%  Securities investment, investment
Limited ("HTM") holding and provision of
management services
EXRER(BR)ARAA(EXER)) (3 1082137 EHRE  REMRRRHERRS
Hong Kong Energy & Mining Investment Hong Kong HKS1 100% 100%  Trading of futures
Management Limited
BERRRRRATEARLA B 137 HEER
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 HE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

18 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(a)

18 MEBATR (&)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries (a) ETEMBABIFE(E)
(Continued)
Issued and Material
Place of fully paid up non-wholly
incorporation/ share capital/ owned Ownership interest
Name of entity establishment registered capital subsidiaries held by the Group Principal activities
BRARMRRE/ EXF2E
ER2E AL/ AUk ERER HEAT AEEEEERRR TEER
2021 2020
“EC-f -30%E

HTICI Cayman Islands HK$66,593,831 J 52% 70%  Investment holding

ERERERRE GEEE 665938317 RERR

KB Machinery Co. Limited Hong Kong HK$1 52% 70%  Construction machinery rental and

trading and sales of construction
materials business

BHERERAT & %7 BERHEERHEN RRENH

HEXH

Merrymaking Investment Limited BVI US810,000 100% 100%  Investment holding

ABRLES 10007 REER
Pleasing Results Limited BVI US§50,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
ABRAES 50000%7 REBR
Win Team Investments Limited Britsh Virgin Islands ~ US§1 100% 100%  Investment holding
("BVI")
ABRLES B3 REBR
([HBRzHR)
55 Mark Lane S.ar.l. Luxembourg Euro20,000 100% 100%  Rental business
ERE 2000087 REXH

Notes: gL

(1) The English names of certain subsidiaries represent the () BERETHBLRNEENEEHE -
best effort by the Group’s management to translate their MZENBRARZANEBDAEEE
Chinese names, as these subsidiaries do not have official BREWNBEEP R -

English names.

(2)  The cash at bank and other financial institution of (@) FEMERRREE 2 RITREAM S R
approximately HK$32 million (2020: HK$27 million) held BzREHNNBEEBET(ZZE_T4F -
by the PRC subsidiaries were subject to local exchange 27ABET) AR EMINEE HIIROIT
control regulations. These local exchange control RIR - ZFEHINEETIRORTE - B
regulations provided for restrictions on exporting capital FEBEEREN  REEANE L E
from the country other than through normal dividends. PN

(3)  All the above PRC-incorporated subsidiaries are limited Q) AP EEMEZINEARS AR

liability companies.

REMERF °
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

18 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(b) Material non-wholly owned subsidiaries

The Group assessed those subsidiaries that have
non-controlling interests that are considered
material to the Group based on their relative size
in terms of total assets and revenue. Set out below
are the summarised financial information before
inter-company eliminations for these subsidiaries:

(i) Chim Kee Company Limited

18 MEBATR (&)

(b)

EXRFZEWBLAF

AEERBZENBRARZAEE

RWAZBEHRE  FEEARR
RUAKEEERTE ZIFRBE
HZAEMBAR - TXHEHIZF
MEBARRARMIEHEN WK E
R

(i) SLERIE

2021 2020
S “EITRF
HKS$'million HK$'million
BEETL BEAT
Assets and liabilities as at 31 March RZB=t-HZzEERERE
Current assets MEBEE 67 158
Non-current assets FRBEE 222 187
Current liabilities nBaR (63) (90)
Non-current liabilities ERBERE (65) (82)
161 173
Profit or loss for the year BE=A=1+-ALFEZEH
ended 31 March
Revenue WA 42 33
Loss and total comprehensive loss FRBEREABERAR
for the year (12) (10
Loss allocated to non-controlling interests 7 2 3F1E A% 7 18 (5) (3)
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests St f+f T3 2 2 7 B = -
Cash flows for the year BEZA=+-HLEEZ
ended 31 March RERE
Net cash inflow from operating activities & EBH LT AFE 28 51
Net cash inflow from investing activities ~ REZHHEERAFE = -
Net cash outflow from financing activities E&/EEIE &KL FHE (25) (59
8 8)
Accumulated non-controlling interests ~ RitJE iR 77 52
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18 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 18 MIBAT (&)
(b) Material non-wholly owned subsidiaries by EXFEZEWBAT(E)
(Continued)
(i) Glory Century Limited (il FHERIE
2021 2020
—B--F —ZT_THF
HK$'million HK$'million
BEAT BEATL
Assets and liabilities as at 31 March R=HA=+—-B2EERER
Current assets MBEE 461 317
Non-current assets FRBEE 20 4
Current liabilities mEBE (385) (267)
Non-current liabilities FRBAE (16) -
80 54
Profit or loss for the year HE=A=1+—-HLEE
ended 31 March 2Bz
Revenue WA - -
Profit and total comprehensive FREMNREEREEE
income for the year 26 32
Profit allocated to non-controlling DBCE IR 2 A
interests 11 10
Dividend paid to non-controlling XA T IEERR R 2 R
interests - -
Cash flows for the year BEZ=A=1+-HLEE
ended 31 March ZEERE
Net cash outflow from operating RESEEIRE R R
activities (36) (41)
Net cash inflow from investing REEHHEERAFE
activities 6 71
(30) 30
Accumulated non-controlling Rt FERER
interests 38 16
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18 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(b) Material non-wholly owned subsidiaries

(Continued)

(iii) Hao Tian Credit Company Limited

MR ()
(b) BAKZEMEAF ()

(i) RAXEEHRAE

2021 2020
—E--F —ZT_THF
HK$'million HK$'million
BEER BEBT
Assets and liabilities as at 31 March R=A=+—-BzEERER
Current assets mEEE 179 251
Non-current assets ERBEE 132 58
Current liabilities nEaR (46) (46)
Non-current liabilities FRBAE - (6)
265 257
Profit or loss for the year HE=A=1—-HLEE
ended 31 March 2Bz
Revenue A 37 17
Profit and other comprehensive FREMNEMEERE
income for the year 8 38
Profit allocated to non-controlling DBCE RS 2 5 A
interests 3 i
Dividend paid to non-controlling X T IEERR R 2 R
interests - -
Cash flows for the year BE=A=1+-HLEE
ended 31 March ZEERE
Net cash inflow from operating EESEERAFE
activities (134) 109
Net cash outflow from investing REEHEEREFE
activities 92 (70)
Net cash inflow from financing BEEHRERAFE
activities (6) 7
(48) 46
Accumulated non-controlling Rt RS
interests 126 77
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18 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 18 MIELRE (48)

(b) Material non-wholly owned subsidiaries (b) BERFZEMEBLT(E)
(Continued)
(iv) HTICI (iv) RXEIBZERRE
2021 2020
—E--F —ZT_THF
HK$'million HK$'million
HEBR BEAT
Assets and liabilities as at 31 March R=A=+—-BzEERER
Current assets mEEE 752 418
Non-current assets FRBEE 852 490
Current liabilities mEaR (292) (43)
Non-current liabilities FRBAE - (132)
1,312 733
Profit or loss for the year BZ=A=+—HLEE
ended 31 March ZEE
Revenue WA S 6
Loss for the year FREE (57) 9
Other comprehensive income Hit 2 E 11 -
Total comprehensive loss PHEBRARE (46) 9
Loss allocated to non-controlling DEEIFERER 2 BB
interests (23) 3)
Dividend paid to non-controlling PRI R 2 R
interests - -
Cash flows for the year HZE=A=1t—-HILEE
ended 31 March ZRERE
Net cash outflow from operating KEEHEeREFE
activities 292 8)
Net cash inflow from investing KREZHHEESRAFR
activities (258) -
Net cash inflow from financing A ESE SRR
activities (45) -
(11) ®)
Accumulated non-controlling Rt FERER
interests 625 219
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

18 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(c)

Transactions with non-controlling interests

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the
following transactions were entered into with non-

controlling interests:

i)

(ii)

(iii)

In April 2020, HTICI completed a share swap
with Oshidori International Holdings Limited
("Oshidori”), an independent third party,
where HTICI issued and allotted 625 million
shares of HTICI in exchange for
approximately 188 million shares in Oshidori.

In September 2020, HTICI entered into a
placing agreement with a placing agent to
conditionally issue approximately 234 million
shares at HK$0.285 per placing share. The
transaction was completed within the same
month.

In September 2020, HTICI entered into a sale
and purchase agreement to acquire 100%
equity interests in a target company which
holds 22% equity interest in a project
company incorporated in the Kingdom of
Cambodia. The total consideration was
HK$1,125 million, which shall be settled upon
completion of the acquisition as to (i) HK$125
million by the allotment and issue of the 500
million shares of HTICI at the issue price of
HK$0.25 per share; (i) HK$850 million by the
issue of notes; and (iii) HK$150 million by the
issue of the convertible notes of the
subsidiary at the conversion price of HK$0.30
per share. The acquisition was completed in
January 2021. 500 million consideration
shares were issued in January 2021. The
consideration convertible notes were early
converted into the ordinary shares of HTICl in
February 2021.
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RZZ_ZTFMA - 2RER
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Oshidori International
Holdings Limited ([ Oshidori])
TR - B EREIRE
BRI EBITRAELESASR
SRBIBREREERD - LR
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18 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(c)

Transactions with non-controlling interests
(Continued)

The above transactions changed the ownership
interests but did not result in a loss of control in
HTICI. The Group recognised a decrease in equity
attributable to equity owners of the Company
approximately HK$63 million and an increase in
non-controlling interests of approximately HK$585
million in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the
following transactions were entered into with non-
controlling interests:

() In August 2019, the Group acquired the
remaining 16.53% in Hao Tian Finance
Company Limited. The transaction was
satisfied in full by the allotment and issue of
800 million consideration shares by the
Company. Upon the completion of the Share
Acquisition, Hao Tian Finance has become a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group.

(i) In August 2019, HTICI completed the
acquisition of assets with appraised value of
approximately HK$84 million, which was
satisfied in full by the allotment and issue of
the approximately 276 million consideration
shares of HTICI.

The above transactions changed the ownership
interests but did not result in a loss of control in
subsidiaries. The Group recognised an increase in
equity attributable to equity owners of the
Company of approximately HK$177 million and a
decrease in non-controlling interests of
approximately HK$153 million was recognised in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

18 MEBATR(E)

(c)

HEFERERCIRS (B)

AR ZEREEE R LIREE)
B EEHREHZREREZREK
B2t NEBRGAEDE
BRAERARA DR ARKL
BB K63 B &8 7T MR ERUE
I IN#) 585 B EATT ©

HE_Z_TF=A=+—RHILF
B DEIERERAIIATRS

() MZZT-NAFNA TEBWK
BERAMBER XA K
16.53% it ° Z X BB BAR
A% M EE 17800 A B IR B
B in BB - Bein B Ak
® EXUBERSAEEZ
2EMBAR] -

(i) M-T—AFN\AF 2XREEK
ERRETRWBHELN R84
BEBTLCEE  JIEBRL%E
REITH276H ERE KRB
ERBRERERODBREN -

ARG EMBREER LIRSS -
B EBHREHWE QR ZZH
o REBRGAEREHRAME
RN R A A FE A #E 2 38 0
177 B BB T R IEERRER R 40
153BEBABTT °
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

19 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 19 REEQRzER
2021 2020

—E-—F —E-TF
HK$'million  HK$'million
BEBTT BEBIT

Beginning of the year FH) 94 78
Acquisition of associates (notes) Weag s 2 A A) (MYst)
— Investment costs — WERA 1,051 6
Share of results: DG
— Post-acquisition results — WEEES (19) 10
— Excess of net fair value of — AHREEA T EFEER
identifiable assets over costs of BRERAZ B (FizEa)
investments (note 41) 215 -
End of the year EFR 1,341 94
Set out below are the associates which, in the opinion TYHEHWESERZARN _ZET-—F=AH
of the directors, are material to the Group as at 31 —t+—HEAEEmEBEA B ERF] -
March 2021.
Place of
Name of entity establishment % of ownership interest Principal activities
EREER B L 3 B FERESEA DL TEXH
2021 2020
—E--F “TCTF

Grand Peaceful Global Limited BVI 49% 49%  Licensing and

("Grand Peaceful”) development of IPs
RERIFAR AR (EEIRK]) RBRTES FAHEE R ERABERE
CESIZ (Cambodia) Co., Ltd Cambodia 22% - Property development

("CESIZ")
CESIZ (Cambodia) Co., Ltd ([CESIZ])  ®RiEE MEERE
Lion Run Holdings Limited BVI 49% - Licensing and

("Lion Run") development of IPs
WEERARAR (ERR]) RBRTES Rt e RERNBERE
Triple Blessing International Limited BV 49% - Licensing and

("Triple Blessing") development of IPs
“REBARRR([=EEE]) RBRTES FAHEE R ERABERE
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19 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Grand Peaceful

Grand Peaceful holds rights in various intellectual
properties (“IPs”) in PRC and has licensed the use
of such IPs to an independent third party for 10
years starting from 1 April 2019. The first year
licensing fee is approximately HK$53 million.
Licensing fee in subsequent years will be agreed
in written form one month before the anniversary.

CESIZ
Details of the acquisition please refer to note 41.
Lion Run

In December 2020, the Group entered into a sale
and purchase agreement with an independent
third party to acquire 49% equity interests in Lion
Run at a consideration of approximately HK$42
million. The consideration was settled by
transferring 16,290,000 shares in CA Cultural held
by the Group.

Triple Blessing

In September 2020, the Group entered into a sale
and purchase agreement with an independent
third party to acquire 49% equity interests in Triple
Blessing at a consideration of HK$49 million. The
consideration was settled by transferring
19,600,000 shares in CA Cultural held by the
Group.

All associates are private companies and there are no
quoted market prices available for their shares. All

associates are measured using the equity method.

There were no contingent liabilities relating to the
Group's investments in associates as at 31 March 2021
(2020: Nil).

Set out below are the summarised financial information
for the material associates since completion of
acquisition.

NN e )
() REREB

RERBERTBRFEZBMNRERE
(THMRERE]D 2B BT —
BELE=FERAZENBERE -
BT NFMHA—HRF A0
Fo-HFHUNENARSBEESB T
HeFE a8 BN EFA—@
AUNEBEERBE -

(i) CESIZ
WREEFRB2MMEL -
(iii) WEEZR

RZTE-_TF+_H KREFHE—
EBIFE=ZFTLEEWHE AW
BN E IR 2 A9% AR HE - RB 4
BREBEITL - RENEREZREAN
EEEA 7 16,290,000 %2 B LA

N\ 4=E
NEETE ©

(iv) =EEIE

RZZZZFFENA AEEE—-F
BYR=NFILEE R AKE
—RERZ49%KE - REROA
BET HENEREBEAKER
8 219,600,000 A% 2 B 3 AL iz 1 45

3=
/8 °

BRI RILARE - BRI &
MISWE - B E RGN ELEAE -

M-Z-—£ZA=+—A  ARERY
BARZRELREARARBE(ZF=
T ) -

B EKEE A B B U IR T AGE
ZHBEEREE -
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19 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 19 REEARIZRER (E)

Grand Peaceful
ERERIRIR
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
HK$'million  HK$'million

BEETR BEET
Assets and liabilities R=ZA=+—H2
as at 31 March EEREE
Current assets mENEE 114 61
Non-current assets JERMBNEE 121 118
Profit or loss for the year BE=A=1+—HLEE
ended 31 March ki
Revenue WA 53 53
Profit and total comprehensive FRRARE2EK=ETE
income for the year 56 19
Net assets BEFE 235 179
Group's share in % AEESEASL 49 49
Group's share REEDE 115 88
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 HE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

19 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 19 REEQXATER(B)
CESIZ Lion Run Triple Blessing
CESIZ WERR =RER
2021 2021 2021
—E-—-& —E-—-F —E-—-&
HK$’'million HK$'million HK$'million
BEBR BHEER BHEBT
Assets and liabilities N=A=+—BzZEE
as at 31 March LREE
Current assets RBEE - 11 13
Non-current assets FERBEE 5,084 86 101
Current liabilities REAE (10) - =
Profit or loss for the year BE=A=1-HLEFE
ended 31 March ZEB&
Revenue A - 11 13
Loss and total comprehensive loss FRABERZABEES
for the year - (42) (51)
Net assets BEFE 5,074 97 114
Group's share in % AEEAEBEDE 22 49 49
Group's share REBNE 1,116 48 56

Set out below are the summarised financial information

TXEFNHAEEM S @RI TNERZHT

for the remaining associates which were individually BERNRIZMBERME
immaterial to the Group.
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FTF
HKS$'million  HK$'million
HEET BEAT
The Group's share on: KREENGLATEIE :
Profits and total comprehensive FRHEMNRE2EREREE
income for the year - -
Carrying amount of investments REBRMEE 6 6
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

20 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 20 REEtEzER

2021 2020

—E-—F —E-TF

HK$'million  HK$'million

BHEAET BEBT

Beginning of the year F1 451 165
Acquisition of joint ventures WA SPhE

— Investment costs — B KA - 244

Post-acquisition results W RS 92 42

Disposal (note ii) 4 & (BsEin) (429) -

End of the year FR 114 451

Set out below are the joint ventures which, in the

opinion of the directors, are material to the Group as at
31 March 2021.

TXHINESERRR T —F=A
=t BEAREEMEEBERZAERE -

Place of
Name of entity establishment % of ownership interest Principal activities
BERER B L 3t B FEREZBEDL TERH
2021 2020

—B--F% —ECETF

Success View Global Limited BVI 50% 50%  Licensing and
("Success View") development of IPs

ARBRHKERAR(TER]) EBREUHS Bt e RERNBERE

HT Riverwood Multi-Growth Fund ~ Cayman Islands -
HEMHS
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 HE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

20 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Success View

In March 2020, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with China Animation to
acquire 50% equity interests in Success View at a
consideration of HK$100 million. The
consideration was settled by the issuance of
convertible notes (note 35) issued by the
Company. The remaining 50% equity interests in
Success View was held by China Animation.

HT Riverwood Multi-Growth Fund

In November 2020, the Group transferred out its
management shares over HT Riverwood Multi-
Growth Fund. Since then, the Group could no
longer participate in the investment decision of
HT Riverwood Multi-Growth Fund. Accordingly,
such fund ceased to be a joint venture to the
Group and was classified as a financial asset at
FVTPL (note 22).

20 K&

(i)

(i)

4]

gihxoks(8)
=
=

RZE-ZEF=F AEEHEES
BEIVEEHE  NKEISsZ
50%f&HE - REEABI00BEEBIL - K
BHBEBBEITARAEITZAIRR
FBR(MHFB)EE - EEHERE
= Z BT 50% A fE -

HT Riverwood Multi-Growth Fund

RZZZTF+—R AEEGHE
FB A% {782 ) HT Riverwood Multi-Growth
Fund° Bt * NEBETEHFLEHT
Riverwood Multi-Growth Fund Z & %&
RE - Hit - ZESTHAAEEZ
EEbE  MEESERNAATER
EAHFHABRz2REE (M
i£22) -
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

20 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued) 20

Set out below are the summarised financial information
for material joint ventures since completion of

REgLEEE(E)

TXEINERGELFBWRBEERTHKE
ZHBEEREE -

acquisition.
HT Riverwood
Multi-Growth
Success View Fund
HT Riverwood
Multi-Growth
gs Fund
2021 2020 2020
—E--F —T_TF —TTF
HK$'million HK$'million HK$'million
BEBT BEAT BEAT
Assets and liabilities as at 31 March R=A=+—-BZEBEREE
Current assets TENEE 55 - 691
Non-current assets EREEE 167 174 -
Current liabilities mEaE - - (17)
Profit or loss for the year BZ=A=t-HLEE
ended 31 March 2B
Revenue WA 55 - 156
Profits and total comprehensive FRRF
income for the year PHEHNEEE 48 - 133
Net assets BESE 222 174 674
Group's share in % AEESEEDE 50 50 53.51
Group's share AEEHL 111 87 361
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 HE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued) 20 REeEEbECER(E)
Set out below are the summarised financial information TXHEHINEAREE NS @R TERZHT
for the remaining joint ventures which were individually BECEZMBEERRE -
immaterial to the Group.
2021 2020

—E-—F —E-FTF
HKS$'million  HK$'million
BEET BEET

The Group's share on: REESHATEE -
Profit and total comprehensive FRENEEE R AR
income for the year = -

Carrying amount of investments REREE 3 3
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 BEZ =& =

21

—F=RA=t+—HLHEE

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTOCI 21 UAFEFEEHEHS{FAHMERE
WEzemERE
2021 2020
=B —F —ET_TF
HK$'million  HK$'million
HEBET BEET
Unlisted equity securities (Note a) 3EJ:F5H§ZIK‘E%‘ ~ (Bt a) 346 352
Listed equity securities (Note b) PR AFE S (Bt b) 120 —
466 352
Notes: FEE -
(@) Amount represented the investments in private entities: (@) HEBEERLAERBZEE:
2021 2020
—BC-—-F i
HK$'million HK$'million
BEET BEBT
Gooduwill International Holdings Limited Goodwill International Holdings Limited 8 28
Co-lead Holdings Limited Co-lead Holdings Limited 32 28
Quan Yu Tai Investment Company Limited EURRIEEBARAT 306 296
346 352
The Group has irrevocably elected at initial recognition to REBE DRV RERR T A HE S R E R E

recognise the fair value of this equity instrument, which is not
held for trading but a strategic investment, through other
comprehensive income. No dividend income was received
during the year (2020: Nil).

On disposal of these equity investments, any related balance
within the FVTOCI reserve is reclassified to retained earnings.

In April 2020, HTICI completed a share swap with Oshidori,
where HTICI issued and allotted 625 million shares of HTICI in
exchange for approximately 188 million shares in Oshidori.
According to the swap agreement, there is a lock-up period of
two years from the date of issue for not to sell, offer to sell,
transfer or dispose. The Group has irrevocably elected at initial
recognition to recognise the fair value of this equity instrument,
which is not held for trading but a strategic investment,
through other comprehensive income. In January 2021, in view
of the strong performance in the stock market reaching its 6
months high, both HTICI and Oshidori mutually agreed to
release the aforesaid lock-up restriction. No dividend income
was received during the year.

The methods and assumptions used in determining the fair
value of the financial assets at FVTPL is summarised in note 3.3.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 HE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

22 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL 22 UAVEFEEHBEHARSZE
MEE
2021 2020

—E-—F —E-FTF
HKS$'million  HK$'million
BEET BEET

Non-current IETRE
Listed equity securities FTRATE S - 175
Current e
Listed equity securities TR ARE S 58 120
Unlisted fund investment (note a) JEETESKE (Msta) 511 50
Unlisted debt instruments ELETEBIA 15 12
Convertible note receivable (note b) FEM AT AR =1 (FisEb) 4 -
Derivative option agast=tik: - 17
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 58 199
588 374
Notes: BT -
(@)  Amount represented the investments in fund: (@) ZEBERERZERE:
2021 2020
—E-—fF —T-THF
HK$'million HK$'million
BEAT BEBT
Atlantis China Fund mEFEES 36 31
Riverwood Umbrella Fund Riverwood Umbrella Fund 19 19
HT Riverwood Multi-Growth Fund (note 20) HT Riverwood Multi-Growth Fund
(F7¥20) 456 -
511 50
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

22 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

In June 2020, the Group entered into a subscription agreement
and shareholders’ agreement with Co-High Investment
Management Limited (“Co-High”), an independent third party,
for the formation of a joint venture (“JV 1”) to undertake the
business of development, manufacture, sales and distribution
of therapeutic and diagnostic assets in the Greater China and
South East Asia. The Group holds 51% in this joint venture and
the financial results will be consolidated into the financial
statements of the Group. In July 2020, JV 1 entered into a JV
Agreement with Promethera Biosciences S.A./N.V.
("Promethera Biosciences”), an independent third party which
was incorporated under the laws of Belgium, for the formation
of a joint venture ("JV 2"), which will have the exclusive right to
engage in the development, commercialisation, sell and
distribution of cell-based and biological therapies for the
treatment of liver diseases, autoimmune diseases and various
types of cancer based on the applications and development of
contributed intellectual property of Promethera Biosciences in
the Asia. At the same time, the Company has conditionally
agreed to subscribe for convertible bonds of Promethera
Biosciences in the principal amount of up to Euro 10 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$88 million) in two equal
tranches. In July 2020, the Group subscribed the first tranche of
Euro 5 million (equivalent to approximately HK$44 million). The
Group did not subscribe the second tranche of Euro 5 million
convertible bond subscription.

As Promethera Biosciences faced with litigations of claims and
failed to obtain sufficient funding to support its research and
development activities, by application lodged in January 2021,
it requested that a judicial reorganisation procedure be
changed by collective agreement of creditors in order to
ensure that the continuity of its business is preserved under the
supervision of a delegated judge. The reorganisation plan was
approved by the Third Chamber of the Court of the Enterprise
of the Walloon Brabant in Belgium in March 2021. Included in
the reorganisation plan was the reduction of the rights of
creditors by 80% or provision for a payment of 20% payable in
5 years (2% per year for the first 4 years and 12% in the fifth
year), but with a better fortune clause of up to 100% of the
value as soon as the value of Promethera Biosciences exceeds
Euro 400 million at the time of its monetisation.

The methods and assumptions used in determining the fair
value of the financial assets at FVTPL is summarised in note 3.3.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 HE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE
23 LOAN RECEIVABLES 23 EWER

2021 2020
—E-—-F —ECFF
HK$'million  HK$'million
BEBTT BEETT

Non-current JEE
— Secured fixed-rate loan receivables — BB TR REMEK 92 95
— Less: Allowance for expected credit — & : TEHIS & E18 5
losses (3) 6)
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 8% 8
Current mE
— Secured fixed-rate loan receivables — &I E T F R EWE 2 133 257
— Unsecured fixed-rate loan — EIEHE T XRERER
receivables 590 610
— Less: Allowance for expected credit — i : TEHIE B E1ERE
losses (207) (169)
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 16 698
605 787
Note: HIEE -
(i) Non-current assets pledged as security (note 42) M BIRERFERZ MBI A E (HFE42)

As at 31 March 2021, the carrying amount of loan receivables of %:?:j*iii_ﬂ E—'—_E ﬁ@&%%zﬁ_ﬁg
approximately HK$54 million was pledged to secure BOMARBTEARERERZER(ZF

borrowings (31 March 2020: HK$48 million). —FF=A=T—RBERET) -
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

23 LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Movement on the allowance for expected credit loss
for loan receivables:

23 EWER(E)

RURERBEHEEBREGZES

HKS$'million

BEET

As at 1 April 2019 RZZ—hFHA—H 83
Recognised in the consolidated RiFEEERARER

statement of profit or loss 92

As at 31 March 2020 and 1 April 2020 RZZE-ZEF=A=+—H

kZZE-_TFMA—H 175

Amount written-off as uncollectible WsH AT e £ 58 (8)
Recognised in the consolidated iR & Em R AR

statement of profit or loss 43

As at 31 March 2021 RZE-_—F=H=+—H 210

For loan receivables that are not credit-impaired
without significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition (“Stage 1), ECLs is measured at an amount
equal to the portion of lifetime ECLs that result from
default events possible within the next 12 months. If a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition
is identified (“Stage 2”) but not yet deemed to be
credit impaired, ECL is measured based on lifetime
ECLs. In general, when loan receivables or its related
instalments are overdue by 30 days, there are
significant increase in credit risk. In general, loan
receivables are considered as default (“Stage 3") when
they are overdue by over 90 days.
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24 FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES

B ISR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 HE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

24 BMERERWAE

2021 2020
—E-—-F —ECTEF
HK$'million  HK$'million
BEBTT BEETT

Non-current
Finance lease receivables
Less: Allowance for expected

FERE
B EMEE RYGRIR 3 4
B ERHMEREREE

credit loss - )
S 3
Current E
_Finance lease receivables . meAmSEggyE 4 4

7 7

Certain of the Group’s machineries are leased out REBzETHERBOREREEEHME -
under finance leases. The term of finance leases Rl EREFMNF 26 E23F (=
entered into ranges from 2 years to 3 years (2020: 3 TTF 3FRAF) c PHEHAKR - K
years to 4 years). There was no unguaranteed residual EEVEEAREHERHSHAEER
value in connection with finance lease arrangements or P EBEERINBEREA AR MEHE
contingent lease arrangements of the Group that JEWFRIELATH E B E VR -

needed to be recorded as at the end of the reporting

period. Finance lease receivables are secured by the

leased assets.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

24 FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Maturity of lease payment receivables as follows:

24 BEMHSERWEGE)

WA E N Z BIHERMT :

2021 2020
—EB-—F —ETF

Minimum Present value Minimum Present value
lease of lease lease of lease
payments payments payments payments
BIK AEMR =K HEMK
FERRIE ZHE FEFRIE ZBE
HK$'million HK$'million HK$'million HK$million
BEAET BEET ABEET BEET
Within one year —FR 4 4 4
In the second year EF 3 3 2 2
In the third year F=F 1 - 1 1
8 7 8 7

Less: unearned finance B AR E WA
income (1) N/ATER m N/ANE
Total st 7 7 7 7
Movement on the allowance for expected credit loss BAEUGIETEEEEEERE Y 2F)

for finance receivables:

HK$'million
BEET

As at 1 April 2019, 31 March 2020

R-ZF-NFWA—A -

and 1 April 2020 —E_EF=R=+—H
M—Z-ZFPMA—H 1
Recognised in the consolidated RIFEEBERAER
statement of profit or loss Q)
As at 31 March 2021 RZE-_—F=A=+—H” -
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 HE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

25 CORPORATE NOTE RECEIVABLES 25 EREXFE

2021 2020
—E-—-F —ECFF
HK$'million  HK$'million
BEBT BEETT

Non-current FEMED
Imperial Pacific International Holdings 182 K+ BB IE AR B IR
Limited (“Imperial Pacific”) AR ([EEXRFF]D - 251
Less: Allowance for expected credit B TEHEEEERE
dosses e - o
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, -
Current mEN
Imperial Pacific BEAEF 262 -
CISI Investment Limited CISI Investment Limited 167 156
Less: Allowance for expected credit B FEEEEEEREE
losses (360) (26)
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 69 130
69 274
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

25 CORPORATE NOTE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

In June 2018, the Group purchased notes issued by Imperial
Pacific, with the principal amount of US$30,000,000, at a
consideration of US$27,800,000 from Asia Link Capital
Investment Holding Limited (“Asia Link”), the controlling
shareholder of the Company. Such notes were issued by in
January 2017 with three years tenure and bears interests of
8.5% per annum.

In March 2020, the Group entered into the amendment with
Asia Link to modify the terms of such notes. Major
amendments are (i) increase in the principal amount of the
Notes to US$32,550,000, by way of capitalisation of accrued
interests of US$$2,550,000; (i) extend the maturity date of the
notes to 25 April 2021; and (i) increase in the interest rate of
the Notes from 8.5% per annum to 10.5% per annum with
effect from 25 January 2020. Subsequent to the date of the
statement of financial position, such notes were default. Based
on published 2020 annual report, Imperial Pacific recorded net
current liabilities and net liabilities of approximately HK$9,370
million and HK$2,733 million respectively as at 31 December
2020. The auditor of Imperial Pacific issued a disclaimer of
opinion as a result of the material uncertainties relating to the
going concern basis. Full allowance for expected credit loss
was provided as at 31 March 2021.

In January 2020, the Group entered into an agreement with
CISI to invest the corporate note issued by CISI with the
principal amount of US$20,000,000 (the “CISI Note")
(equivalent to HK$156,760,000). The CISI Note was matured on
17 December 2020 and bore interest of 11.0% per annum. CISI
Note was default and is undergoing its restructuring plan.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 HE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

25 CORPORATE NOTE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 25 EREHEZFREGE)

Movement on the allowance for expected credit loss ERECEXZBRBEEBHERELE2H
for corporate note receivables

HKS$'million
BEAT
As at 1 April 2019 RZZ—hFHA—H -
Recognised in the consolidated statement RiF & EH RN R
of profit or loss 133
As at 31 March 2020 and 1 April 2020 RZE-ZEF=A=+—H
AZZEZTFMA—A 133
Recognised in the consolidated statement RErB B KR NER
of profit or loss 227
As at 31 March 2021 H= —F=ZA=+—H 360

For corporate note receivables that are not credit-

HREEERER B R AREER

impaired without significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition (“Stage 1”), ECLs is measured at an
amount equal to the portion of lifetime ECLs that result
from default events possible within the next 12 months.
If a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition is identified (“Stage 2") but not yet deemed
to be credit impaired, ECL is measured based on
lifetime ECLs. In general, when corporate note
receivables are overdue by 30 days, there are significant
increase in credit risk. In general, corporate note
receivables are considered as default (“Stage 3") when
they are overdue by over 90 days.

I MBI ([FE—FEER]) 2 B %
B BEHEEEBEBERESNRRKI2ME
R AENE 4o Bz 2 BTEME
EEEBI D 2252 o B YRR
REFANEERBBZEN(TEZIEER]D
BRRAELBEEERE  AEHEES
BREBEREEBEAE - — R s -
MEWRSEREREEAA - AEERR
EEEN —mE - fﬁﬁﬂ&ﬂé%%ﬁﬁ%?ﬁ
H@i@0R MERARBNIE=
E&J) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B HRR M

For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

26 DEFERRED TAX

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are netted off when
the taxes relate to the same tax authority and where
offsetting is legally enforceable. The following amounts,
determined after appropriate offsetting, are shown
separately on the consolidated statement of financial

26

ERER IR

EERRE E KB EEREY LR B
HeRE B R ORISR T OAKEE - THIER
EEERHERET  EREUBRRERE
FEFIIR -

position:
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
HK$'million  HK$'million
BHEBTT BEATT
Deferred tax assets EEFIEE E 69 57
Deferred tax liabilities ELEFETAEE (90) (63)
Deferred tax liabilities, net FEIERTE & 555 (21) (6)
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities BEFIBEEERABENEH(TEER—
without taking into consideration the offsetting of M E RN AENEE) AT
balances within the same tax jurisdiction, were as
follows:
Fair value adjustments on
property, plant and
equipment, Fair value change of
Accelerated tax intangible assets investment held for
Tax losses depreciation ~ and investment properties trading Total
0% BERAE BVE  BEEEREZ
REFR MEHERE  ERRENFZAVERR AYERD E-h
2021 2000 2021 2000 2021 2020 2021 2000 2021 2020
Z§--§ CECEE CBC-E CECRE CBC-F OCSCEE CBC-EOCECEE CBC-FEOCECEE
HK$'million  HK$'million HKS'million  HKSmillion HKS'million HKS'million HKS'million HKS'million HKS'million  HKSmillion
BE#T BEET FEEERm  EEEr  EEER EEET EEER BEEL BEET EEEn
Beginning of the year 4] 23 17 (26) 27 (37) (38 34 3% (6) (12)
Recognised in the ERAERRTED
consolidated statement
of profit orloss 35 b 0] 1 (30) 1 (14) ? (13) b
—Exchange alignment  —[E5% % - - - - 2 - - - 2 -
End of the year Ex 58 B (30) 20) (69) (37 20 ki 21) o)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss
carry-forwards to the extent that the realisation of the
related tax benefit through future taxable profits is
probable. As at 31 March 2021, the Group has
unrecognised tax losses of approximately HK$247
million (2020: HK$209 million) and these tax losses have
no expiry dates.
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27 CASH DEPOSITS

For the year ended 31 March 2021 HE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

27 REEN

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
HK$'million  HK$'million
BEET BEAT
Non-current R
Pledged deposits (Note (@)  B&EAFZ(M=EE@) 5 3.
Current TRED
Trusted and segregated bank ErE MBI RITERF (MisE (b))
accounts (Note (b)) 16 20
Cash and cash equivalents HENIESEED 198 382
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 214 402
Total BET 219 407
Notes Mz -

As at 31 March 2021, certain bank deposits were pledged
secure borrowings (note 42).

Trusted and segregated bank accounts represented clients’
accounts in the provision of asset management, securities
brokerage, commodities, futures and other financial service
business segment.

As at 31 March 2021, the Group's bank balances of
approximately HK$32 million (2020: HK$27 million) were
deposited with banks or other financial institutions in the PRC.
The remittance of these funds out of the PRC is subject to the
rules and regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated
by the PRC government.

The Group complied with the financial covenant of its
borrowing facilities during the 2021 and 2020.

@ RZZT—F=A=+—H 5FTRITEHKE
ERERFRIER (H5E42) -

b) ERREZRTEPERHEEEE BHK
oM BEREMESRREEBSFINE
PR o

(@ RIZZ—F=A=+—8 KEBAZHTH
BROAREEETL(ZZ_ZF 7585
JT) 0 TR R BRIT ok E A RS o 3Z
B S0 N BEE TP BB R INEE
HIFR A R IR B

(d AEER-Z-_—FR_T_ZFHHCET
BEERE B REE -
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g ,/ NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HRR M

For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

28 INVENTORIES 28 ®FE
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
HK$'million  HK$'million
BEET BEAT
Consumables and others SHFE R E A 2 3
Spare parts AT 2 2
Art works = e 84 84
88 89
29 PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 29 BEAPYE
2021 2020
—E-—F —E_TF
HK$'million  HK$'million
BEET BEATT
Land use rights + b {e A 370 -
The properties under development were related to a ERMYERERATCEEATER - Ik
project company in Malaysia. Details of the acquisition FESEIE AT 41 (o) Bt »

are summarised in note 41(b).
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 HE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

30 TRADE RECEIVABLES 30 EZEWRIE
2021 2020
—E-—F TECTF
HK$'million  HK$'million
BEET BEET
Trade receivables arising from: RENUTIER 28 ZENFIE
— rental income from construction — BEEMER 2 HE WA
machinery business 46 54
— trading and provision of other — BERMIEE IR EAM
service from construction AR5
machinery = 1
— provision of other financial services — 124t 2 fth & G R 7% 3 9
— securities brokerage — BELLE 78 17
— rental income from leasing of — HAEEYMEZHASBA
investment properties 23 2
150 83
Less: Allowance for expected credit B TEHEEEE G
losses (15) (22)
135 61

The Group allows an average credit period of 0-30 days
to its trade customers arising from construction
machinery and sales of construction materials business.
The credit period provided to customers can be longer
based on a number of factors including the customer’s
credit profile and relationship with the customers.
Before accepting any new customer, the Group
assesses the potential customer’s credit quality and
defines credit limits by customer. Limits attributed to
customers are reviewed regularly. The Group has a
policy for allowance for expected credit losses which is
based on the evaluation of the collectability and aging
analysis of accounts on every individual trade debtor
basis and on the management'’s judgement including
creditworthiness and the past collection history of each
customer.

ZRER B P IR SRR S IR SRR S B R S Y
BHEFPELFHOEINHNEER - [
EFRhZEEHREREFHNEERR
REZFPHBERESFZHEARMER © &
REMFELH - AREFGBERTPE
BEZPREFPREFRRE - EPHR
Bl e EMERN - ~AEBRBABEERS
BEERE  EDERYESRBUESE
5 AR B R AT B Y & Bk o AT R H 2 7T
i RBEEEHEAEPNERLATE
WO AR R B 2 HI B T AR AL
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B HRR M

For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

30 TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 30 EZEWFE(E)
For those commodities, futures and securities trading TZEEL HELRZFAEEREFPME -
clients, it normally takes two to three days to settle after —RRZERG RS BHEME=HBNA
trade date of those transactions. These outstanding BE - ZEFERAENZEBREFE SRR
unsettled trades due from clients are reported as trade FIRREEF 2B HEIGKIE -

receivables from clients.

The margin clients of the commodities, futures and Mo HEMNEFRLCRBZREZEP
securities brokerage business are required to pledge /,\ﬁ$'$lﬁﬁf)§2—rZTx§L/\HX SEE®
their investments to the Group for credit facilities for BeEm HERBESHER - RELEF
commodities, futures and securities trading. The Z%%}EHQ%UEZ#MHH BRXZBH
settlement terms of trade receivables from clearing B—Z2mMA -

houses are usually one to two days after the trade date.

The ageing analysis by invoice date of trade receivables BoRKFIE(LHEREMEZHT WA
(other than rental income from leasing of investment BROMIRIEZHZABZY] 2 BRI 9 T (GRH
properties) before allowance for expected credit losses BRIEEEEEERE) T
is as follows:

2021 2020

—E-—F —ETF
HK$'million  HK$'million
BEBTT BEBIT

0-30 days 0-30H 91 30
31-60 days 3160 B 13 16
61-90 days 61-90 H B 1
91-180 days 91-180 H 7 10
181-365 days 181-365 H 5 11
Over 365 days B3@ 365 H 8 13

127 81
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting RGEHEE R 8RR A it &8
date was the carrying value of each of the receivable JEW RIE 2 BRIEE o AN BN |55 1)
mentioned above. The Group did not hold any AR RIEAIRIR -

collateral as security.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 HE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

30 TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 30 EZEWREE(E)

Movement on the allowance for expected credit loss BoRKFIEZ EREEEEREZS
for trade receivables:

Total
st
HK$'million
BEET
As at 1 April 2019 RZZE—-AFHEA—H 19
Recognised in the consolidated statement EFEEBERPER
of profit or loss 7
Amount written-off as uncollectible g A BRI B FRIR (4)
As at 31 March 2020 and 1 April 2020 R-ZE-ZEF=A=+—H
&ZE:EEEH H 22
Recognised in the consolidated statement TEéreBmxh
of profit or loss Q)
Amount written-off as uncollectible WisH AT AT B & 8 (6)
As at 31 March 2021 RZE-_—F=A=+—H 15
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

31 OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 31 HMEWRE - FTEREMNFIE
PREPAYMENTS

2021 2020

=B —F —ET_TF
HKS$'million  HK$'million
BEET BEET

Non-current FRE
Other non-current assets HithIERBEE 2 2
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss & : TEHA{E B 18 B & - M
2 1

Current RE
Other receivables H At fEYRIE 27 8
Consideration receivables for HESREERKRE

disposal of financial assets 66 51
Deposits to financial institutions (note a) % Bi#EF X (Mt a) 2 22
Deposits and prepayments A& RIERFIA 8 9
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss i : TEHA{Z EEIE R E (61) (39)
e 42 51
Total et 44 52
Note: MIEE -
(a)  Deposits to financial institutions represented deposits for () LERBTIEBEEFRARNAREERRZ-

securities investment and trading of futures.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 HE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

31 OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 31 HtEWRIE - ST RAMNRIE(E)
PREPAYMENTS (Continued)
Movement on the allowance for expected credit loss Hib W I HEME BB EREE
for other receivables
Total
st
HKS$'million
BEET
As at 1 April 2019 R-ZE—-NFHA—H 1
Recognised in the consolidated iR EEER PR
statement of profit or loss 39
As at 31 March 2020 and 1 April 2020 RZE-ZEF=—A=+—8BK
—_E_TFMA—H 40
Recognised in the consolidated EfrBBmERPER
statement of profit or loss 16
Exchange alignment M 34, 3R B 5
As at 31 March 2021 R-ZE=——F=H=+—~H 61
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

32 SHARE CAPITAL 32 AR
Number Share
of shares capital
RBEE R
('million) HK$'million
(BER) BEAT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each FRR0.01 BT T BR
Authorised EE
At 1 April 2019 and 2020, 31 March 2020 R=ZE—AFr-_ZE-FFMA—H
and 2021 TECEEN-E-—F
—A=+—H 50,000 500
Issued and fully paid BRITRABRE
At 1 April 2019 RZZE-NFNA—A 5,285 53
Issue of consideration shares BIIRERD 800 8
Issue of emolument shares BITMERG 7 -
At 31 March 2020 and 1 April 2020 RZE-TF=ZA=+-HBK
“Z-ZFNA—H 6,092 61
Issue of placement shares BTRERD 400 4
Issue of subscription shares BITRBRD 200 2
Issue of shares on conversion of B E AR RS TR D
convertible note payables 240 2
At 31 March 2021 R-E-_—F=A=1+—H 6,932 69

Notes:
(a) Issue of placement shares

In July 2020, the Company entered into a placement
agreement to allot 400 million shares at HK$0.25 for each
placing shares to independent third parties. The transaction
was completed in August 2020. The net proceeds from the
share placement was approximately HK$100 million.

(b) Issue of subscription shares

In July 2020, the Company entered into a subscription
agreement to allot 200 million shares at HK$0.25 for each
placing shares to a company wholly-owned by a controlling
shareholder of the Company. The transaction was completed
in October 2020. The net proceeds from the share subscription
was approximately HK$50 million.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 HE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

32 SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(c)

Issue of shares on conversion of convertible note payable

In September and October 2020, certain convertible note
payable holders exercised the rights to convert their
convertible note payables with an aggregate amount of HK$60
million (note 35) into 240 million ordinary shares of the
Company.

Issue of shares option

As mentioned in note 22(b), in June 2020, the Group formed JV
1 with Co-High. Pursuant to the subscription agreement, the
Group has granted a put option to Co-High to require the
Group to acquire all of the shares of JV 1 held by Co-High at a
price which is equivalent to the fair market value upon the
exercise of such put option during the put option period, which
commences from the date falling 36 months after the
completion of the share subscription and ending on the date
falling 24 months after the said commencement date; Co-High
also granted a call option to the Group to require Co-High to
sell all of the shares of JV 1 held by Co-High at the same terms.
Pursuant to the subscription agreement, the Company has
granted approximately 609 million share options entitling Co-
High to subscribe for the Company’s shares at the price of
HK$0.25 per option share (subject to adjustments) during the
share option period, which commences on 9 July 2020 and will
end on the 9 July 2023. An amount of approximately HK$39
million was recognised as share-based payment expenses in
respect of this share option during the year.

32 BA&(E)

BsE - (A&

(c)

SN AR RIR R BT

“ECRFAARTA BTENAUBRERE
FAEATEEMNBREAKOBEBTNE
AT SRR (K3 35) B M 240 B & RAR
RIEEAR -

BEATRE R

WM 220 it - —ETENA - AEE
HASKI AL - RERBWHE A&
B AN SR ROEE  EhAEEERE
HEE (RRORBTEAEICEAEBRE
FutFIsE B EE 24 @ A E B 1) HEERITE
ZRH IR AT ENERRER S
ANAELEINE2ERG  MESMERARE
E%HRESE - ERNERAREREEM
BB ENALCEINEERG - RIERE
Wi ARB DR 4609 B B EE - B
FTHREEREHE(E-S_2FtANA
BEZT-=F+ANAL) RERERER
025870 (Al FHE) WERREAR AR
19 o FR - BB RIERER AR AT 515
THBIBEESIT
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

33 BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 33 RITRHMEER
2021 2020
~B--% It 23
Current Non-current Current  Non-current
portion portion Total portion portion Total
RE®S  FRBHD @zt nBHs  FERBFH a5t

HK$'million HK$'million HK$'million  HK$'million  HK$'million  HK'million
EBER BEAT BEAT AEET AEET BEET

Bank borrowings RTEE 44 47 91 47 63 110
Loans from other financial s mlEs &R
institutions 437 838 1,275 494 758 1,252
Loans from a director of WERAES ER
subsidiaries 30 30 60 30 30 60
511 915 1,426 571 851 1422
The Group's bank and other borrowings were repayable REERITEEMEEERBEINOT
as follows:
2021 2020
“B-f It S 23
Bank Other Bank Other
borrowings borrowings Total  borrowings  borrowings Total
RITRE At gy  B0RE EtbiEE #:t
HK$'million HKS'million HK$'million  HK$'million  HK$'million  HK$'million
BEER BEER BEER AEAT BEAT BEAT
Within 1 year 1ER 44 467 511 47 524 571
Between 1and 2 years 1224 24 30 54 32 35 6/
Between 2 and 5 years 2555 23 838 861 3 19 50
Over 5 years SENE - - - - 734 734

91 1,335 1,426 110 1,312 1422
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 HE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

33 BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Continued) 33 #TREMES (&)

Notes: ik
(@) Asat 31 March 2021, the carrying amounts of financial and non- (a) RZE-_—F=A=+—8  EAETHETE
financial assets pledged as security for certain bank borrowings BERHEMemEEs ETER R K&IESR
and loans from other financial institutions are disclosed in note BEZREERMT 4255 -
42.
(b)  The effective interest rate per annum of bank and other by RHRZZE-_—F=ZA=+—H8 EBIEREMES
borrowings as at 31 March 2021 were as follows: EERREREMT
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
Bank borrowings RITEE 3.88% 3.86%
Loans from other financial institutions Hih g BER 4.90% 5.07%
Loans from a director of subsidiaries MEAREEZEXR 3.00% 2.50%
() The principal of bank borrowings and loans from leasing (0 IIEEFIEHEZAEARFTEERERA
companies which bear floating interest rates are as follows: SN
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
HK$'million HK$'million
BEER BEET
Bank borrowings RITEE 79 107
Loans from other financial institutions HEEmEgErER 3 11
82 118
(d)  The Group complied with the financial covenant of its (d) RIE-—FER T -FTF - AEEDETE
borrowing facilities during the 2021 and 2020. ERE TS
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

34 CORPORATE NOTE PAYABLES

34 ENLERE

2021 2020
—E-—-F —ECTEF
HK$'million  HK$'million
BEBTT BEBIT

Non-current portion (note a) JERENE D (Mt a) 380 475
Current portion (note b) mENE S (MisEb) 272 187
652 662

In January 2018, the Group entered into a
subscription agreement with an independent third
party for the note with principal amount of HK$350
million. The maturity date of the notes is five years
after the issue date and bears fixed coupon rate at
9.75% per annum. Pursuant to the terms of the
subscription agreement, the Group may redeem
the notes within five years from the issue date. The
redemption amount of the notes will be:

if the redemption is made
on the date falling:

—E-NF-A AEEEBFIE
=T RAEERERI0EEBTHE
BRIV RERE - ZZBEHNIHE
RETHBELF  WRETEE
FHEITS%ETR - RIFABIHZEX
sk - NEBER R EITHRESR
FABLOREE FENELOSRES
B

applicable rate

fisi B B8R 3% EAL®E
— the first anniversary of the issue date — BT HEE—EREE 103.00%
— the second anniversary of the issue date — 277 HHIZE — (BB F 106.35%
— the third anniversary of the issue date ~ — 217 B #i5 = (@A F 110.15%
— the fourth anniversary of the issue date — %77 B HiSE 1A B F 114.35%
— the fifth anniversary of the issue date ~ — %17 H EA%E A {ABF 119.10%

Remaining notes bear interests ranging from 4%
to 7.5% per annum and will mature in 2022 and
2023.

The notes bear interest ranging from 4% to 9% per
annum.

248  Annual Report 42§ 2020/21

(b)

FIAEIEIRFF RN T 4% £ 7 5% 5T
B #BR-BE-__FR_F_=F
BI|HE -

SBRFNENFA%ZEI%ETE °



Aceso Life Science Group Limited o {Z#4 £ mEH R EB AR QA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 March 2021 HE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

35 CONVERTIBLE NOTE PAYABLES

In March 2020, the Company issued a zero coupon
convertible note with aggregate principal amount of
HK$100 million (“CB 1”) as the consideration for the
acquisition of 50% equity interest in Success View. The
convertible note has a maturity date of 3 years from the
date of issue and contains a right to convert at a
maximum of 400 million shares of the Company at the
conversion price at HK$0.25 per share. During the year
ended 31 March 2021, aggregate principal amounts of
HK$60 million were early converted into the ordinary
shares of the Company and aggregate principal
amounts of HK$10 million were early redeemed.

In January 2021, the Group completed the acquisition
of Alcott (note 41) and issued convertible note with
principal amount of HK$150 million (“CB 2") as part of
the consideration. Such convertible note bears 5%
interests per annum and has a maturity date of 3 years
from the date of issue and contains a right to convert at
a maximum of 500 million shares of HTICI at the
conversion price at HK$0.3 per share. In February 2021,
the convertible note holder exercised its rights to early
convert all the convertible note into the ordinary shares
of HTICI.

35

S Al R R %

“ECTE-F ARBBTACEBRS
100FEAET(ARREEIDNTES
AR - RIS R 50% g
B - XA AREENH B AEITH R
AEF URARBBRESR025EBITY
MR % 400 B B R EIBRD B R - &
EE_—F=ZA=+—HILFE K
BEOBBETERAMBRASARARE
B AR I0BBABTERAER -

—E-—F—fF - AEBETAUEE Alcott
(fizE41)  WEBITALSERI1S0B BB T
((FIR R ER2]) 2 AT IR 4% - 1EAED
DRAEB - ZAI B EERIZF B 5% E -
HEHAARTHRI=F  TEHE
BBRESRIIBTLBEL500E BR
SREBREZIEERNDOEF c — T =—
FZR - JRRERRSEATEEERR
RIS FTE TR B EER AR KERER
B EB -
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

35 CONVERTIBLE NOTE PAYABLES (Continued) 35 ENTBRRERS(E)

Summarised below is the movement of each portion FRNEBEHEE S SEBAMLT
under liabilities component during the year:

CB1 CB 2 Total
ARREE1 ARRRE2 @t
HK$'million HK$'million HK$'million
BEET BEBT BEET
As at 1 April 2019 RZZE-NFMA—-A - - -
Issue of convertible note payable fEfta/#ikZ 1 72 - /2
As at 31 March 2020 R-_ZT-TF=RA=+—H
and 1 April 2020 kZZ=TFMA—A 72 - 72
Liability portion of new issue  ¥%&{77 &EZHH - 89 89
Interests accretion MBI m 6 2 8
Extinguishment loss on REBOAEZEEER
early principal redemption 1 - 1
Redesignation of fair value of  FiRRERIAE MEHIET
repurchase consideration BRRELTE
as a result of early principal
redemption 1 - 1
Early principal redemption REBEAS (10) - (10)
Early conversion RELB (46) @1 (137)
As at 31 March 2021 R-_E-_—F=A=+—H 24 - 24
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 HE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

36 FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FVPTL

36 UAFEFEREHBLFABREZS
BMeE

2021 2020
=B —F —ET_TF
HKS$'million  HK$'million
BEET BEET
Current e

Call option (note a) R EARE (B5Ta) 113 171

Non-current IETRE
Corporate note payable (note b) JERT R E (Mitb) 628 -
741 171

In May 2016, the Company entered into a share
subscription agreement with Vandi Investments
Limited (“Vandi”), an independent third party, to
sell 7.59% equity interests in HTM at a
consideration of approximately HK$312 million
(“Share Subscription Price”). Upon the completion
of the HTM subscription agreement, the Company
entered into a call option deed with Vandi.
According to the call option deed, Vandi has the
right to subscribe up to 389,940,000 shares of the
Company at an exercise price of HK$0.8 per share,
totaling approximately HK$312 million which was
the same as the Share Subscription Price. As a
result of the bonus issue in July 2017, the number
of conversion shares and exercise price were
adjusted to 454,930,000 shares and approximately
HK$0.69 per share accordingly. Upon the exercise
of the call option, it will be settled by: (i) cash; (ii)
transfer of HTM's shares at the same price of the
Share Subscription Price; or (iii) a combination of
payment of (i) and (ii).

(@) ZE—REFRA ARAHEBUE=
7 Vandi Investments Limited ([Vandi])
AR RERE - UREN312H
BAT(RNMABBEDLEERZXRE
HB7.59% R - MERERERRE
W& - ARREVandiz] LR EH
A - RBRBHAERZL - Vandi
ERETFEESRISELRERS
389,940,000 & A &I i £ - 42 FHAY
2EEBT - BRHREBEMER -
AR T —tF+ AETARET -
B BB RITREEEAR R
454,930,000 f% X & I% £90.697%5 JT ©
TR AR - AT AR EE
B 0R2 (VRERKREERR
WEBRBEIREBENRMD 3K ii)
AT (i) B (i) WO4E & o
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36 FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FVPTL (Continued) 36 UAFEFEBEHSFTAEBRZZSE
mMes(E)

(b) In January 2021, the Group completed the by ZZTE=Z—F—F AEBEZTKIKE
acquisition of Alcott (note 41) and issued note with Alcott (FiI5E41) R EE1TAR £ A 850
principal amount of HK$850 million as part of the BEETZEZEBIEARIRE - Z
consideration. The note has a maturity date of 3 ZERNIEE REITHERE=F -
years from the date of issue, subject to the AHEEREBEESREEELR -
extension at the option by HTICI. The note bears FZRBIRFERS%ETE - AT A A
5% interests per annum, subject to the satisfaction THEE - () EWEIRIBEE BV RS
of (i) having received audited financial statement AE B4R BU ) CESIZ 8 BAZ B TS 3R aK
of CESIZ prepared under HKFRS; and (ii) the return Ko (i) & — BF BU4F 2 CESIZH) % & B
on net assets of CESIZ, calculated by dividing net [0 3y (F2 B Wt 18 0% MBI BR LA JE & ZE T
profit after tax over net assets, for the previous H)EFN20%HIA L - REIRBEER
financial year achieved 20% or more. The FEFHE °
corporate note is carried at fair value.

(0 The methods and assumptions used in 0 BTUAFEFEBEZLI AR
determining the fair value of the financial liabilities BmZeMBEMKANEMRR
at FVTPL is summarised in note 3.3. BRI EE 3.3t -

37 TRADE PAYABLES 37 ESENRIE
2021 2020
—B--Ff T -FH
HK$'million  HK$'million
BHEBT BEBT
Trade payables to brokers and clearing & » HIENESSLELEZ

houses arising from commodities, M REE 2 B SN HIE
futures and securities brokerage - 11

Trade payables arising from BEMWEBEE 2 ESREMNTIEA
construction machinery business 4 7
4 18
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37 TRADE PAYABLES (Continued)

The settlement terms of payables to brokers, clearing
houses and securities trading clients from the ordinary
course of business of brokerage in securities range
from two to three days after the trade date of those
transactions. The settlement terms of trade payables
arising from construction machinery from the ordinary
course of business range from 0-45 days.

An aging analysis of the Group's trade payables arising
from construction machinery business at the end of the
reporting period presented based on the invoice dates

37

ESEARE(E)

RERFEFRLEBBRETEL ZEN
B HEMMEERFZEPERANE
BHRNFZEXH 2R BEMEME=
H-MEBXEHERETEERREL CE
HEMNFIRBERRNFOE45H -

AEBRFEHRREEERMESREE
o RNBBIRIERZAHENZERD
W

is as follows:
2021 2020
—E-—F —ECTF
HKS$'million  HK$'million
BEET BEET
0-30 days 0-30H 1 1
31-60 days 31-60 H 2 2
61-180 days 61-180 H 1 3
181-365 days 181-365 A = -
Over 365 days B3R 365 H - 1
4 7
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38 OTHER PAYABLES, DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND 38 EHihfENFHIE - - SRS RESER

ACCRUALS
2021 2020
—B--F CTTF
HKS$'million  HK$'million
BEBERT BEAT
Other payables F At e~ I8
— Margin deposits payable to —EXBEm - HER
clients arising from commodities, BHELHENEP
futures and securities brokerage RED (MiEa)
(note a) 17 19
— Others — Hh 39 13
Contract liabilities BRBE 3 3
Accruals EETE A 15 8
Interests payables FET R 2, 90 25
164 68
(a) Margin deposits received from clients for their @ HEEEmAHEEHNEKEFFR
trading of commodities and futures contracts were EEHERZM -

payable on demand.
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39 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 39 BERESZERITA
As at 31 March 2021, the Group held the following RZEZ—F=A=+—0 ~x&£BEE
financial instruments: Ty eI A :
2021 2020
—E-—F —ECFF
Note  HK$'million HK$'million
B & BEBET AEAT
Financial assets TRHEE
Financial assets at FVTOCI A EFTEBEZ(LETA
EtrEkacemiEE 21 466 352
Financial assets at FVTPL WAFEGEEEE
FFABRZEmERE 22 588 374
Financial assets at amortised cost I $ A ANFIBE v £ R &&=
Loan receivables EUWE 23 605 787
Finance lease receivables RV E E U FRIE 24 7 7
Corporate note receivables JER D EZE 25 69 274
Cash deposits HE&EFER 27 219 407
Trade receivables g 5 e EE 30 135 61
Other receivables and deposits EM WA N & 31 42 48
2,131 2,310
Financial liabilities k=R
Financial liabilities at BEIEN AR 2
amortised cost TRIAE
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 33 (1,426) (1,422)
Corporate note payables JEN D EERE 34 (652) (662)
Convertible note payables JERTAT R TR 35 (24) (72)
Trade payables B 5 ENIE 37 (4) (18)
Other payables and accruals Hub e 208
Mg ER 38 (161) (65)
Lease liabilities HEEE 15 (29) (40)
Financial liabilities at FVTPL AT EFE BEELETA
EmsespaE 36 (741) (177)
(3,037) (2,450)
The Group's exposure to various risks associated with AEEESRT AEFENSERR DM
the financial instruments is discussed in Note 3.1. The 31w e RIEBR ZoFERR
maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the REIZEeREEZREE -

reporting period is the carrying amount of each class of
financial assets mentioned above.
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40 CASH FLOW INFORMATION 40 BHEREER
(a) Cash generated from/(used in) operations () EEEKEMEB (FiRA)BEE
2021 2020
—E--f —T-FTF
HK$'million  HK$'million
BHEBT BEBT
Loss before income tax FRPTISTERTE 1R (323) (267)
Adjustments for: AT FIAELTE
Interest earned on corporate JE L 1 3 SR AR B ER A B,
note receivables (30) (6)
Interest earned on bank deposits RITE RRERFI 2 (2) M
Dividend income from financial RAEREBEHEZ LRI A
assets at FVTPL/FVTOCI B/ UNATEFER
HEMrat AR M2 E WS
ZERMEEZREBA = Q)
Fair value (gains)/losses: NFE(Yz),EE
— investment properties — BB (10) (140)
— financial assets at FVTPL — AT EFEREEEL
FABRZERMEE 157 7
— financial liabilities at FVTPL —URAFEFEREEEL
ARGz eRAaR (46) (14)
Forfeiture of partial payment TEE &R TKIA - (78)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HE B A RIS - (32)
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE - BE MRBEEE
plant and equipment 2 15
Loss on remeasurement of JEWPRFRBRENAEFE
corporate note receivables - 10
Extinguishment loss on early REBEENTRERER
redemption of convertible 2 [BEEE
note payables 1 -
Depreciation of property, WME - BENIEREITE
plant and equipment 51 47
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREZEENE 10 8
Amortisation of intangible assets By AE#H 2 2
Impairment losses on: ATIEB 2 REEE
— property, plant and — W% - BEKEE
equipment 70 -
— intangible assets — B EE 28 86
— financial assets (expected — EREE
credit loss) (FEHAEEEE) 284 271
Share-based payment expenses VAR AR 72 AN 3R =2 49 2
Share of results of associates DIEEEE R RRE (196) (10)
Share of results of joint ventures DIEEEDEELE (92) 42)
Finance costs &R AR 187 183
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40 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued) 40 REREER(B)
Cash generated from/(used in) operations (Continued) (a) EEEKME (FTRA)BEE(E)
2021 2020
—E--F —ZT-FTHF
HK$'million  HK$'million
BEERT BEBT
Operating profit before working EEES L E R
capital changes 142 40
Changes in working capital LBEETEE
Inventories 7 1 4
Trade receivables E 5 EIWNGIE (73) 16
Other receivables, deposits HEab WA FTe ik
and prepayments T FRIE 7 56
Loans receivables JEULE TR 139 (323)
Finance lease receivables B E RS EIKEIR 1 7
Financial assets at FVTPL AT EFEBHEBETA
BaRseomEE (48) (156)
Trusted and segregated B RBIIRITERP
bank accounts 4 (12)
Trade payables Z SRR HIE (14) 22
Other payables, deposits received, EfhEMNZIE EWETS
accruals and contract liabilities EstERANEHEE 31 9
Cash generated from/(used in) RS (A EE
operations 190 (355)
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40 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued) 40 BEFREEHR(EB)
(b) Net debt reconciliation (b) EBFEHER

Bank  Corporate  Convertible

and other note note Lease Interest
borrowings payables payables liabilities payables Total
RITR A Eft
Hitfe & TERE  TRREE HERE BRI st

HK$'million  HK$'million  HK$'million ~ HK§'million ~ HK$'million ~ HK$'million
BEAT BEATL BEATL BEATL BEAL BEATL

At 1 April 2019 RZE-hEMA-A 1926 505 - - 35 2,466
Cash flows BemE
— Proceeds raised —BEEMEIE 410 81 - - - a9
— Principal repayment —EERE (788) - - - - (788)
— Lease paid —BHHE = = - (1) - (1)
— Interests paid —BRFE (136) 9 - Q) (©) (152)
Non-cash changes FRLEY
— Initial adoption of HKFRS 16 — BB REBRE
B 1% - - - 13 - 13
— Finance costs —RERAR 97 85 - 1 - 183
— Acquisition of interests — WAt EiRE
in joint ventures - - 72 - - 72
— New leases — g - - - 38 - 38
— Exchange difference —EREE (87) - - - ) (91)
As at 31 March 2020 RZB-2£=/=1-A
and 1 April 2020 R-E-ZENA-A 1,422 662 72 40 25 2,221
Cash flows Beng
— Proceeds raised —BEEMENE 214 = = = - 214
— Principal repayment —BEAE (292) (380) = = = (672)
— Lease paid —BHEE - - - (1) - (11)
— Interests paid —BRflE (43) (70) - (1) - (114)
— Early principal redemption —REEOAS - - (10) - - (10)
Non-cash changes FELEY
— Transfer to interest payables ~ — BAENFIE ) (63) = = 65 -
— Finance costs —RERAK 45 133 8 1 = 187
— Issue of convertible note — WRE R AR T
payable upon acquisition ERAARRE
of a subsidiary (note 41(a)) (M55 41(0)) - = 89 = - 89
— Extinguishment loss on —REEOALZEERE
early principal redemption - - 1 - - 1
— Re-designation of fair value —AREERASMER
of repurchase consideration EERRREATE
as a result of early principal
redemption = = 1 = = 1
— Early conversion — 2R = = (137) = - (137)
— Acquisition of a subsidiary — WEIHBAR - 370 - _ - 370
— Exchange difference —[EHESE 82 - - - - 82
As at 31 March 2021 RZBZ-F=ZfA=1-H 1,426 652 24 29 90 2,221
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41 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

It is the Group's strategy to identify suitable investment
opportunity to optimise the capital resources of the

Group.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group,
through its indirectly wholly-owned subsidiaries, has

acquired two subsidiaries 100%, namely (a) Alcott and
(b) Big Wish.

Summary of acquisitions

(a)

Alcott

In September 2020, the Group, through a
subsidiary of HTICI, entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with the vendor, an
independent third party. Pursuant to the
agreement, the Group conditionally agreed to
acquire 100% equity interest of Alcott from the
vendor with total consideration of HK$1,125
million. The consideration will be settled by (i)
HK$125 million by the allotment and issue of
consideration shares of HTICI; (i) HK$850 million
consideration note; and (iii) HK$150 million by the
issue of consideration convertible note issued by
HTICI. The acquisition was completed in January
2021.

41

W BB F 2 )

AEENRBEESHAENREKE - U
BICAKENERER -

- —F=A=+—HIFE &«
SEFBERMEE2EWE Q7 UWEE /R
B~ 7] (a) Alcott } (b) Big Wish #J 100% ##

N s
< o
I

WEEEERE
(a) Alcott

ZETFAA AEEERERXR
HEEERREHBAREE S (—
BRIE=F)FILEE R - BIE
ZhzE ~AEBEERGRENEAR
B1,1258 & A& LR & 77 4 Alcott
) 100% AR AN 25 o (B BA () AL 2%
RBITERBBRERKEE ZRER
BE125B88 BT (18508 &8
TREZE: Rii)BITEREEE
BIWE 2 REABRRERZT 1508
BET wBEKBER-_Z=_—F
— AR °
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41 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 41 WEKMEBAR(E)
Summary of acquisitions (Continued) WEBS=EMRE(8)
(a) Alcott (Continued) (a) Alcott (%)

Alcott is an investment holding company which
directly holds 22% equity interests in CESIZ. CESIZ
is principally engaged in investment in urban
complex development project. Under the sub-
decree 122/2019 (the “Sub-decree”) on the
establishment of CESIZ Special Economic Zone
granted by the Council of Ministers to CESIZ, the
Council of Ministers approved CESIZ to establish a
special economic zone (the “Special Economic
Zone") with a size of 17,252,519 square meters at
Koh Kong Province, Cambodia (the “Project”).
Under the Sub-Decree, CESIZ shall have the sole
and exclusive right to develop the Special
Economic Zone with all the necessary land use
rights, including those for residential, industrial
and commercial development purpose. The
principal assets of CESIZ is a land for development
("Project Land 1").

CESIZ plans to engage in investment in urban
complex development project on the Project Land
1, including the construction of clean energy
industrial parks along with designated areas for
residential properties. The location of the Project
enjoys geography advantage. The Special
Economic Zone is located in the middle of the
144-kilometre major national highway No. 4 in
Cambodia and port terminals, connecting the
highway to the port, with the deep-water harbor
under planning. The Special Economic Zone is
also in close proximity to the Phnom Penh-
Sihanoukville Expressway, which is currently under
construction. The Project has the benefit of the
convenient domestic road transport hub in Phnom
Penh, Cambodia that will reduce the
transportation costs of corporate products and
labour costs. The development in the Special
Economic Zone will be freehold properties which
allow enterprises, commercial and residential
investors to invest in the area to have a long-term
secure investment plan.
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Alcott F—RIFLEZER AT - HfEFE
B CESIZH)22% [ #E - CESIZE ZEH#
EWNSEHREEENRE - RE
EHRIEEEE T CESIZR CESIZ&
ERFE M Z 02 122/2019 ([ Z 4%
) BREEEHECESIZER
HRBEAERLEER 17,252,519 F
FARMECESRE((&ERE] (18
B - BEZAFES CESIZEHESR
FBECERRE 2 —RBRER
YHEBRA VBT HFERE(BIEE
FE IXEEBEERRRZ) -
CESZMETZEERERAM([IEAE
1)) o

CESIZFTEI2 B EIHE T 1 A H
MiZEFBIEE  BREEREZE
BLERCGEREFEMEANIEHE
E) - ZEEZBHMBABED - &
BEREMAREREERBLF AR
14ANBEBOBBEE  BERE
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41 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 41 WEEKEBLAR(E)
Summary of acquisitions (Continued) WESE=EME ()
(a) Alcott (Continued) (a) Alcott (%)

The acquisition will allow the Group to invest and
gain exposure in urban complex development
project in a premium location in Cambodia and
strengthen the Group's comprehensive investment
portfolio. Cambodia is a member of the
Association of Southeast Asian Nations (“ASEAN")
and is one of the most promising developing
countries in the ASEAN region. Cambodia is a
member of the World Trade Organization
("WTQ") as a developing country, and investments
in the country can enjoy the WTO preferential
tariff for imports and exports from and to its
membership countries, while other countries like
the United States and Japan, also offer Cambodia
preferential tariff and quota-free incentives.
According to the World Bank, Cambodia’s gross
domestic product (“GDP”) has continued to grow
at an average rate of over 7% over the past
decade, ranking first in ASEAN countries in terms
of economic growth. Cambodia’s GDP reached
US$27 billion and GDP per capita reached
US$1,643 in 2019, making it one of the fastest
growing economies in the world and one of the
emerging countries of investment hotspot in
Southeast Asia. The stable political environment,
dynamic labour force in Cambodia, together with
the preferential tax policies and freedom of capital
flows, have successfully attracted foreign investors.
In addition, Cambodia has established a long-
term friendly relationship with China, providing
strong support to China in ASEAN. The Chinese
government’'s “"One Belt, One Road”
development strategy has brought significant
investment from Chinese enterprises, creating
huge potential for Cambodia’s business
development, and the upcoming “China-
Cambodia Free Trade Agreement” will bring more
tangible benefits and development opportunities
to both countries. As an emerging developing
economy in which basic infrastructure within the
country needs to be fully developed, all industries
in Cambodia have enormous room for
development.

FRARBEEEAEERLIEERE
EESHEBEMESHAEEBELE
SHENE - TIRAEB GG
WEHEE - RIFIFE R R BKE
B2 (Association of Southeast Asian
Nations ' [FREE]) 2K BE - AR
BiwEHEP —EARBEARZERER
Bl c RIFEUNERFBERT DK
AERBESAZK(THEZEAZL D KE
CEZBEETIRENZAHEAR
B TEXER Z#HOESRBAH
MmEMBER(WER KB AR) IR E
HERTEESHTE AR BESEE
Mo RBHRRITZEE  BET
F o RIPE BN EELE(GDP))
MEER T mTI% 2 LRI R - 17K
EIREA ZBEERBEERFHES
B RIFEGDPE T —NF&E
270183 7T + A¥IGDP#E1,643% 7T -
EEK B2 IRE P — S R &R
LA RS R IR R F g H A — E T
REREBR - RFBBUARIER
E o BEBEBOE M 0 MR
BE - NMELESBHRE 2K
WBI/EINGEE o thoh - R
FEERERVERBRARTHEE ATEH
ERBRHEBRKRERE - PEBMN 2
[—F— ] EREBERS|IFED
ERERE RARBEZBFEER
BEEEXEN - BRI EM 2 [FEH
— REEERESWHE] BAEME
TREZEEN=RERES -
RAEBRPLCERER  BAERE
FEEEBER REBEMBITEHE
ERZERZM -
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41 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Summary of acquisitions (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Alcott (Continued)

Given the promising long-term economic
development of Cambodia and prospects of the
urban complex development project, there is
potential for attractive capital appreciation for this
investment over the long term.

Having considered the above reasons, the Group
consider that the acquisition represents a good
opportunity to diversify its business and to
demonstrate the investment in the Project Land
with a view to realising the land value and
enhancing shareholder value in the long run.

Alcott will be consolidated into the financial
statements of the Group while the financial results
of CESIZ will be accounted for using equity
method. The acquisition is in substance an
acquisition of an associate (note 19).

Big Wish

In February 2021, the Group, through a subsidiary
of HTICI, entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with the vendor, an independent third
party. Pursuant to the agreement, the Group
conditionally agreed to acquire 100% equity
interests of Big Wish from the vendor with total
consideration of HK$370 million. The
consideration will be settled by the issue of
promissory notes by HTICI. The promissory notes
bear interests of 4% per annum above the prime
rate announced by the Hongkong and Shanghai
Banking Corporation Limited for Hong Kong
dollars at its best lending rate in effect from time
to time (ie 9%). The maturity date of the
promissory notes is 12-month after the issue of the
promissory note. The acquisition was completed
in the same month.

262  Annual Report 425 2020/21

41

WEEK B AT (&)

WIEEEMRE(E)

(a) Alcott (£8)
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wEE LR AEERAE W
BEEAEBERZITEEERRR
EE T o IRE 2R AEIR L
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Alcott BHAREBRBEHRE - M
CESIZH B F5 248 1 AR A AR ©
WEEE FBUWERE QA (M sE
19) °

(b) Big Wish

R XEEBEBERX
BfR R ECMBAREER (—

R E=TT)RINEE B o BIE
ZhE AEEERHERERER
Y2 B8 Big Wish 9 100% B& Az - X
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41 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 41 WIEHEAR (&)
WEEEHE(E)
(b) Big Wish (/&)

Summary of acquisitions (Continued)
(b) Big Wish (Continued)

Big Wish is an investment holding company which
indirectly holds 100% equity interests in Dasar.
Dasar is principally engaged in property holding,
which is a residential and commercial mixed
property development project located at Port
Dickson, Negeri Sembilan, Malaysia comprising
267,500 square meters (or 2,879,343 square feet).
The property is held from the government for a
lease term of 99 years expiring on 8 February 2097
for residential and commercial building uses. The
principal assets of Dasar is a land for development
("Project Land 2").

Port Dickson is a popular resort destination at
Negeri Sembilan, Malaysia, about 80 kilometers
from Kuala Lumpur. Based on the available
statistics published by the Valuation and Property
Services Department of Malaysia, the overall
house price index of Negeri Sembilan has
increased from approximately 150 in 2015 to
approximately 192 in 2019 with a compound
annual growth rate of approximately 5.05%. The
Group considers that there would be an upward
potential for the property market in Negeri
Sembilan.

BigWish Bk EER AR 48
Dasar 100% %4 ° Dasar EZ{tEY
EER - HARBRARRERK
ERIAEREEGEMELRRE
B @ & 5267500 5 K( =k
2,879,343 F 5 R ) - MER BT
£ HHRENVF RZThtF=
ANBEW FEERBEEFH
BeDasar METZEEAEREAM
([EE LH2]) »

BB R R AR EM B &R E
R - EREEEHKABORNE - 1R
BEERATHELRMERER
(Valuation and Property Services
Department of Malaysia) 2/ &) 7] 15
FEABE REXBNBEEEER
BEEHR-_Z—HFMNI0LLAEZ
T-NEN192  BEEFERXOA
5.05%  NREBERRHREMZYMED
SRR LETES -
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41 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 41
Summary of acquisitions (Continued)
(b) Big Wish (Continued)

WEEHI B A R (48)
WEEEHE(E)
(b) Big Wish (/&)

The potential of investing in Malaysia can be
further supported by the rising gross domestic
product in Malaysia. According to the statistics
published by the Department of Statistics
Malaysia, the nominal gross domestic product of
Malaysia has increased by over 28% from
approximately RM1,176,941 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$2,283,266 million) in 2015 to
RM1,510,693 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$2,930,744 million) in 2019 with a compound
annual growth rate of approximately 5.12%. The
Group considers that there would be a vibrant
economic growth and future prospects in
Malaysia. The addition of Project Land 2 will
enhance the Group's investment portfolio of
property development projects along the One
Belt, One Road regions.

Big Wish and its subsidiaries will be consolidated
into the financial statements of the Group. The
acquisition is considered as an asset acquisition.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 HE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

41 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 41 WEEMBAR(8)
Summary of purchase considerations WEREHRE
The following table summarises the allocation of TREMBE VBRI BRI EEREAERE
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed and MAREDE

the consideration:

Alcott Big Wish Total
Alcott Big Wish st
HKS$'million HK$'million HK$'million
BEAT BEAT BEAT
Allocation of identifiable SEEWBURNEER
assets acquired and EREAE
liabilities assumed
Interests in associates REEE AR 7R 1,116 - 1,116
Properties under development #EHY)E - 370 370
Total identifiable net assets AEREEFEAE 1,116 370 1,486
Excess of net fair value of DR E AR EETR [ ATERf5
identifiable assets over costs  AIHMRIAERBLHHE
of investments recorded under AR FEFHE
share of results of associates (157) - (157)
959 370 1,329
Consideration RE
Shares of HTICI EREFRERFERD 173 - 173
Corporate note payables ENTt%ZEE
— at amortised cost — 1R ER R - 370 370
— at FVTPL —URTEFEREE
FAER 616 - 616
Convertible note payables AR RE
— liability portion —B8EHy 89 - 89
— equity portion —Emin 81 - 81
959 370 1,329

Net cash inflow from acquisitions WIEEER L F A FE
Cash consideration per above [ FRIBHRERE - - -
Cash and cash equivalents acquired B EER 4 RIEEEEY - - -
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

42 ASSETS PLEDGED AS SECURITY 42 BEHREEERER
As at 31 March 2021, the carrying amounts of assets R-E-_—F=ZA=+—8 " ®AB&FE
pledged as security for current and non-current MBEERFAERNEERTENT -

borrowings are as follows:

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FTF
Note  HK$'million HK$ million

B 5T BEET BEET

Non-current FERE
First mortgage F—IHEB

Investment properties KREYE 1,603 1,432
Fixed charge EE &H

Property, plant and equipment M BENKRE 108 151

Loan receivables FEWE I 41 27

Pledged bank deposits EEMIRITER 5 )
Total non-current assets pledged  {EA&#IF 2 B E 3 IERE
_assecurity AEeE 4757 1615
Current B
Fixed charge EE&H

Loan receivables JEWE X 13 21
Total current assets pledged ERERZEERRDEE
_essecurty weE 13 .20
Total assets pledged as security VEBIEH B EREEAE 1,770 1,636
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43

44

B ISR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 HE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

COMMITMENTS

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had capital
commitments in respect of property, plant and

equipment amounted to approximately HK$7 million
(2020: HK$11 million).

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Key management compensation

43 RiE

R-ZZE-Z—=ZA=+—H A%EY
X BEMIEBHBEERAENTBEEE
TT(ZEZTF 11BEEEL)

4 BBAERS
TEEHE A S HE

2021 2020
—E-—F TETF
HK$'million  HK$'million

BEBT BEAT

Short-term employee benefits HHEERT 19 21
Share-based payment LARRAR FE AT R 4 3
23 24

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated
financial statements, the Group had no material

transactions with related parties during the year ended
31 March 2021 and 2020.

Brér e SRR Ao mIEEEIN - &
BT FR-E-FF-ZA=1+—H
HFE  AEEWESKEHRAIRS -
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

45 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

(a)

Share award

HTICI adopted a share award scheme(the “Share
Award Scheme”) on 24 April 2020. The purposes
of the Share Award Scheme are (a) to recognise
the contributions by selected participants and to
provide them with incentives in order to retain
them; and (b) to attract the right talents for
promoting the future development and expansion
of the group, with a view to achieving the
objective of increasing the value of the group by
motivating the participants to strive for the
continual operation and future development and
expansion of the group and aligning the interests
of the participants and the shareholders of HTICI.

Movement of the award shares (the “Award
Shares”) during the year are as follows:

45

LU 72 XA 3K

(a)

IR A7 SR

ERERERRECNR T _FF
PO A =+ BB ) 2R BT 81 ([ AX
o 2@t &) - B A ET & B &
REBEETLEEFLZAR

Iﬁfﬂi—rhﬁiiﬁﬁbu BERE &
by RBELZAT » AR EAKHE
*K%é@éﬁ%)%%%ﬁ& ERERip o

B2 EE/REBERELE UMK
REBERERBTEBME NEREN

AREEEYL AR HEEESE
%02 R EB R R A R 2 Rl
a7 o

A AR ([ EER |) 28
mF

Number of award shares

RERGHE
24 April 29 June
2020 2020 Total
i
MA=+M™A R<A=thA Bt
million million million
BEK BEK BER
Outstanding as at 1 April 2020 —Z-ZTFMA-A
ﬁfk?“u“.: - - -
Granted during the year AEERE 197 65 262
Vested during the year AEEHE (1) - (1)
Lapsed/cancelled during the year ~ AFE &R/ 54 (170) Q) (171)
Outstanding as at 31 March 2021 R-ZE-—F=A=+—H
HARE 26 64 90
Share price at date of grant (HK$) ~ AR HEZRE(ET) 0.246 0.148
Fair value as at date of grant REHB# 2z ATE
(HK$'million) (BB%T) 48 10 58
Share-based payment expense RZTZ R 2 AR
recognised in 2021 (HK$'million) YHRAYZ (BEEET) 4 4 8
Future service costs to be TR 2 R R AR B AR
recognised (HK$'million) (BBBIL) 3 5 8
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 HE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

45 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

(a)

Share award (Continued)

Pursuant to the scheme rules, the board of HTICI
may determine other specific vesting criteria,
conditions and the time when the awards shall
vest. The Award Shares are vested in three equal
tranches of which: (a) 1/3 of the Award Shares
under the award shall be vested in the first
calendar year after the offer date during a period
of continuous service with the group; (b) 1/3 of the
Award Shares under the award shall be vested in
the second calendar year of continuous service
with the group after the offer date; (c) 1/3 of the
Award Shares under the award shall be vested in
the third calendar year of continuous service with
the group after the offer date. A total of 774,929
Award Shares granted to one of the selected
employees are unconditional awards as his
contract provided for such Award Shares are in
addition to his normal monthly salary.

(a)

foﬁﬁ@] (VD'EI/

RIBEFTEIFR A - %9&&?—%@%&&%
EEgAETAMEERBIRE

R R EEFBRR - ﬁlﬁbﬂxf’”‘
“HEREBE Hd:REET
ZN/3REERG R EAAEER
BHEEZNEPEEEBETRE
b) S2E)IE T 2 1/3 REIR D ETEZ 4
HRERHERAESERGE 25 =@
BEEREE (o =ZEIET 2 1/38EK
MECZEHNEBREFEAAEER
BeE=—HAEFHB BETHHP—
HIRTFEREB A 774,929 B% 52 Ep A% 19
ThEARTRE - REDEREREE

RO ERIEZEHNRE—MAS
LASNZ B pR& &) o
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

45 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 45 BARGESRK(E)
(@) Share award (Continued) (a) KRiTEE (&)
Among the share awards granted, Fok Chi Tak, ERHEZBRNDEBERES  ARAK
the executive director of the Company and HTICI, ZREARERRENTESTELRE
was awarded approximately 61 million shares. EERLH 6 AERRG -
Details of the specific categories of award shares ERER c RERMOFBIT

are as follows:

Numbers of
Date of grant Vesting period share awards
RHBH FEY RO RBEE
(million)
(B&8kK)

24 April 2020 —E-FF 24 April 2020- —ZE-ZFPNA-FUEZRE
MA—+rH 24 April 2021 ZEZ—FWPA=+MHA 9

24 April 2020 —E-THF 24 April 2020- —ZE-ZTFA_FNHZE
mA—+mH 24 April 2022 T —FPEOA=-+WEA 9

24 April 2020 —E-FF 24 April 2020- —ZE-ZTFA_FHHEHZE
MA—+mHe 24 April 2023 —E-_=FWA_+mMmA 9

29 June 2020 —E-TF 29 June 2020- :g:iﬁi/‘—\ﬂ “—t+hBEZE
ANAZTABR  29June2021 —ZE-—FA=-t+ANA 21

29June2020 —E-TF 29 June 2020- Z—TE-TFNAZTHhAHZE
~NAZ+TH 29June 2022 —E-—FA-+AhH 21

29 June 2020 —E-TF 29June 2020- —E-_TFEXA-t+HHZE
ANAZTAR  29June2023 —ZE-=FA=-t+ANA 21
90
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 HE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

45 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

(b) Emolument shares (b)

45 LURHERSRE)
B <& B 13

FR Z2RERERRERH 2B

Movement of the emolument shares granted by

HTICI during the year are as follows: SR EEHIT
Emolument
Shares
6 October 2020
0380
“E-ZF+TAXH
million
BERK
Outstanding as at 1 April 2020 RZZ_ZFMA—-HRARERE
Granted during the year AEEHRL
Outstanding as at 31 March 2021 RZE-—F=A=+—HHARKH 9
Share price at date of grant (HK$) R BEZ RE (ET) 0.395
Fair value as at date of grant RELBRBzATFE(EEET)
(HK$'million) 3
Share-based payment expense RZZE - —FHERZ AR DI
recognised in 2021 (HK$'million) FX (B&BT) 2

Future service costs to be
recognised (HK$'million)

R R RRB A (BB T)
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 HiEZ =& = —

FZRA=+—HLHEE

45 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

(b) Emolument shares (Continued)

Details of the specific categories of emolument

shares are as follows:

45 L)\Wﬁﬁ/i'fjﬂ%( \>
(b) BiER®H(E)

HEgRRh 2 BB BT

Number of
emolument
Date of grant Vesting period shares
BB BEH &R E R
(million)
(ABR)

6 October 2020 —ZF=ZFF+ A7XH 6 October 2020~ —ZE-F ¢‘|‘H AN EES
6 October 2021 (note)  —ZF——F+ A/ H (H&E) 3

6 October 2020 —Z=ZFF+ A/XH 6 October 2020~ —ZE-EFE+ARHEE
6 October 2022 (note) —Z=—%F+ A5 (1) 3

6 October 2020 —Z-FF+H7XH 6 October 2020- :g:giﬂﬂ NEE
6 October 2023 (note) —F==F+ A< A () 3
9

Note:

These emolument shares were granted to Mr. Xu Lin
and Mr. Wei Bin, as part of their emolument as non-
executive directors of HTICI. If Mr. Xu Lin and Mr. Wei
Bin ceases to be a director of HTICI for any reason
before any vesting date, Mr. Xu Lin and Mr. Wei Bin
shall be entitled to receive a pro rata portion of the
emolument shares calculated on the basis of the
number of days worked by Mr. Xu Lin and Mr. Wei Bin.
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45 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

Share options

As mentioned in note 32(d), the Company has
granted approximately 609 million share options
entitling Co-High to subscribe for the Company's
shares at the price of HK$0.25 per option share
(subject to adjustments) during the share option
period, which commences on 9 July 2020 and will
end on the 9 July 2023. The share options have no
vesting period. An amount of approximately
HK$39 million was recognised as share-based
payment expenses in respect of this share option
during the year.

The share options have no movement during the
year and have remaining contractual life of 2.5
years. 609 million share options are exercisable as
at 31 March 2021.

These fair values were calculated using the
binomial option pricing model. The inputs into the
model are as follows:

45 LRHEASRE)

R

BANPH FE32(d) st - AR RIE R
#1609 A BN ERE - BT NEER
T i AU R H ) 42 B P s B A £ 0.25
BILZER(AITHRE) BRBEART]
fp BRESEE T _TF+
ANBEZE-_ZE-_=FtAhBIL-
BRETEFES - FA DHZ
BB S HE R BB A DA IR A T2 AU R ¢
#39BEEBTT °

BRENRFALEZES  HREH
FHR25F - M _FT_—F=A4
=+—H 609EEMHBERENTT
f& o

BRAFEER -AAHREEER
BETH - R 2B AT

2021
—E——

Share price iz & 0.226
Exercise price 1T1E(E 0.25
Expected volatility SR N 47%
Expected life Ta B 5 3
Risk free rate 42 [3 e FI R 0.161%
Expected dividend yield TEERR B R 0%

Expected volatility was determined by calculating
the historical volatility of the Company's share
price over the previous 6 years. The expected life
used in the model has been adjusted, based on
the Group's best estimate, for the effects of non
transferability, exercise restrictions and
behavioural considerations.

BHKEEBFERARARELED
ENFZELREERE - RIVPE
Rz ERFHEREASE 2 &IE
et St AR EEE - TTER
RITRERRARBRZZEETH

%go
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZE =T - —F=A=+—HIFE

46 EVENTS AFTER THE DATE OF STATEMENT OF

47

FINANCIAL POSITION

Deemed disposal of interest in HTICI and acquisition

In April 2021, HTICI entered into an acquisition
agreement with an independent third party to acquire
49% equity interests in a target company with a
consideration of approximately HK$286 million. The
target company, through its interests in a segregated
portfolio of Tisé Opportunities SPC, acquired shares of
New Gains Group Limited, a subsidiary of China
Evergrande Group, which owns Fangchebao Group Co.
Lid* (FEHE £ B A& 5 B R A 7). The consideration
was settled by the allotment and issue of approximately
867 million shares of HTICI. The transaction was
completed in May 2021. This investment will be treated
as a financial asset at FVTPL on the consolidated
statement of financial position.

The allotment and issue of the consideration shares by
HTICI resulted in the dilution of the Group'’s
percentage holding in HTICI from approximately 53%
to 47%. The directors of the Company considered that
the Group has de facto control over HTICI even though
it has less than 50% of voting rights. The Group is the
majority shareholder of HTICI and the other vote
holders of HTICI are dispersed. There is no history of
other shareholders forming a group to exercise their
votes collectively.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been restated to
confront to current year's presentation.
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48 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 48 AR TMBRRBEREEEED
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(a) Statement of Financial Position of the Company (@) ADTEFEAMRIFE

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
HK$'million  HK$'million

BEBT BEAT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries NG E ] 2,332 2,115
Corporate note receivable JEW > 3 R 1F - 144
2,332 2,259
Current assets REEE
Corporate note receivables JEU > SR 69 130
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEU B BB A B RE 2,852 2,930
Financial assets at FVTPL WAFEGEEEZ (LA
BazemEE - 17
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkBReEED 8 4
2,929 3,081
Total Assets EEHAE 5,261 5,340
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES ERREE
Equity attributable to RABERFTFE ARG ES
equity holders of the Company
Share capital & A 69 61
Reserves HE 2,847 2,981
Total equity WEREE 2,916 3,042
LIABILITIES =N
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Bank and other borrowings RITREMER - 145
Corporate note payables JEM > EEE 350 350
350 495
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48 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 48
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)

(a) Statement of Financial Position of the Company (a)
(Continued)

ERBHBRRBRREERE (F)

AT BT HE ()

2021 2020
—E-—-F —ECEREF
HK$'million HK$'million
BEBT ABBT
Current liabilities REBEE

Other payables and accruals Hitn eI RETEA 84 21
Bank and other borrowings IRIT M EMEE 563 558
Amounts due to subsidiaries XN ENGIE 1,235 1,120

Financial liabilities at FVTPL AFERE BEELETA
BHEzemaE 113 104
1,995 1,803
Total liabilities BB 2,345 2,298
Total equity and liabilities EaRkEEEHE 5,261 5,340

ARRAFBRREN =T =X
A-tHAEEFEE L
TEEREFE

The statement of financial position of the
Company was approved by the Board of Directors
on 25 June 2021 and was signed on its behalf:

Fok Chi Tak Chan Ming Sun Jonathan
EL5E PR 8% 22
Director Director
EF BE
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48 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 48 ARTHERRABRRFEEEE (E)
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)

(b) Reserve movement of the company (b) ARDBHEEE
Share-based
Share payment Other  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
BB
RAEE XfifE Hithite RitER @t

HK$'million HK$'million HK$'million HK'million HK$'million
BEATL BEATL BEATL BEAT BEATL

At 1 April 2019 RZZB-hFMA-H 4,353 1 40 (1,364) 3,030

Loss and total comprehensive loss ~ FEBERZHEELE
for the year - - - (227) (227)
Transaction with equity holders ~ EEXFHAARS
Issue of emolument shares BT &R 2 - - - 2
Issue of consideration shares B CENSIEE
in relation to the acquisition of ExiEERERR
the non-controlling interest

in a subsidiary 176 - - - 176
Lapse of share options BIRER S - (1) - 1 -
178 (1) - 1 178

As at 31 March 2020 RZB-EF=A=1-H
and 1 April 2020 R-Z-ZFMA-A 4,531 - 40 (1,590) 2,981

Loss and total comprehensive FEBENRZEFEEE
loss for the year - - - (369) (369)

Transaction with equity holders ~ EEFEFALS

Issue of placement shares BITRERD 144 - - _ 144
Issue of shares on conversion of XA ARRE
convertible note payables BRETRG
(notes 32(c) and 35) (B3 32(c) % 35) 52 - - - 52
Issue of share option (note 32(d)  Z1TEERRE (17T 32(d) - 39 - - 39
Early principal redemption of REBEEMTARE
convertible note payables BAS (31 35) -
(note 35):
— redesignation of fairvalue of ~ — EFIETHEAREZ
repurchase consideration ATE - - - - -
196 39 - - 235
As at 31 March 2021 N-8--Fzf=1-R 4727 3 40 (1,959) 2,847
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

B E
Year ended 31 March HHEZE=A=+—HILtFE
RESULTS 4
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
—T—+tF —FT-N\F ZT-NF —FT-THF CZB-F
HK$'million  HK$'million  HK$'million  HK$'million HK$'million
BEET BEET BEBT BEBT BEBT
Revenue WA 206 330 320 296 346
Profit/(loss) for the year — THI A +EEER
attributable to: wH(E8) -
— owners of — KRREAA
the Company (3,079 (445) (381) (284) (376)
— non-controlling — R
interests (110) 81) (36) 6 28
Profit/(loss) for the year — F R H,/(E18) (3,189 (526) 417) (278) (348)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
As at 31 March
R=A=+—H
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
—T—+F TN\ ZIZE-NEFE ZTZTF C—T--F
HK$'million  HK$'million  HK$'million HK$'million HK$'million
BEET BEET BEBT BEBT BEEAR
Total assets BEEE 5,343 5,030 5,555 5,034 6,165
Total liabilities BERE (1,782) (1,966) (2,771) (2,538) (3,151)
3,561 3,064 2,784 2,496 3,014
Equity attributable to AREEAA
owners of E{ERERS
the Company 3,324 2,792 2,631 2,490 2,382
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Aceso Life Science Group Limited o {Z#4 £ mEH R EB AR QA

GLOSSARY
Sk

Aceso Life Science Group Limited (formerly known as Hao Tian Development
Group Limited) (stock code: 474)
EREGRMREEERAR (AIBEEXEREBEAR AT - IR : 474)

the articles of association of the Company
RATABERMAR

board of Directors

-

British Virgin Islands
RERUES

Coronavirus Disease 2019
2019 BB E R

director(s) of the Company
KRRIESE

the Company and its subsidiaries

AR N E R R

Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited, an exempted
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability, whose
shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock code:
1341)

EREFERREEEER AR RASHSIMERL 2 ERRLER AT - AR
T FREE AT P =M BT (BRI 5% - 1341)

the Rules Governing the listing of securities on the Stock Exchange

B FrE s BT AR R

the People’s Republic of China
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the last financial year of the Group ended 31 March 2020
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Securities and Futures Commission
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SFO the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571 of the laws of Hong Kong),
as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time
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Share(s) Share(s) in the capital of the Company
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Shareholder(s) holder(s) of the Shares
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Stock Exchange
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The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
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UK United Kingdom
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Year the financial year of the Group ended 31 March 2021
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HK$ Hong Kong Dollars
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JPY Japanese Yen
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GBP Pound sterling

RMB Renminbi
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Us$ United States Dollars
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